
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of May 23 and June 13, 2023. 
 
Magnolia Springs Planned Development – General Development Plan. 
This request is to create a General Development Plan (GDP) to provide setback flexibility for the 
twin home lots within the development.  The request is to reduce the rear setback from 30 to 20 feet.  
The applicant has also requested that the Specific Implementation Plan review be waived since 
there will be no need to make changes from the GDP.  The ordinance and General Development 
Plan documents are provided.  A public hearing and recommendation to the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, May 8, 
2023, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard to consider a 
proposed rezoning of the property within the Magnolia Springs Development, City of 
Stoughton, owned by Eldon Homes Land Development LLC.  The property is proposed to 
be rezoned from RH – Rural Holding to as follows: 
 


• Lots 1-18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 66-71, 75-82, 94-97 and 104 shall be zoned to 
Planned Development – General Development Plan 


 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via 
Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 850 0390 9924 Passcode:  288379 
 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
at 608-646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
 
Published April 20 and 27, 2023 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  51 West Lot 6 Notice.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a Planned Development - General Development Plan for the Magnolia Springs Subdivision 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  -   
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base and Park Impact Fees 
File Number: O -    - 2023 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. Steve Tremlett, MSA Professional Services (the “Applicant”) has requested that certain 


lots within the currently unrecorded Plat of Magnolia Springs be rezoned from Rural 
Holding to Planned Development (documents dated May 1, 2023).  The Applicant has 
submitted a General Development Plan (the “GDP”) for The Magnolia Springs 
Neighborhood, attached as Exhibit A. 
 


B. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 
designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the 
City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development 
of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for the land proposed 
to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line zoning requirements 
and identifying needed flexibility is TR – 6 Two-Family Residential. 
 


C. On May 8, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing regarding 
Applicant’s proposed Planned Development zoning and the GDP.  This request includes 
an exception to waive the Specific Implementation Plan review so the General 
Development Plan will also act as the Specific Implementation Plan for the development.  
The public hearing was preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice 
required by law.  
 


D. The Plan Commission found that the proposed Planned Development zoning is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
rezoning and the GDP, subject to certain conditions.   
 


E. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 
that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed Planned Development zoning and General 
Development Plan are consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and have 
the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 
 
 







2 


 
 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 
 


2. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 6 below, the zoning classification of certain 
lots within the Magnolia Springs Subdivision are changed from Rural Holding to Planned 
Development, and the GDP is approved. 
 


3. The following lots shall be rezoned from RH – Rural Holding to PD-GDP – Planned 
Development – General Development Plan: 
 


• Lots 1-18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 66-71, 75-82, 94-97, and 104. 
 


4. The following flexibilities to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved: 
• Minimum rear setback shall be 20 feet; 
• The Specific Implementation Plan review is waived. 


 
5. The lots shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and requirements 


in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned TR-6 Two-Family Residential, 
except as flexibilities are expressly authorized in this ordinance.  Chapter 78 of the City 
Code, the General Development Plan and this Ordinance will constitute the zoning 
regulations for the property, and may be enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of 
Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance, the General Development Plan/Specific 
Implementation Plan shall be maintained and kept on file by the City of Stoughton Planning 
Office.  
 


6. The zoning changes and approvals provided for in Sections 3 and 4 above will not be 
effective until all of the following conditions have been satisfied: 
 
A. The Final Plat of Magnolia Springs has been approved and recorded; 
B. The development agreement has been approved by the City; 
C. All easements deemed necessary by the City or Stoughton Utilities to provide water, 


sanitary sewer, electric and other utility services needed to serve Magnolia Springs 
have been conveyed to the City. 


 
 
 
 







3 


 
 
 


7. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 


 
Dates 
 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Magnolia Springs GDP-SIP Ordinance.docx 







Table of Contents
A. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map...2
B. Vicinity Map........................................................3
C. Planned Development Written Description.........4


Appendix: Plan Sheets
- Map with Owners within 300 feet
- Street Tree Plan (Informational Only)


General Development Plan (GDP)
Owner:  
Eldon Land Development, LLC
3092 Linnerud Drive
Stoughton, WI 53589
Contact: Rob Hostrawser
608-480-9432


Project Planner:  
MSA Professional Services, Inc.
1702 Pankratz St.
Madison, WI  53704
Contacts: Stephen Tremlett  
(608) 242-6621


Project Civil Engineer: 
MSA Professional Services, Inc.
1702 Pankratz St.
Madison, WI  53704
Contacts: Kevin Lord 
(608) 242-6617


MAGNOLIA SPRINGSMAGNOLIA SPRINGS
NEIGHBORHOODNEIGHBORHOOD


PLANNED DEVELOPMENTPLANNED DEVELOPMENT


j


COUNCIL APPROVED DATE: X
LAST MODIFIED DATE: 05/01/2023


EXHIBIT A







2 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


A. LOCATION MAP
Excerpt from the City of 
Stoughton’s Comprehensive 
Plan


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!!!


!


!!


!


!


!
! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


! !
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


! !
!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!!


!!!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!!!


!


!!


!


!


!!


!!!


!
!


! ! ! !


!
!


!!!


!


!


!!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!
!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!


!!


!!!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!
!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
!


!!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


")N


")B


£¤51


£¤51
¬«138


¬«138


Yahara


Riv
er


80'


Lake Kegonsa


")A


Halverson Rd


Starr School Rd


")A


Skaalen Rd


Spri
ng


 R
d


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6c


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


DRAFT


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


Railroads


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries


2017 ETJ Boundary


2017  Limited Service Areas


2017 Urban Service Areas


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


Planned Mixed Use


Draft: July 5, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!!!


!


!!


!


!


!
! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


! !
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


! !
!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!!


!!!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!!!


!


!!


!


!


!!


!!!


!
!


! ! ! !


!
!


!!!


!


!


!!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!
!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!


!!


!!!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!
!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
!


!!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


")N


")B


£¤51


£¤51
¬«138


¬«138


Yahara


Riv
er


80'


Lake Kegonsa


")A


Halverson Rd


Starr School Rd


")A


Skaalen Rd


Spri
ng


 R
d


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6c


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


DRAFT


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


Railroads


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries


2017 ETJ Boundary


2017  Limited Service Areas


2017 Urban Service Areas


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


Planned Mixed Use


Draft: July 5, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!!!


!


!!


!


!


!
! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


! !
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


! !
!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!!


!!!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!!!


!


!!


!


!


!!


!!!


!
!


! ! ! !


!
!


!!!


!


!


!!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!
!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!


!!


!!!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!!!
!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
!


!!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


")N


")B


£¤51


£¤51
¬«138


¬«138


Yahara


Riv
er


80'


Lake Kegonsa


")A


Halverson Rd


Starr School Rd


")A


Skaalen Rd


Spri
ng


 R
d


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6c


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


DRAFT


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


Railroads


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries


2017 ETJ Boundary


2017  Limited Service Areas


2017 Urban Service Areas


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


Planned Mixed Use


Draft: July 5, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board







3City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Pr
os


pe
ct


 L
n


Es
ta


te
 L


n


Ve
te


ra
ns


 R
d


S 
A


ca
de


m
y 


St


E South St


W
ill


ia
m


s 
D


r


H
oe


l A
ve


Barberry Rd


K
in


g 
St


W South St


S 
Va


n 
B


ur
en


 S
t


N
Page


St


W Jefferson St


Skaalen Rd


Jackson St


A
sh


be
rr


y 
Ln


N
 V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


Taylor Ln


W
Vi


ew
W


ay


McComb Rd


Hamilton St


N
 M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Marie
Dr


E Main St


Dunkirk Ave


Ea
st


St


Quam Dr


M
cC


om
b


R
d


Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd


Co
lli


ns
R


d


Giles St


W Main St


Ki
ng


s
Ly


nn
R


d


A
m


un
ds


on
 P


kw
y


W South St


W Prospect St


Robert St


H
ill


 S
t


Otteson Dr


N
yg


aa
rd


 S
t


Marie Dr


Garden Ave


Ben
Waite Cir


Hoel Cir


Li
nc


ol
n 


Av
e


H
as


ke
ll 


C
t


R
ow


e 
St


Johnson Ct


Pl
ea


sa
nt


 V
ie


w
 D


r


Moe Cir


Velkommen Way


St
ik


le
st


ad
 C


t


Roby Rd


W Milwaukee St


S 
D


iv
is


io
n 


St


Autu mn Crst


Markens Gate Rd


Su
m


m
it 


Av
e


O
ak


vi
e w


D
r


Odegard Dr


La
ru


m Ln


Sh
er


m
an


 S
t


Ridge St


Kriedeman Dr


Korgen Dr


Eastwood
Dr


N
 M


or
ris


 S
t


Sil verado
Dr


Li
nn


er
ud


Dr


Hilldale Cir


S 
Fo


ur
th


 S
t


Aspen Rd


W Wilson St


Vernon St


Forton St


Barberry Rd


R
ac


et
ra


ck
 R


d


W McKinley St


Stone Crest
Rd


Cedarbrook Ln


Bre
wer


 C
t


Ash Ln


O
akridge


W
ay


West St


North St


Devonshire Ct


S
Q


u a
m


Dr


Tara Ln


O
ls


on
 C


t


C
ou


nt
ry


 C
lu


b 
R


d


Chapin Ln


Anne
Dr


Valberg Dr


Fo
rto


n
Ct


Burritt
Rd


Harding St


H
an


so
n


Rd


Molin
e St


Fieldview Ln


Giehler Dr


E Milwaukee St


Park St


Ho
m


m
e 


Ct


Lync h
Cir


Pa
ul


i C
t


Sc
ot


t C
ir


H
ar


ris
on


 C
t


A
sh


be
rr


y
Ct


W Milwaukee St


C
ot


to
nw


oo
d


D
r


Hilldale Ln


S Page St


St
ou


gh
to


n 
Av


e


Va
lle


y 
Vi


ew
 D


r


W Taft St


Sundt Ln


Hea
rtbe at Cir


E Chicago St


R
iv


er
vi


ew
 D


r


Greig Trl


Harold Ct


Sunrise Ct


S 
H


ar
ris


on
 S


t


Sk
in


ne
r L


n


Garfield St


N
or


se
 P


kw
y


Outlook Ct


Shadyside Dr


E McKinley St


O
ak


 D
r


E Taft St


W Washington St


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


N
Ac


ad
em


y
St


Ridge St


Hyland Dr


Buckingham Rd


K
ris


ti 
Ln


Matthew Way


S 
M


on
ro


e 
St


Clancey Ln


Clay St


Hi
l l


cr
es


tR
d


Roy Ave


S 
M


or
ris


 S
t


S 
W


at
er


 S
t


Aaker Rd


S 
Fr


an
kl


in
 S


t


Nelson St


Clyde St


N
 M


on
ro


e 
St


V
irg


in
La


ke
Dr


Harding St


Ho
m


m
e


Ln


Pa
lm


er
 S


t


Giles St


Sh
irl


ey
 S


t


S 
G


je
rt


so
n 


St


C
ha


le
t D


r


Eisenhower Rd


S 
H


en
ry


 S
t


P
ro


gr
es


s
Ln


S 
Pr


ai
rie


 S
t


W Washington St


G
ra


nt
 S


t


Schefelker Ln


G
ra


nt
 S


t


Smedal Dr


N
 F


ra
nk


lin
 S


t


Mellum Dr


N
 P


ra
iri


e 
St


Coolidge Rd


S 
M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Garfield St


W Jefferson St


S 
H


ar
ris


on
 S


t


Oak St


E Jefferson St


Sh
er


m
an


 S
t


S 
Fi


fth
 S


t


N
 H


en
ry


 S
t


E Washington St


S 
Fo


rr
es


t S
t


N
 L


yn
n 


St


Westchester Cir


C
hu


rc
h 


St


S 
Si


xt
h 


St


Pi
ne


 S
t


S 
Se


ve
nt


h 
St


S 
Fi


fth
 S


t


N
Di


vi
sio


n
St


Ke
ns


in
gt


on
S


q


W Broadway St


S Lynn St


Oak
w


oo
d Ct


W Randolph St


M
on


ro
e 


C
t


Sk
yl


in
e 


D
r


Levanger Ln


E Academy St


Se
a


m


onson Cir


M
el


aa
s 


C
ir


West St


B
er


ge
n 


C
t


Pa ra
di


se
Dr


M
an


ill
a 


St


Hoiby Rd


Yahara Rd


N
 H


ar
ris


on
 S


t


Ortega Dr


Je
ns


 C
t


Sk
yr


id
ge


 C
t


Br
is


to
l C


t


N
Fo


rre
st


St


H
ig


h 
Po


in
t C


ir


Brooklyn Dr


Skyline Ln


Industrial Cir


Ve
a 


C
t


B
ic


k l
e y


Ct


El
m


 S
t


Dv
or


ak
Ct


O
ak


 O
pe


ni
ng


 D
r


A
re


nd
al


 C
t


Roosevelt St


Erin Hl


Lowell St


Truman Rd


Hyland Dr


Nordic Trl


Chapin Ct


G
ilrust Ave


Ri
dg


ew
oo


d
Dr


Overlook Dr


W Chicago St


B
jo


in
Dr


Blue Heron Ct


Park St


B
lack


O
ak


Dr


Maple Ct


Mai n -P
ag


e
C


t


E Pro
sp


ec
t St


Anderson Ave


Oak Knoll Ln


Patterson St


Ei
gh


th
 S


t


Schroeder Ln


S 
B


ro
ok


ly
n 


D
r


Q
ui


nn
 L


n


Sk
og


er
 D


r


Alice Cir


Ap
oll


o Cir


Pe
te


rs
on


 D
r


B
er


ry
 S


t


N
 M


on
ro


e 
St


E Wilson
St


Carl Ave


N
 G


je
rt


so
n 


St


Isham St


Duncan Rd


N
 M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Keenan Ln


N
 P


ra
iri


e 
St


S
aw


ye
r R


d


Riverside Dr


N
or


a 
St


FellandSt


H
ill


si
de


 A
ve


Lake Woods Way


Business
P


ar
k


Ci
r


Ha
rv


es
t L


n


Nottingham
Rd


Pa
rk


 V
ie


w
 D


rDeer Point Dr


Spring Rd


Kvam
m


e
Ln


Wood View Dr


E South St


N
 M


on
ro


e 
St


Meadow Dr


Christiansen Way


Meadow
G


rn


Holtan Rd


Business Park Cir


Shore View Dr


Stoney Rid
ge


Tr
l


Kegonsa Rd


CoopersCsw
y


Yahara Rd


Aalseth Ln


Kenilworth Ct


Sh
er


yl
Ln


M
an


dt
 P


kw
y


La
rv


ik
Ln


D
ev


on
sh


ire
 R


d


H
ild


eb
ra


nd
t S


t


Course View Dr


C
om


m
er


ce
 R


d


Vernon St


Furseth Rd


Lunde Cir


Ke


nsington
Sq


")N


")N


")A


")A


")B


¬«138 ¬«138


¬«138


¬«138


¬«138


£¤51


£¤51


£¤51
£¤51


£¤51


£¤51


Zoning Map
City of Stoughton


City of Stoughton Municipal Boundary
City of Stoughton Tax Parcel Boundary
Railroad
Building Footprint
Surface Water


Zoning Class
Right of Way
ER-1
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5
SR-6
TR-6
MR-10
MR-24
Planned Development
Neighborhood Business
Planned Business
Central Business
Neighborhood Office
Planned Office
Rural Holding
Institutional
Parks and Open Space
Planned Industrial
General Industrial
Heavy Industrial


Adopted December 22, 2009
Revision November 24, 2020


Source: Dane County LIO


Z
0 550 1,100 1,650275


Feet


Date: 11/25/2020


Mandt Pkwy


Fa
ll


H
av


en


N
or


dl
an


d 
D


r


Glacier Moraine Dr


Oak Opening Dr


Telemark Trl


Jackson St


Boulder L
n


Alpine


Cromwell Ct


Oslo Run


Run


Castle
Cir


Trysil A
lley South


Trysil A
lley North


B. VICINITY MAP
Excerpt from the City of Stoughton’s 
Zoning Map.







4 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION


Project Area and Existing Conditions 
This planned development establishes the zoning 
requirements for duplex lots in a 37.25-acre single- 
and two-family residential neighborhood located in 
the south-central limits of the City of Stoughton – just 
north of Aaker Road and west of 4th Street (Taylor 
Lane), to be known as Magnolia Springs Subdivision. 


The project area includes two city parcels 
(051108396602 and 051108494000). Currently, both 
parcels are being farmed with a pocket of woodlands 
around the wetland in the northeast section of the 
development.


The surrounding uses to the proposed project are as 
follows:
• North: wetlands, single-family neighborhood, 


and planned duplex lots along Isham Street ex-
tension.


• West: rural residential 
• South: rural residential and farmland.
• East: rural residential, river, wetlands, and flood-


plain


Project Scope  
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC is proud to sub-
mit this concept for a 37.25-acre single- and two-fam-
ily residential neighborhood with 104 lots (plus, four 
outlots). There are 62 single-family lots (averaging 
6,600 square feet on interior lots and 8,500 square 
feet along edges of the development), 28 zero lo-
tline “twin-house” lots (roughly 5,000 to 6,000 square 
feet), and 14 duplex lots (ranging from 10,000 square 
feet to 12,000 square feet).  


The intent of the proposed project is to provide af-
fordably priced homes in a well-designed neighbor-
hood with good vehicular and pedestrian connec-
tions through and within the development.  Some 
of the key design choices that minimized the overall 
construction costs included 
• A range of smaller single-family lot sizes that do 


not require rear-loaded home design (and an al-
leyway).


• Duplex lots that fit into the single-family neigh-
borhood.  


• Filling the site to allow for gravity sanitary service, 


mitigating the need for a lift station that would 
have a substantial upfront cost to construct, as 
well as future maintenance needs.  


• Central boulevard on Page Street has been re-
designed to manage an open swale to allow a 
substantial stormwater watershed from the south 
to convey through the site.


General Relationship to the 
2017 Comprehensive Plan
The proposed subdivision is located in an area des-
ignated as the South Planned Neighborhood Area, 
which is intended for a carefully planned mixture of 
predominantly single-family residential development, 
combined with one or more of the following land use 
categories: 


• Two Family Residential, Multi-Family Residential, 
Neighborhood Office, Neighborhood Business, In-
stitutional, and Recreation or Public Open Space. 
This category is intended to accommodate both 
conventional and Traditional Neighborhood De-
sign (TND) forms of “full-service” neighborhood 
development. To implement a key City objective, 
development within these neighborhoods should 
contain a minimum of 65 percent single fami-
ly dwelling units, a maximum of 15 percent two 
family and/or townhomes, and a maximum of 20 
percent multi-family dwellings.


PD Zoning Rationale & Exemptions
The Planned Development (PD) classification will al-
low for density that supports more affordable homes/
lots, requiring smaller lots with reduced setbacks. 
While the developer has been able to provide  sin-
gle-family home designs to meet SR-5 and SR-6 lots, 
the duplex footrprints cannot fit per the TR-6 rear set-
back requirement.


Through this GDP, the developer is requesting ex-
emptions, allowing for reduced rear setback min-
mums for the duplex (or zero lotline twin-home) lots, 
as outlined below. This will allow the developer to 
maintain a uniform minimum setback following the 
SR-6 requirement, while allowing for building place-
ment that holds the street edges.







5City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


PD Lots (per Figure 1): Lots 1-18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 
66-71, 75-82, 94-97, and 104.


PD Min. Rear Setback Request:  20 feet
 For reference:
 TR-6 Min. Rear Setback:  30 feet
 SR-6 Min. Rear Setback: 20 Feet


PD lots will follow all other TR-6 zoning requirements 
and other City regulations.  This includes potentially 
building single-family homes on PD lots, or subdiving 
the duplex lots to provide twin-homes.


This request is necessary to achieve marketable du-
plexes on narrow lots with affordable pricing.  To fur-
ther that goal, Eldon Land Development, LLC also 


requests exemption from a Specific Implementation 
Plan (SIP) review.  Eldon Land Development, LLC 
has submitted engineering drawings for Phase 1, 
which includes half of the PD lots.  These lots will 
be built by Spring/Summer 2024.  The developer has 
also submitted preliminary engineering drawings for 
the remainder of the neighborhood as part of the Ur-
ban Service Area amendment. 


Relationship to Nearby Properties
The general development concept site plan (Figure 1 
above) depicts the entire planned residential neigh-
borhood with parks and open spaces. The develop-
ment includes a blend of single-family and twinhome/
duplex lots. The duplex/twinhome lots are located 


FIGURE 1.  Magnolia Springs Neighborhood & Requested Zoning


OUTLOT 3


OUTLOT 1


OUTLOT 2


OUTLOT 4


60’ ROW


77


60’ ROW


2 1


77777777788888888
77777777999999998808888182222


35 468 7911 1012


70 71696867
66


13
14


15
16


1718 62 616364


57 5856


65


605953 5452 55


46 4547 4450 4951 48


19


20
21


22


23
24


25 26 27 28 29 30 31


40 4139 434238
37


36 35 34 3233


101


97 98 10099


102
103


104


8833833 88448844 88555558855555555 8866886666666666 88888888887777777777
888888888888


8899
9900


9911


992
99339999949999959999999996


7777777667766
777777755555
77447744


77227722
7733


SWM


SWM


SUBDIVISION CONCEPT


wetland


AAAAAAaAAAaaAaAaAAaAaaaAAAAAAaaaAAAAaaaAaAaAAAAAaaakkkkkkkkkkkkkekkekeekeekekekekkekekeeeekkkekekkkkerrrr r rrrrrrrr RdRdRdRdRdRddRRRRRddRdRdRdRdRdRRRRddddRRdRdRdRdRRRdd


SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
44444444444444444ththththththththhthththththththhh  StStStStStStSStSSStStStStStStStSSSt


StStStStStStttSSSS
S SS SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS


PPPPPPPPPPPPPPa
gagagagagggaggggagggggggggaaaaaaaa


eeeeeeeee
SSS


IsIssIsIsIssIsshahhahahahhhhhahahahhhahahhhahaaaammmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSttttttttttttttttttt


ClClClCCClCCCClCC ovovovovovovoovovovo ererererrereeeeeererrereer LLLLLLLLLLLnnnnnnnn


OrOrOrOrOOrOOOrOrOrchchchchhchchchchchchhididididdddddddd AAAAAAAAAAAvevevevevevveveenununununununnuununuueeeeeeeee


WiWiWiWiWiWWWiWWWWiWWWW ldldldldddddd RRRRRRRRRRRRRosososososososossooo e e eeeeeeeeee WaWaWaWaWaWaWaWaWWaaaayyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy


DaDaDaDDaDDDaDaDaDaDaDaD hlhlhlhlhhlhlhhlllhlhliiiiii DrDrDrDrDDrDrDrDrDrDaDaDahlhlhllii i DrDrDrr


60’ ROW


15
6’


 R
O


W


81’ ROW


(pr(pr(prpr(pr(pr(p ovioviovioviooovoovidindinddinndidinnding ag ag ag agg ag ag ag addiddddiddiddd iddd tiotiotioitiotioottitiot nalnalnalnalnaallnallnana 151515155115151515’ ttt’ t’ t’ ttt RRo Ro Ro Ro Ro Roo Rooooo Ro OW)OW)OW)OW)WW)OWOOW)W))OW)W)


10’ Trail


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


104 Lots (118 Units)
28 Twinhome Lots (28 U)
14 Duplex Lots (28 U)
62 Single-Family Lots
4.12 Acres Parkland Dedication (no SWM / wetland)


Lilac Lane







6 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


along the primary routes into the neighborhood (i.e., 
Page Street, Orchid Avenue and backing up to Aak-
er Road), as well as a pocket area directly south of 
planned twinhome lots along Isham Street extension. 
Forty-two of the single-family lots are located west 
side of Page Street with the remaining twenty on the 
east side of Page Street 
 
Project Timing and Phasing
The project will be broken in 2-3 phases.  Phase 1 
includes lots abutting Lilac Lane, Orchid Avenue (west 
of Page Street) and Page Street (north of Orchid Ave-
nue). Construction on this phase is planned to begin in 
2023 with homes completed in Spring/Summer 2024.


Phase 1A will build Orchid Avenue to 4th Street, wet 
pond in Outlot 3, and the trail from Orchid Avenue to 
Isham Street. These improvements, as well as the du-
plex lots along Orchid Avenue, will be completed no 
later than Fall 2025 per the development agreement.  
It is very likely the remainder of the neighborhood will 
be built as part of Phase 1A. The intent is to have a 
fully built neighborhood by the end of 2025.


Neighborhood Character/Theme
Magnolia Springs subdivision will include single family, 
twin-homes, and duplexes buildings. 


Stormwater Management
There are two wet ponds for pre-treatment, one infil-
tration basin, and a swale median that will serve this 
development and manage off-site runoff.  The storm-
water management system is intended to control peak 
runoff rates and volumes for events ranging from the 
1-year through the 200-year event.  


A large off-site sub-watershed will convey through the 
site through a central median swale on Page Street 
at a depth of 10 feet with a 6-foot safety shelf behind 
the curb and 4:1 slopes to “V” bottom that will carry 
off-site water.  There are also ditches planned on the 
north side of Aaker Road on both sides of intersection 
with Page Street to carry overflow stormwater to the 
central swale median. We will work with the City staff 
during the entitlement process to identify the preferred 
landscaping treatment that allows for minimal mainte-
nance on annual basis.  


Natural Area & Open Space 
Natural Features 
Outlot 2 preserves (to the extent possible) woodlands 
around an existing wetland. A proposed trail corridor 
runs through the park and extends into Outlot 1, pro-
viding access west and to the north. 


Park/Open Space
Parks and Recreation Committee approved the park 
locations with interest in seeing the development meet 
the parkland dedication requirement and space for up 
to a 9,000 square foot playground. The development 
meets the parkland dedication requirement (i.e., 3.98 
acres required based on 118 units with 4.12 acres pro-
vided, excludes wetland and stormwater management 
areas in the park). The design of the park preserves 
the existing wetland and trees adjacent to the wetland 
outside of grading for roads and stormwater manage-
ment areas.  


Utilities
MSA is coordinating the water and sewer service with 
Stoughton Utilties.  The design required filling the 
center of the site to allow for gravity flow to the north, 
connecting to the existing sewer along Page Street 
near Isham Street.  A stubbed connection is shown to 
Aaker Road, understanding any future development 


Single-Family


Twin-homes







7City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


south will require a lift station and force main up to 
Dahli Drive along Page Street.  Water is looped in 
several sections within the development, including a 
stub to Aaker Road and through Outlot 1 to Isham 
Street. The developer will also upgrade approximate 
650-foot segment of 6-inch sewer interceptor in S. 
Page Street (W. Chicago Street to W. Broadway St.) 
to an 8-inch to accommodate the proposed Magnolia 
Springs Development.


Transportation
Streets
The neighborhood provides connections to the exist-
ing roadways at Page/Isham, Page/Aaker and Orchid 
Avenue / 4th (Taylor). Orchid Avenue is extended to 
the western edge of the development, providing for a 
future fourth access to the neighborhood. 


Wild Rose Way does not cross the swale median 
due to complications in slope and other factors with 
close proximity to other breaks in the central swale 
median; however, a mid-block sidewalk will be built 
between Wild Rose Way and Orchid Avenue.  


The eyebrow street in the southeast corner of the 
development includes a median (dedicated as right-
of-way), which provides access to three single-family 
lots and potentially one of the duplex units (Lot 94).  
Per discussions with City staff, sidewalk will only be 
built along the lot frontages (and not within the medi-
an). The eyebrow median will include low maintain-
ance landascaping while also being asethetic pleas-
ing.  As shown in the exhibit in the upper right, there 
will be shrub plantings outside of the planned utili-
ties with wood mulch in the center and gravel mulch 
along the edges.


There are three right-of-way (ROW) widths provid-
ed in the neighborhood based on the corresponding 
land uses and function of the roadway, as follows:


• 66-foot ROW: Lilac Lane and Orchid Avenue 
(east of Page Street)


• 60-foot ROW: Orchid Avenue (west of Page 
Street), Wild Rose Way, and Dahli Drive 


• 156-foot ROW: Page Street (south of Orchid Av-
enue), inclusive central swale median


Pedestrian Connections
All streets will have pedestrian accommodations 
(sidewalk or path) along both sides of the street with 
a grass terrace of varying widths (typically 7-8 feet 
wide).  One exception is along Dahli Drive crossing 
of the median where sidewalk will be installed only 
on the north side of the street. A mid-block sidewalk 
will be installed between Wild Rose Way and Orchid 
Avenue. 


Paved multi-use paths will be built along 4th Street 
(Taylor Lane) from Isham Street to Orchid Avenue, 
through the park, and within a 40-ft trail corridor* (in 
Outlot 1) to the northwestern corner of the develop-
ment. A trail connection will also connect the trail in 
Outlot 1 to Clover Lane.


* The trail corridor utilizes a 12-foot utility easement north of the 
development to meet the desired 50 feet of wildlife corridor width.  
The lot depths are near minimums to allow for homes without an 
alley, providing for affordable lots. Any further reduction of depth 
(to increase the trail corridor) would make it unfeasible to provide 
the number of affordable lots as shown.  


Management and Maintenance
The on-going management and maintenance of ar-
eas within private lot boundaries will be the respon-
sibility of site owners. Maintenance, care, upkeep, 
snow removal, etc. of sidewalks within the public 
right of way will be the responsibility of adjacent land-
owner, including the mid-block sidewalk (likely only 


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L4


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4


(3) GIN AUT


(3) CEL PRA


(2) QUE MUE


(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL


Feet


80400


DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22


COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13


GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49


GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15


LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12


PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19


QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16


ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18


ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13


ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20


SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11


Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13


Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14


(1) GYM DIO


(3) ULM AME


(1) ZEL SER


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


(5) Vl


(2) COR COL


(3) Cf


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LIR TUL


MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT


(5) Am


(5) Am


(3) Cf


Eyebrow  Median Landscaping







8 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


the lot owners on one side of the outlot).  Improve-
ments in dedicated right-of-way and outlots (inclusive 
of trails, utilities, roadway, stormwater basins, etc.) 
will be the responsibility of the City of Stoughton and 
Stoughton Utilties once dedication has been accept-
ed. A Developer’s Agreement will be negotiated with 
the City to establish the assignment of these respon-
sibilities. 







Appendix: 1City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Appendix: 


Map with Owners within 300 feet (P.3)


Street Tree Plan (P.4-9) - Informational Only


General Development Plan (GDP)


Magnolia Spring Magnolia Spring 
NeighborhoodNeighborhood







Appendix: 2 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


(PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)







Appendix: 3City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Properties within 300 feet


Taylor
Ln


Aaker Rd


S
 P


a
ge


 S
t


S
Fo


ur
th


St


Aspen Rd


Taylor
Ln


Isham St


Aaker Rd


MARTIN W
LAMERS


REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E


JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,


RANEY E JR
& SHARON A


ADAM RINCKEY


LARRY L
SCHAUFF


STOUGHTON,
CITY OF


DIANE L
KIRBY


SHERRY
L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND


BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J


DROGSVOLD


KAREN M
GERMANN


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


KENDALL L
GULSETH


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


ANITA C
HALVERSON


MARY V
ONSAGER


RONALD
WALTER WICK


MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS


DEBORAH E
LAURENCE


RONALD
L BUSS


DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


WARREN H
BREWSTER


JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES


DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM


M BREUCH
DAVID E


RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO


TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND


KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,


KENT J


DALE
TEIGENSHERRY


L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ARLIN O
TEIGEN


DARRYL G
WIENEKE


RUBEN
GONZALEZ


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft


0 100 200 Feet


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


66
9\


21
66


90
00


\G
IS\


8_
Pr


o_
Ho


str
aw


se
r_D


ev
elo


pm
en


t_S
to


rm
wa


te
r.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 4
/1


0/
20


23


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Dane County Aerial (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin


Magnolia Springs Subdivision


Current Property
Owners


Taylor
Ln


Aaker Rd


S
 P


a
ge


 S
t


S
Fo


ur
th


St


Aspen Rd


Taylor
Ln


Isham St


Aaker Rd


MARTIN W
LAMERS


REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E


JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,


RANEY E JR
& SHARON A


ADAM RINCKEY


LARRY L
SCHAUFF


STOUGHTON,
CITY OF


DIANE L
KIRBY


SHERRY
L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND


BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J


DROGSVOLD


KAREN M
GERMANN


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


KENDALL L
GULSETH


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


ANITA C
HALVERSON


MARY V
ONSAGER


RONALD
WALTER WICK


MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS


DEBORAH E
LAURENCE


RONALD
L BUSS


DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


WARREN H
BREWSTER


JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES


DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM


M BREUCH
DAVID E


RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO


TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND


KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,


KENT J


DALE
TEIGENSHERRY


L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ARLIN O
TEIGEN


DARRYL G
WIENEKE


RUBEN
GONZALEZ


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft


0 100 200 Feet


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


66
9\


21
66


90
00


\G
IS\


8_
Pr


o_
Ho


str
aw


se
r_D


ev
elo


pm
en


t_S
to


rm
wa


te
r.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 4
/1


0/
20


23


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Dane County Aerial (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin


Magnolia Springs Subdivision


Current Property
Owners


Taylor
Ln


Aaker Rd


S
 P


a
ge


 S
t


S
Fo


ur
th


St


Aspen Rd


Taylor
Ln


Isham St


Aaker Rd


MARTIN W
LAMERS


REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E


JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,


RANEY E JR
& SHARON A


ADAM RINCKEY


LARRY L
SCHAUFF


STOUGHTON,
CITY OF


DIANE L
KIRBY


SHERRY
L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND


BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J


DROGSVOLD


KAREN M
GERMANN


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


KENDALL L
GULSETH


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


GREGORY JM
ONSAGER


ANITA C
HALVERSON


MARY V
ONSAGER


RONALD
WALTER WICK


MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS


DEBORAH E
LAURENCE


RONALD
L BUSS


DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


WARREN H
BREWSTER


JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES


DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM


M BREUCH
DAVID E


RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO


TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND


KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,


KENT J


DALE
TEIGENSHERRY


L LEICK


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC


ARLIN O
TEIGEN


DARRYL G
WIENEKE


RUBEN
GONZALEZ


SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC


Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft


0 100 200 Feet


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


66
9\


21
66


90
00


\G
IS\


8_
Pr


o_
Ho


str
aw


se
r_D


ev
elo


pm
en


t_S
to


rm
wa


te
r.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 4
/1


0/
20


23


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Dane County Aerial (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin


Magnolia Springs Subdivision


Current Property
Owners







Appendix: 4 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L1
OVERALL LANDSCAPE.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


ISHAM ST.


LILAC LANE


ORCHID ANENUE


WILLOW WAY


DAHLIA DRIVE


AAKER RD.


Feet


160800


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L3


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L2


NOTES: (NOTES APPLY TO SHEETS L1-L4)


1. BIOSWALE SEED MIX TO BE " DETENTION BASIN -
BIOSWALE" SEED MIX FROM "PRAIRIE NURSERY"
OR EQUIVALENT.


2. ALL WOOD MULCH TO BE DOUBLE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH.


3. ALL TREES TO BE PLANTED A MINIMUM 10-FEET
FROM ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.


4. NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN VISION
TRIANGLES AS NOTED IN THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS.


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


4TH ST


S PAG
E ST.


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4


LANDSCAPING PLAN
 - Informational Only







Appendix: 5City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L1
OVERALL LANDSCAPE.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


ISHAM ST.


LILAC LANE


ORCHID ANENUE


WILLOW WAY


DAHLIA DRIVE


AAKER RD.


Feet


160800


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L3


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L2


NOTES: (NOTES APPLY TO SHEETS L1-L4)


1. BIOSWALE SEED MIX TO BE " DETENTION BASIN -
BIOSWALE" SEED MIX FROM "PRAIRIE NURSERY"
OR EQUIVALENT.


2. ALL WOOD MULCH TO BE DOUBLE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH.


3. ALL TREES TO BE PLANTED A MINIMUM 10-FEET
FROM ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.


4. NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN VISION
TRIANGLES AS NOTED IN THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS.


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


4TH ST


S PAG
E ST.


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4


LANDSCAPING PLAN







Appendix: 6 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L2
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L2


(2) GIN AUT


(1) GYM DIO


(1) GYM DIO


(1) CEL PRA


(2) QUE MUE


(8) SYR IVO


(2) PLA ACE (2) GIN AUT


(2) GIN AUT


(1) CEL PRA


(2) SYR IVO


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


Feet


80400


(1) GYM DIO


(1) GIN AUT


(1) ZEL SER (1) PLA ACE


(1) QUE MUE


(1) ZEL SER


(1) COR COL


(2) PLA ACE


(1) GYM DIO


(3) PLA ACE


(2) GIN AUT
(3) ULM AME


(2) GYM DIO


(2) QUE MUE(1) COR COL
(2) ZEL SER


(3) GIN AUT


(2) CEL PRA(2) ULM AME


(2) GIN AUT


(1) LIR TUL


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


(2) COR COL
(2) ULM AME


(2) CEL PRA


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


(1) QUE MUE
(2) CEL PRA


(2) GYM DIO


(2) QUE MUE


(3) Vl


(3) Cf


(4) Cf


(3) Vl


(3) Vl


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LANDSCAPING PLAN - PHASE 1
 - Informational Only







Appendix: 7City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L2
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L2


(2) GIN AUT


(1) GYM DIO


(1) GYM DIO


(1) CEL PRA


(2) QUE MUE


(8) SYR IVO


(2) PLA ACE (2) GIN AUT


(2) GIN AUT


(1) CEL PRA


(2) SYR IVO


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


Feet


80400


(1) GYM DIO


(1) GIN AUT


(1) ZEL SER (1) PLA ACE


(1) QUE MUE


(1) ZEL SER


(1) COR COL


(2) PLA ACE


(1) GYM DIO


(3) PLA ACE


(2) GIN AUT
(3) ULM AME


(2) GYM DIO


(2) QUE MUE(1) COR COL
(2) ZEL SER


(3) GIN AUT


(2) CEL PRA(2) ULM AME


(2) GIN AUT


(1) LIR TUL


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


(2) COR COL
(2) ULM AME


(2) CEL PRA


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


(1) QUE MUE
(2) CEL PRA


(2) GYM DIO


(2) QUE MUE


(3) Vl


(3) Cf


(4) Cf


(3) Vl


(3) Vl


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LANDSCAPING PLAN - PHASE 1







Appendix: 8 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L4


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4


(3) GIN AUT


(3) CEL PRA


(2) QUE MUE


(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL


Feet


80400


DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22


COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13


GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49


GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15


LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12


PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19


QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16


ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18


ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13


ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20


SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11


Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13


Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14


(1) GYM DIO


(3) ULM AME


(1) ZEL SER


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


(5) Vl


(2) COR COL


(3) Cf


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LIR TUL


MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT


(5) Am


(5) Am


(3) Cf


LANDSCAPING PLAN - ENLARGEMENTS
 - Informational Only







Appendix: 9City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


L4


   DRAWN BY:            EMW


   DESIGNED BY:       EMW


   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: .


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4


(3) GIN AUT


(3) CEL PRA


(2) QUE MUE


(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL


Feet


80400


DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22


COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13


GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49


GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15


LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12


PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19


QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16


ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18


ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13


ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20


SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY


Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11


Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13


Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14


(1) GYM DIO


(3) ULM AME


(1) ZEL SER


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


LEGEND


BIOSWALE SEED MIX


PROPOSED WOOD MULCH


PROPOSED WET BASIN


PROPOSED DRY BASIN


(5) Vl


(2) COR COL


(3) Cf


PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)


LIR TUL


MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT


(5) Am


(5) Am


(3) Cf


LANDSCAPING PLAN - ENLARGEMENTS







Aaker Rd


Isham St


EXISTING ZONING MAP


RH







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


May 2, 2023 
 
MSA Professional Services 
Stephen Tremlett 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI. 53593 
 
 
Dear Mr. Tremlett; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-GDP - Planned Development – General 
Development Plan for Lots 1-18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 66-71, 75-82, 94-97, and 104 in the Magnolia 
Springs Subdivision.  A public hearing is scheduled for May 8, 2023.  (Documents dated May 1, 
2023) The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Done by staff 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Provided 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; Provided 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided.   
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided. 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and w hich will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: N/A 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: N/A 
c) Bulk exemptions: See below 
d) Landscaping exceptions: N/A 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A 


 
The following are the list of requested exceptions based on the TR-6 Two 
Family Residential District and PD requirements:   


• Minimum building rear setback of 20 feet (30 feet typical); 
• No Specific Implementation Plan Review. 


 
D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 


information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  
a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 


location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  
b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; None provided 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and Provided 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. Provided 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  


 
 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA





[- 3 -] 
 


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\magnolia springs\general development plan\updated gdp-sip 5.1.23\gdp-sip review 5.2.23.doc 












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Urban Service Area Amend US 51 and CTH B Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of May 23, 2023. 
 
Urban Service Area Amendment – US 51 and CTH B Development. 
This Urban Service Area Amendment is proposed for an approximately 276 acre area located on the 
far northwest side of the City, east and west of USH 51.  The resolution and USAA information are 
provided.  A recommendation to the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





C:\Users\mstacey\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\MFD04NCZ\STI Holdings USAA Resolution.doc 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


A Resolution finding that the expansion of the Stoughton Urban Service Area to 


include approximately 276 acres located on the far northwest side of the City, east and west of USH 51, 


is consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan and directs staff to submit a request for 


expanding the Stoughton Urban Service Area to include said lands. 


 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-  -2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 23, 2023 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, the City's Urban Service Area is the area in which denser, urban development is 


permitted and utilities such as City sewer and water are allowed; and 


WHEREAS, the City expects urban development to occur within an area located along USH 51 (both 


sides) north of Rutland Dunn Town Line Road on the far northwest side of Stoughton as outlined in City of 


Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 And CTH B Developments (“Amendment”); and 


WHEREAS, the Amendment area adds approximately 276 acres; and 


WHEREAS, the City has planned for expected urban growth within the proposed urban service 


expansion area; and 


WHEREAS, the City's Comprehensive Plan designates this area as part of the Northwest Planned Mixed Use 


Area and the Northwest Planned Neighborhood and development planned for this area is consistent with this Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Amendment will be consistent with all applicable land-use and environmental 


protection regulations and requirements; and 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission recommends approval of expanding the Stoughton Urban Service 


Area to include the Amendment at its May 8, 2023 meeting; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton Common Council finds that the 


expansion of the Urban Service Area to include the approximately 276  acres located on the far northwest side of the 


City, east and west of USH 51, is consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan and furthermore 


directs staff to submit a request to expand the Stoughton Urban Service Area to include said property as outlined in 


City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 And CTH B Developments. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton hereby requests that the Capital Area 


Regional Planning Commission consider and approve the requested amendment to the Urban Service Area. 


 


 


 


 







C:\Users\mstacey\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\MFD04NCZ\STI Holdings USAA Resolution.doc 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


City of Stoughton 
2023 URBAN SERVICE AREA 
AMENDMENT 
USH 51 AND CTH B DEVELOPMENTS 


May 04, 2023 - DRAFT 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for the Capital Area Regional Plan Commission and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
By the City of Stoughton and MSA Professional Services, Inc. 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 1 of 14  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2020 URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT  


USH 51 AND CTH B DEVELOPMENTS 


CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................................. 1 


1.0 PLAN CONSISTENCY .................................................................................................................................. 3 
1.1 Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan ................................................................................................................. 3 


1.2 Neighborhood Plan ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 


1.3 Describe the Need for the Addition to the Urban Service Area ................................................................................. 5 


2.0 INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION .................................................................................................... 6 
2.1 Notification of Adjacent Local Governmental Units ....................................................................................................... 6 


2.2 Adjacent Local Governmental Unit(s) Objections or Support of the Proposal ............................................................... 6 


3.0 LAND USE .................................................................................................................................................. 6 
3.1 Map of the Proposed USAA Boundary and Existing Rights of Way (ROW) ..................................................................... 6 


3.2 Tables of Land Use Acreage and Number of Housing Units ............................................................................................ 6 


3.3 Map of Existing Land Uses ............................................................................................................................................... 7 


3.4 Quantity and Type of Housing Units ............................................................................................................................... 7 


4.0 NATURAL RESOURCES ............................................................................................................................... 7 
4.1 Natural Resource Areas ................................................................................................................................................... 7 


4.2 Public Outlots for Parks and Stormwater Management Facilities .................................................................................. 8 


4.3 Existing Environmental Corridors .................................................................................................................................... 8 


4.4 Proposed Environmental Corridors ................................................................................................................................. 8 


4.5 Minimum Environmental Corridors Criteria Requirements ............................................................................................ 8 


5.0 UTILITIES & STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ............................................................................................. 9 
5.1 Proposed Sanitary Sewer Extension for the USAA .......................................................................................................... 9 


5.2 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Wastewater Flow for the USAA ...................................................................... 9 


5.3 Current Average Daily Flow for the Interceptor Sewer and the Wastewater Plant ..................................................... 10 


5.4 Wastewater Treatment Plant / Interceptor Sewer Capacity to Serve the USAA .......................................................... 10 


5.5 Proposed Public Water Supply/Distribution System Extension for the Proposed USAA .............................................. 11 


5.6 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand for the USAA ............................................................ 11 


5.7 Current Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand .............................................................................................. 11 


5.8 Current Capacity of the Water System ......................................................................................................................... 12 


5.9 Proposed Stormwater Management Standards and Best Management Practices ...................................................... 12 


5.10 Stormwater Facility Management ................................................................................................................................. 14 


 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 2 of 14  


 


APPENDICES 


A City of Stoughton Resolution 2023-XX 


B  Maps 


C Adjacent Government Notice Letter 


D Wetland Delineation Report  


E Nonfederal Wetland Exemption Determination 


 
 


  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 3 of 14  


INTRODUCTION 


The City of Stoughton is seeking an urban service area amendment (USAA) to add approximately 276.4 
total acres to its urban service area. The amendment area is located east and west of USH 51 and south 
of County Road B. Additionally, 7.81 acres of land east of USH 51 within this proposed development is 
already within the urban service area. See Map 3.1. 


Currently STI Holdings, Inc. is working through the City entitlement process to develop roughly 
188.97 acres on the east side of USH 51. The remaining lands (on the west side of UHS 51) have not 
gone through any City review; however, this amendment is based on land use and road network 
concepts from the property owner and developer. The assumed acreage by land use is illustrated in 
this amendment for both sides of USH 51 to understand future utility service and infrastructure 
needs. 


Of the 276.4 acres of land within the proposed USAA, approximately 63.81 acres are expected to be 
developed for residential uses and 65.24 acres is anticipated for commercial uses. There are 9 
existing residential parcels (covering 6.3 acres) currently in the Town of Dunn (west of USH 51) and 
the Town of Pleasant Springs (east of USH 51) that are included in the amendment area, but do not 
have anticipated land use changes or future development plans. A 31-acre undeveloped town parcel 
on the west side of USH 51 may be annexed in the near future for a proposed residential 
development. 


The proposed amendment area has no mapped environmental corridors per Dane County or 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) data. TRC Environmental Corporation 
performed a wetland delineation in May 2022 that identified four wetland areas. A request for 
review of the wetland status has been submitted to the Army Corp of Engineers. Pending that 
determination, approval to modify or fill a subset of the identified wetlands will be requested.  


 
The City of Stoughton’s most recent urban service area expansion requests were in 2020 (36 developable acres, 
residential and commercial use), 2021 (37.9 developable acres of multi-family and commercial use), and 2022 
(17.2 developable acres for planned industrial use, and a separate development with 35.5 acres of commercial 
and mixed-density residential use). 


 
1.0 PLAN CONSISTENCY 
1.1 Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 


The City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, as most recently updated in July 2017, can be found on the 
City’s website at the following link: https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/vertical/sites/%7B801AC7AB-1155-
4D50-B8C6-60A370EC007F%7D/uploads/Stoughton_Comprehensive_Plan_-
_Final_Adopted_Plan_(with_maps_and_Apps)_-_7.11.17.pdf. On April 25th, 2023 the City of Stoughton 
amended the Comprehensive Plan to meet the desired development plan for the USA amendment area 
east of USH 51. The Comprehensive Plan includes specific recommendations for lands within this 
proposed urban service area amendment including areas identified as Northwest Planned Mixed Use 
Area and Northwest Planned Neighborhood. The following includes a brief description of each future 
land use category: 


 



https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/vertical/sites/%7B801AC7AB-1155-4D50-B8C6-60A370EC007F%7D/uploads/Stoughton_Comprehensive_Plan_-_Final_Adopted_Plan_(with_maps_and_Apps)_-_7.11.17.pdf

https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/vertical/sites/%7B801AC7AB-1155-4D50-B8C6-60A370EC007F%7D/uploads/Stoughton_Comprehensive_Plan_-_Final_Adopted_Plan_(with_maps_and_Apps)_-_7.11.17.pdf

https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/vertical/sites/%7B801AC7AB-1155-4D50-B8C6-60A370EC007F%7D/uploads/Stoughton_Comprehensive_Plan_-_Final_Adopted_Plan_(with_maps_and_Apps)_-_7.11.17.pdf





 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 4 of 14  


Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area: 
“…planned to contain a mixture of commercial uses designed to supply the day-to-day goods and 
services for residents living in both Stoughton and surrounding areas. Senior housing and smaller-scale 
office development would also be appropriate for this area. Potential commercial uses might include a 
deli, coffee shop, specialty retail, dry cleaners, drug store, restaurant, and grocery store. Development 
in this mixed-use center could include first floor retail, accented by upper story office space and 
residential units, and/or a mix of uses and buildings within the same development. Overall, it is 
recommended that, to the extent possible, this mixed use center be planned to create compact, 
pedestrian-friendly clusters of complementary businesses, housing, and civic uses.” 


Northwest Planned Neighborhood: 
There are several Planned Neighborhood areas on the City’s northwest side that generally straddle CTH 
B. The part of this area located immediately west of Sandhill Elementary School is part of the STI 
Holdings, Inc. property. The current plan for this property includes commercial / mixed use development 
along the USH 51 corridor, a large community park and residential development adjacent to existing 
neighborhoods to the south and east; this area is shown on this Plan’s Future Land Use Map as Planned 
Neighborhood. The STI Holdings, Inc. development plan recommends the following for the residential portion 
of the development:  
• The recommended residential density should be between 4 and 8 du/ac for single family detached 


development, 10 to 15 du/ac for two family and townhome development, 15 – 30 du/ac for multi-family 
development, and 25 to 35 du/ac for senior housing development.  


• Internal street connections should connect the Planned Neighborhood to the commercial/mixed use area 
to the west, Greenbriar Drive CTH B, Kriedeman Drive, and Kings Lynn Road. Oakridge Way will 
accommodate a mid-block pedestrian access point, or street extension to Greenbriar Drive. 


• The Planned Neighborhood should include bicycle/pedestrian connection to the commercial/mixed use 
area to the west, the community park, Sandhill Elementary School, and other destinations.  


The proposed development is consistent with this description.  


o City Council action to affirm support for this USAA is anticipated in 2023. 


o Zoning and land division review processes for the east side of USH 51 are expected to occur in 
the Summer of 2023. 


 
1.2 Neighborhood Plan 


A neighborhood plan had been adopted in 2006 for the east side of USH 51 (i.e., Linnerud Detailed 
Neighborhood Plan); however, the plan was based on a potential big box development that located 
elsewhere in the community. While the proposed development incorporates many of the same 
principles and general uses, the City of Stoughton detached the previously adopted neighborhood plan 
from the Comprehensive Plan in the April 2023 amendment. There is no detailed neighborhood plan 
for the west side of USH 51.  


 
  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 5 of 14  


1.3 Describe the Need for the Addition to the Urban Service Area 
The City of Stoughton’s most recent urban service area amendments were in 2011, 2020, 2021 and 2022. 
 
The 2011 amendment was for an area west of USH 51 for 75 developable acres to be a mix of single family, 
townhome, multifamily and commercial development. This area is now platted as Kettle Park 
West; a majority of the commercial space is now built out (Walmart, Tru by Hilton hotel, Kwik Trip, 
McFarland State Bank, etc.) and the one multifamily site is now developed as a senior living complex. 
The remainder of the development, including a handful of twinhome lots and the rest small and mid-size 
single-family lots, is in early stages of construction and lot development. 
 
The 2020 amendment brought in 82 acres into the urban service area adjacent to USH 51 and south of 
Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd, inclusive of 70 acres of new development in the City of Stoughton and 12 
acres of existing residential in the Towns of Rutland and Dunkirk. The new subdivision (51 West 
Subdivision) is a mixed-use neighborhood that includes 13 acres of commercial and approximately 40 
acres of mixed residential lots (i.e., 4 multifamily lots, 5 duplex lots, 3 condo lots, and 9 single-family 
lots). 


The 2021 amendment was for an area west of USH 51 which include a proposed new development of 
about 15.6 acres for commercial use, 19.7 acres for multifamily and duplex use, 2.6 acres for single-
family use, and 25.2 acres for green space/open space/stormwater management.  
 
The first 2022 amendment (Business Park-Emmi Roth) brought in approximately 18.5 acres of land for planned 
industrial and commercial use, including approximately 0.5 acres of existing road right of way, and 0.8 acres of 
proposed environmental corridors for stormwater management. 
 
The second 2022 amendment (Magnolia Springs Subdivision) brought an additional 32.5 acres into the urban 
service area, including 18.8 acres of developable land for mixed-density residential use, 9.4 acres of road right-
of-way, and 5.4 acres of green space. Approximately 5.9 acres of the 38.4 acres of annexed land were already 
within the Stoughton urban service area boundary. 
 
Census data show a 2010 population of 12,611 in 5,133 households (2.46 people/household). The 2020 
Census population estimate of 13,173 indicates an increase of 562 people and demand for about 200 
additional housing units since 2010. The 2017 Comprehensive Plan cites Department of Administration 
population and household projections, estimating a continued decline in average household size, about 
5,000 new residents by 2040, and demand for about 2,400 housing units. 
 
The experience of the developments enabled by 2011, 2020, 2021 and 2022 USA amendments, reinforced by 
broader market trends and developer feedback, is there continues to be strong demand for new housing 
of all types in Dane County. The City of Stoughton supports developments that provide housing diversity 
supporting varying incomes and ages. While there is interest in expanding density within the City, it is 
also important to consider interests of citizens to live in an area within Dane County that has its own 
unique character separate from the City of Madison. The developer continues to balance this with the 
importance to provide sustainable development within the City of Stoughton.  


 
  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 6 of 14  


2.0 INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 
 


2.1 Notification of Adjacent Local Governmental Units 


There are two adjacent units of government within the amendment area: Town of Dunn and Town of Pleasant 
Springs. There have been informal communications with each town. Upon approval of this application by City 
Council, a copy will be sent to each town requesting their formal comments on the proposed amendment. 
Copies of the transmittal letters are attached as Appendix C. 


 
2.2 Adjacent Local Governmental Unit(s) Objections or Support of the Proposal 


As noted in Section 2.1, a copy of the proposed amendment application will have been sent to the 
adjacent towns for their comments following City Council approval of the application. Upon receipt of 
those comments they will be forwarded to CARPC staff. At present we are aware of no objections to 
the proposed amendment. 


 
3.0 LAND USE 


 
3.1 Map of the Proposed USAA Boundary and Existing Rights of Way (ROW) 


The proposed amendment area includes 276.42 acres of private parcels and 49.59 acres of public rights-of-way. 
See Map 3.1 


 


3.2 Tables of Land Use Acreage and Number of Housing Units 


Table 3.2 is based on the proposed development east of USH 51 shown in Map 3.2a and the 
development sketches shown in Map 3.2b. Details of the developments (such as precise road 
alignments, lot configurations, and precise sizes and locations of utilities and stormwater management 
features) will change as the proposals go through the plat approval process. However, the mix of land 
uses and the general layouts are not anticipated to change substantially.  


 
  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 7 of 14  


Table 3.2: Urban Service Amendment Area Data 
 


* includes 9 existing Town properties 
** assumes a 1-acre park on the west side of USH 51 
 


3.3 Map of Existing Land Uses 


Existing land uses are accurately depicted in the Existing Land Use Map from the 2017 Comprehensive Plan. An 
Excerpt of this map is provided, see Map 3.3.  


 
3.4 Quantity and Type of Housing Units 


A total of 1,219 new housing units are proposed (plus, 9 existing homes) in the amendment area, including 
single-family, duplex, and multifamily units. See Table 3.2. The multifamily designation tentatively includes 
1,156 units and the two-family designation includes 20 units (could be duplexes and/or townhomes).  


 
4.0 NATURAL RESOURCES 


 
4.1 Natural Resource Areas 


The proposed amendment area does not include any of the following natural resources, and no map is 
provided: water bodies, floodplains, areas of unique vegetation or geology, highly erodible soils, or 
groundwater recharge areas.  


Wetlands: A wetland delineation report in May 2022 identified a total of four wetland areas, totaling 9 acres. 
See Map 4.1A.  


Table 3.2: Urban Service Area Amendment Land Use Acreages 


Proposed Land Use 


Acres in  Acres in 
Existing USA # of 


Housing 
Units 


USA Amendment  
New 


Development 
Existing 


Development 
Environmental 
Corridor 


New 
Development 


Single Family Residential  6.72 6.33*  - 5.62 45* 


Two-Family Residential  3.72  - -   20 


Multi-Family Residential  53.37  - - - 1,156 


Residential Total 63.81  6.33  - 5.62  1,221 
Commercial  65.24  - - -  
Industrial 0 - - -  
Institutional  0 - - -  
Street ROW  48.03  -  - 1.56   
Parks** 34.11  - 34.11  -  
Stormwater Management 
(SWM) 62.76  - 62.76  - 


 
Other Open Space  2.45  - 2.45  -  
TOTAL 276.4  6.33  99.32 7.18   







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 8 of 14  


• Wetland 1 (W-1): This is a 2.89 acre wetland consisting of a partially farmed Fresh (Wet) Meadow plant 
community. 


• Wetland 2 (W-2): This is a 0.39 acre wetland consisting of a farmed Fresh (Wet) Meadow plant community. 


• Wetland 3 (W-3): This is a 0.81 acre wetland consisting of a farmed Fresh (Wet) Meadow plant community. 


• Wetland 4 (W-4): This is a 0.73 acre wetland consisting of a farmed Fresh (Wet) Meadow plant community. 


Woodlands 
There is an area of woodlands in the northwest corner of the amendment area. See Map 4.1B. 


Contours and Steep Slopes 
The southeast corner of the site has notable elevation change, which will impact some development 
patterns. However, there is no area with steep slopes (i.e., 20% or greater) that would restrict developing 
the area. See Map 4.1C. 


Soils Types 
See Map 4.1D. 


 
4.2 Public Outlots for Parks and Stormwater Management Facilities 


All park and stormwater management will be located on public outlots. These are shown in green in 
Map 3.2a for the east side of USH 51. There will be public outlots on the west side of USH 51 that 
will be determined through future entitlement processes for the area by the City of Stoughton, 
assuming all lands are in the City at the time of the development submittal. 


 
4.3 Existing Environmental Corridors  


There are no existing environmental corridors mapped in the proposed USAA, per the CARPC online mapping 
tool. 


 
4.4 Proposed Environmental Corridors  


Proposed Environmental Corridors will include all of the outlots, to be used for stormwater management and 
public park purposes. These are shown in green in Map 4.4. The final boundaries of the proposed 
environmental corridors will be confirmed at the time land division. 


 
4.5 Minimum Environmental Corridors Criteria Requirements 


The proposed Environmental Corridors meet the minimum requirements including but not limited 
to:  


1) Wetlands under WDNR Jurisdiction;  


2) Vegetative wetland and shoreland buffers;  


3) 100-year floodplains and floodways;  


4) Steep wooded slopes (12% or greater);  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 9 of 14  


5)Navigable water bodies designated by WDNR;  


6) Non navigable streams designated by WDNR;  


7)Open drainageways;  


8)Public Lands and Conservancy areas excluding isolated (small) neighborhood parks;  


9)Proposed public parks and conservancy areas, excluding isolated (small) neighborhood parks;  


10) Areas with problematic soils, unique geological features, and critical recharge areas;  


11) Archaeological sites on the National Register;  


12) Endangered and sensitive habitats as determined by WDNR;  


13)Stormwater facilities;  


14)Known and documented significant or sensitive groundwater recharge areas.  


 
5.0 UTILITIES & STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
5.1 Proposed Sanitary Sewer Extension for the USAA 


The land within the proposed urban service area amendment (USAA) will ultimately be served by a new 
sewer extended north from an existing 18-inch interceptor sewer at the north end of Kings Lynn Road. 
Sewer service to parts of the development area will require a lift station, but parts of the southeast area 
of the development will be served by gravity sewer. Development on the west side of US51 will also be 
served by the lift station. A small existing lift station on Oakridge Way servicing 12 homes is planned to 
be eliminated by a gravity sewer extension from the new development. The interceptor is anticipated 
to be extended as an 18” sanitary sewer to the discharge of the proposed lift station. The sewers and 
lift station within the development area will be sized to serve future development beyond the USAA. 


All sewers connecting to the interceptor within the proposed development are anticipated to range in 
size from 8-inches to 15-inches in diameter. The forcemain will be sized for the anticipated future flows 
of the lift station. All gravity sewer lines will extend to the plat edges wherever streets extend to the 
plat edge. The developer will be responsible for installation of all sewer facilities based on the final plat 
approval and development agreement. 


 
5.2 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Wastewater Flow for the USAA 


The estimated flow rate is based on the expected flow rates of 1,500 gallons per day per acre for 
commercial use and 100 gallons per person per day for residential use. A peaking factor of 2.5 for 
commercial development and 4.0 for residential development results in an estimated peak flow of 
1.695 cfs from the USAA.  


  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 10 of 14  


 


Table 5.3 - Average and Peak Wastewater Flow Rates for the Proposed USAA 
Land Use Metrics Average 


Flows 
(GPD) 


Average 
Flows 
(cfs) 


Peaking 
Factor 


Peak 
Flow 
(cfs) 


Commercial  1500 
GPD/acre 


65.24 
(w/HQ) 
acres 


 86,055 0.151 2.5 0.378 


New SF 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 


44 
units* 


2.8 
people/unit 12,040 0.019 4 0.075 


Duplex 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 20 units 2.1 


people/unit 4,200 0.006 4 0.026 


MF 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 


1,156 
units 


1.7 
people/unit 196,520 0.304 4 1.216 


Total    298,815  0.462  1.695 
  * includes 9 existing Town properties 
 


5.3 Current Average Daily Flow for the Interceptor Sewer and the Wastewater Plant  


All areas of the proposed USAA flow to existing sanitary sewer on Kings Lynn Road. Based on the 2004 
study of the Kings Lynn interceptor the existing capacity of the 18” sanitary sewer is 3.93 cfs. It should 
be noted that Stoughton Utilities prefers that sewers operate at no more than 80% of the 
maximum capacity, which limits the interceptor capacity at 3.14 cfs. The estimated current 
peak flow in the Kings Lynn Road interceptor immediately upstream of Jackson Street is 1.33 
cfs. The estimated peak flow in the Kings Lynn Road interceptor immediately upstream of 
Jackson Street including full development of the proposed USAA is 2.71 cfs. The estimated 
peak flow in the Kings Lynn Road interceptor immediately upstream of Jackson Street including 
full development of the proposed USAA and future sewer service areas beyond the proposed USAA is 
4.06 cfs. The ultimate peak flow for the proposed USAA area is estimated at 1.648 cfs being well under 
the existing capacity of the 18” sanitary sewer.  


The Stoughton wastewater treatment plant has a total design average flow capacity of 1.65 mgd. The 
current average daily flow is approximately 1.15 mgd, per the 2021 CMAR.  
 


5.4 Wastewater Treatment Plant / Interceptor Sewer Capacity to Serve the USAA  


Full development of the USAA is expected to generate an additional peak wastewater flow rate of 1.695 
cfs in the existing sewers (see Table 5.3). The estimated total future peak flow rate in the existing sewer 
on Kings Lynn Road is 2.71 cfs, being approximately 69% of the maximum design pipe capacity of 3.93 
cfs of the Kings Lynn Road interceptor.  


Although the Kings Lynn Road interceptor appears to have sufficient capacity to serve the proposed 
USAA, the City of Stoughton will need to carefully evaluate the size of and land use within future USAA's 
to the north and west of the proposed USAA or consider upgrades to the interceptor. No other sewers 
or interceptors downstream of Kings Lynn Road were evaluated. 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 11 of 14  


The difference in design capacity (1.65 mgd) and current flows (1.15 mgd) for the Stoughton 
wastewater treatment plant is approximately 0.50 mgd. The estimated flows from the proposed USAA 
(including recently amendments for 51 West (91,790 GPD), Magnolia Springs (28,840 GPD) and Stone 
Crest (Full Buildout 87,224 GPD)) is anticipated to utilize 0.51 mgd. Stoughton Utilities recognizes the 
potential need to increase plant capacity as these new developments come online and to support 
additional future development. 
 


5.5 Proposed Public Water Supply/Distribution System Extension for the Proposed USAA 


The portion of the amendment area on the easterly side of USH 51 will be served by connecting to a 10-
inch watermain at the intersection of Nygaard Street and Greenbriar Drive and extending it east and 
north throughout the development. Connections to existing 10-inch water mains on Kriedeman Drive 
and Kings Lynn Road will also be made. The new water main connecting Oakridge Way to Greenbriar 
Drive will be 8-inch diameter, but all other water mains will be 10-inch diameter. A 10-inch water main 
will also be extended to the development from Lincoln Avenue west along county B. The portion of the 
amendment area on the westerly side of USH 51 will be served by extending a 10-inch watermain north 
from the Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road / Oak Opening Drive intersection which will be looped to the 
watermain on the easterly side of USH 51 as shown with a crossing of USH 51 in Map 5.1. The developer 
will be responsible for installation of all watermain facilities within the plat, based on the final plat 
approval and development agreement.  


 
5.6 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand for the USAA 


The estimated flow rate is based on a typical expected commercial flow rate of 1,500 gallons per acre 
per day and a typical expected residential flow rate of 100 gpd. Using these figures, the 65.24 acres of 
commercial use will require average daily water of 97,860 gpd and a peak of 10,194 gallons per hour 
(peaking factor of 2.5). The 1,219 new residential units will require average daily water of 213,040 gpd 
and a peak of 35,507 gallons per hour (peaking factor of 4). Combined, the average daily water demand 
is estimated for the proposed development to be 310,900 gpd. 


Table 5.7 - Average and Peak Water Demand for the Proposed USAA 
Land 
Use 


Metrics Average 
Flows (GPD) 


Peaking 
Factor 


Peak Flow 
(gallons per hour) 


Commercial  1,500 
GPD/acre 


65.24 
acres - 97,860 2.5 10,194 


New SF 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 


44 
units 


2.8 
people/unit 12,320 4 2,053 


Duplex 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 


20 
units 


2.1 
people/unit 4,200 4 700 


MF 
Residential 


100 
GPD/person 


1,156 
units 


1.7 
people/unit 196,520 4 32,753 


Total 310,900  45,700 
 


5.7 Current Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand 


Based on PSC records for 2021, the existing average water use was approximately 1.214 million gallons per day 
(MGD), or approximately 843 gallons per minute (gpm), with a maximum day usage of 2.048 MGD or 1,422 gpm 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 12 of 14  


(Stoughton Utilities data). Including the previously described water main improvements, the water system 
model-predicted fire flows throughout the development vary from 3,500 to 4,700 gpm at a 20 psi residual 
pressure, which can be considered adequate to support this type of development. The water model was 
operated with Well No. 7 in service and all elevated storage water levels set to 10 feet below overflow 
elevation. 


5.8 Current Capacity of the Water System 


The nearest elevated tank that would serve this proposed development is Tower 2, located on Furseth Road, 
just east of Sundt Lane. Tower 2 has a capacity of 300,000 gallons and an overflow elevation of 1,081 feet 
above mean sea level. Assuming the water level in Tower 2 is 10 feet below overflow, or 1,071 ft, pressures in 
the proposed development would range from 52 to 74 psi. This is based on ground level elevations in the 
proposed development that range from approximately 900 to 950 feet.  


The City of Stoughton is supplied by four groundwater wells, Nos. 4, 5, 6, and 7. Well Nos. 4, 6, and 7 pump 
directly into the distribution system while Well No. 5 pumps into a ground-level reservoir, where two 1,000 
gpm booster pumps are used to pump into the distribution system. The reported capacities of the four wells 
are listed below in gpm and MGD.  


Table 5.9.1 – Well Capacity 


Well No.  Capacity (gpm)  Capacity (MGD)  
4  1,220  1.757  
5  950  1.368  
6  1,050  1.512  
7  1,080  1.555  
Total Capacity  4,300  6.192  
Firm Capacity*  3,220  4.435  


*Assumes Well No. 7 well pump out of service 
 
System storage consists of two steel spheroid elevated tanks and a concrete ground-level reservoir at Well No. 
5. A summary of these storage facilities is listed below. 


Table 5.9.2 – Water Storage Capacity 
Storage Facility  Year 


Constructed  
Capacity 
(gallons)  


Overflow 
Elevation (ft)  


Tower 2  1977  300,000  1,081.0  
Tower 3  2010  600,000  1,081.0  
Well No. 5 Reservoir  1989  400,000  N/A  
Total Storage  --  1,300,000  --  


 


5.9 Proposed Stormwater Management Standards and Best Management Practices 


All areas in the proposed amendment area will be subject to the following standards: 


Performance Standards 
Applicable stormwater management performance measures for this site will exceed standards required 
by the State of Wisconsin (NR 151), Dane County (Chapter 14), and City of Stoughton (Chapter 10, 
Article IV, Section 10) Erosion Control and Stormwater Management, which are summarized below.  


Water Quality: Require Post-Construction sediment control sufficient to reduce total suspended solids 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 13 of 14  


leaving the site by at least 80% 


Peak Discharge Rate Control: Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the 1- through 200-yr, 
24-hour storm events, utilizing an MSE4 rainfall intensity distribution, as itemized below: 


• 1-yr, 24-hr event (2.49 inches). 


• 2-yr, 24-hr event (2.84 inches). 


• 10-yr, 24-hr event (4.09 inches). 


• 100-yr, 24-hr event (6.66 inches). 


• 200-yr, 24-hr event (7.53 inches). 


Infiltration: Requirement for any development type is to infiltrate sufficient runoff volume so that post-
development infiltration volume shall be at least 90% of the pre-development infiltration volume 
based on average annual rainfall. 


Thermal Control: The amendment area is not part of any thermally sensitive areas and thus will not be 
required. 


Oil and Grease Control: Required for the commercial lots planned for the development.  


Additionally, because of the existence of a series of hydraulically sensitive landlocked basins to the 
south of lands on the east side of US 51, runoff volumes discharged offsite must be maintained at 
existing levels for events ranging from the 1-year to the 200-year, 24-hour rain event. 


Development Area Details 
West Side 


Stormwater management for lands on the west side of USH 51 will be designed to meet the standards 
described above.  


 
East Side 


Stormwater management for lands on the east side of USH 51 will be provided through the construction of 
seven (7) new stormwater management ponds. These ponds will be established as paired systems, with 
upstream wet basins intended to provide water quality pre-treatment prior to discharging to downstream 
infiltration basins. Collectively these paired pond systems will also provide peak discharge rate control, volume 
control through infiltration, and water quality via sedimentation and infiltration.  


As illustrated in Map 3.2a, there is a paired system of wet and dry ponds west of the wetlands, a paired system 
with two wet ponds draining to one large dry basin east of the wetlands, and one more paired system in the NE 
corner of the site for water that flows offsite to the north. 


The acreage of this east-side area is 162.81 acres.  Proposed stormwater management features will serve the 
entire site and accommodate runoff from approximately 201.5 acres of additional off-site area, including the 
87.3 acres west of USH 51 in this USA amendment. Approximately 58.4 acres of off-site area (areas to the 
north, east, and south of the site) are fully developed, some of which has existing stormwater management 
practices in place. The remainder of the off-site area is undeveloped and it is assumed that when these lands 
develop that those activities will be held to similar standards as this site; specifically that 1- through 200-yr 
peak runoff rates and volumes will be held to existing conditions levels.  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


Page 14 of 14  


The existing site contains four interconnected landlocked basins that capture 100% of runoff flowing onto and 
through the site (including 125.8 acres west of USH 51 and 11.9 acres north of CTH ‘B’) such that the site does 
not discharge to the south under events 2-yr severity and less. When discharges to the south do occur, flows 
pass overland toward a series of landlocked basins. Because of concerns for flooding of these landlocked basins 
due to development-related runoff volumes, the site’s stormwater management plan also controls runoff 
volumes to levels no higher than existing conditions for events ranging from the 1-yr through the 200-yr event. 
In fact, under developed conditions, there will be zero discharge off-site under 2-yr conditions to match existing 
conditions. 


The system of streets, storm inlets, and storm sewer pipes necessary to convey stormwater to the proposed 
stormwater ponds has not been designed as of the date of this memo. It is currently assumed that 200-yr peak 
flows will be delivered to the various ponds via storm sewer and overland street conveyance within the street 
ROW. 


This proposed stormwater management system for the eastern 181 acres will exceed the performance 
standards described above. 


• All the proposed wet ponds provide in excess of 80% TSS reduction. Because of the need for 
excess infiltration practices to control runoff volumes for storms up to the 200-yr, 24-hr storm, 
the infiltration basins which lie downstream from wet ponds provide additional TSS reduction 
such that the site as a whole is expected to achieve well over 90% TSS reduction annually (close 
to 100%). 


• The existing site discharges runoff in 2 different directions, with most of the site discharging to 
the south. Under proposed conditions, discharges in all directions will be held to no more than 
existing conditions.  


• Under proposed conditions, runoff volumes for all rainfall events including up to the 200-yr, 24-
hr rainfall event will be reduced by at least 10% relative to existing conditions (10% at the 200-
yr, 24-hr event, more for smaller events) 


• Because of the high degree of infiltration required on the site to maintain event-based runoff 
volumes, post-development infiltration will be 100% of pre-development conditions. 


 


5.10 Stormwater Facility Management 


The City of Stoughton will accept and maintain the stormwater facilities in public outlots following City 
standards. Any facilities on private lots will be maintained by the property owners, and will be subject to 
a maintenance agreement in perpetuity, per Ch. 14.49(3)(d) and 14.51(1)(i) of Dane Co ordinance. 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX A 


City of Stoughton Resolution 2023-XX 


  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX B 


Maps 
  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX C 


Adjacent Government Notice Letter 
  







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX D 


Wetland Delineation Report 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 
City of Stoughton 2023 Urban Service Area Amendment – USH 51 and CTH B Developments 


 


 


 


 


 


APPENDIX E 


Nonfederal Wetland Exemption Determination 


 


 







!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!!!!!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!
!


!!!!


!


!


!!!


!!!!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!!!!


!


!!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!!!!!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!


!
!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


! ! !


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


! !


!


!
! !


!
!


!
!


! ! !
!


!
!


!


! !


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! !


!


!


!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!!
!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!!!!


!


!


!!!!!


!!!
!!!


!
!


!
!


!!!!


!


!!


!


!!


!
!


!!


!
!


!


!
!


!!!!!


!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!


!!


!!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! !


!
!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!
!!


!
!


! !


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


N
 Pa


ge St


Skyline D
r


Linc
oln A


ve


Jackson St


Jo
hnson St


E Main St


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


Greig Tr


King
 St


Kings Lynn
Rd


East St


Aaker Rd


Vete
ra


ns
Rd


S Fourth St


Lin
ne


ru
d 


D
r


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


N
yg


a
a


rd
 St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Hamilton St


C
o


untry C
lub


 Rd


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


S A
c


a
d


e
m


y St


S V
a


n Buren St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Be
rry St


Nottingha
m


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Ple
a


sa
nt V


iew
 D


r


North St


Ind
u


s tri al Cir


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


S
Lyn


n
St


Riverside Dr


W Jefferson St


C
o


m
m


erce
 Rd


N
D


iv
isi


on
St


La
rvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


W Taft St A
m


und
son Pkw


y


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St
Ho


el
 A


ve


C
a


rl A
ve


W Prospect St


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


N
o


ra
 St


Barberry Rd


Business Par k


C
ir


S W
a


te
r St


E Milwaukee St


Rivervie
w


 D
r


Pa
ra


dise
 D


r


Silvera
d


o
D


r


G
ra


nt St


Meadow Dr


N
 M


o
rris St


Q
uinn Ln


E South St


C
ha


le
t D


r


H
ill St


Park St


Garden Ave


C
hurc


h St


Kvam


m
e


Ln
Giles St


Sa
w


ye
r R


d


Eig
hth St


N
 M


o
nro


e
 St


H
a


ns
on


Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rv


es
t L


n


Deer Point Dr


N
 Pra


irie
 St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew


W
ay


W Broadway St


Garfield St


C
oopers C


sw
y


Patterson St


D
vo


ra
k


Ct A
shb


erry Ln


Brickson St


S Pa
g


e
 St


Kensing
to


n
Sq


Clancey Ln


Vernon St


E South St


W Main St


N
 M


a
d


iso
n St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Linc
oln A


ve


")B
")B


W
illia


m
s D


r


N
 P


a
g


e
 S


t


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


Su
nd


t L
n


Ki
ng


s
Ly


nn
Rd


Lund
e


 C
ir


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D
e


vo
n


sh
ire


Rd


H
o


e
l


Ave


Valberg Dr


N
o


rd
la


nd
 D


r


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


St
o


ne


y Ri d g
e


Tr


S
Fo


ur
th


St


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


Yahara
River


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6a


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


Eastside
Planned


Neighborhood


Southwest
Planned


Neighborhood


Northwest
Planned


Mixed Use Area


South
Planned


Neighborhood


Northside
Planned 


Neighborhood


0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural/Vacant


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Westside
Planned


Mixed Use Corridor


Railroads


Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


! !


Northwest
Planned


Neighborhood


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


2017 Municipal Boundaries


2017 Limited Service Areas


2017 Urban Service Areas


Planned Mixed Use


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
! !


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


! ! !


! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!!!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


! !
!


!!!


!


!


!!!


!


!


!!


!


!!!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!!!!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!


!


!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!


!!


!!


!!


!


!
! !


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!!!
!


!


!!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!!!


!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! ! !


!


!


!


!
!!


! !


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! !


!!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


! ! !


!


!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


! !
!


! ! !


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


Ta
ylo


r Ln


Sp
rin


g
 R


d


W
illia


m
s D


r


C
ollins Rd


Ple
asa


nt H
ill Rd


St
a


rr 
Sc


ho
ol


 R
d


N Page St


Skyline D
r


Lincoln A
ve


Halvorson Rd


Jackson St


Johnson St


Barber Dr


E Main St


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


Greig Tr
King St


Kings Lynn
R d


East St


Shadyside Dr


Aaker Rd


Hi
ld


re
th


 R
d


Vet
era


ns
Rd


Norgaren Rd


S Fo
urth St


Lin
ne


ru
d 


D
r


Dunkirk Ave


Havey Ln


Quam Dr


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


N
yga


a
rd


 St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Giehler Dr


Hamilton St


C
ountry C


lub
 Rd


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


O
ak


vi
ew


 D
r


S A
ca


d
em


y St


Ra
ce Tra


ck Rd


Cox Rd


S V
a


n Buren St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Be
rry St


Bo
nn


ie
 L


n


Schroeder Ln


Bj
oi


n 
D


r


Brooklyn Dr


Haggman Rd


Nottingham


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Ple
asa


nt V
iew


 D
r


C
ottonw


oo
d


 D
r


North St


Indu


s tri al Cir


Vernon Rd


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


S
L yn


n
St


Riverside Dr


Duncan Rd


W Jefferson St


Sheryl Ln


C
om


m
e


rce Rd


N
Di


vi
sio


n
St


Larvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


Ri
ve


r E
st


a
te


s 
Ln


Tra
cy L


n


W Taft St


Yum
a


A
ve


Rolling View Rd
A


m
und


so
n Pkw


y


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


S Q
uam


 D
r


Aalseth Ln


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St


Stone Crest Rd


Ho
el


 A
ve


C
arl A


ve


W Prospect St


Lake View Dr


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


N
o


ra
 St


Barberry Rd


Business Par k


C
i r


S W
ate


r St


E Milwaukee St


Riverview
 D


r


Pa
ra


dise
 D


r


N
a


nc
y 


Ln


S i lvera
d


o
D


r


Lissa Ln


G
ra


nt St


Meadow Dr


Course View Dr


Robert St


N
 M


orris St


Q
uinn Ln


E South St


Alice Cir


C
ha


let D
r


Hill St


Park St


Garden Ave


C
hurch St


Kvam


m
e


Ln


Giles St


Sa
w


ye
r R


d


Eig
hth St


N
 M


onro
e St


H
a


ns
on


Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rv


es
t L


n


Deer Point Dr


N
 Prairie St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew


W
ay


W Broadway St


Garfield St


C
oopers C


sw
y


Patterson St


D
vo


ra
k Ct A


shbe
rry Ln


Brickson St


S Pa
g


e St


Kensington
Sq


Clancey Ln


Mallard Ave


Vernon St


La
ke


 K
e


go
ns


a
 R


d


E South St


W Main St


N
 M


a
d


ison St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


S 
Br


oo
kl


yn
 D


r


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


£¤51


")A


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Lincoln A
ve


")B
")B


W
illia


m
s D


r


N
 P


a
g


e 
St


")A


C
ollins Rd


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


Su
nd


t L
n


Ki
ng


s
Ly


nn
Rd


Ple
asa


nt H
ill Rd


Sp
ring


 Rd


")N Lund
e C


ir Skaalen Rd Sp
rin


g
 R


d


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D
ev


o
n


sh
ire


Rd
H


o
e l


Ave


Valberg Dr


N
o


rd
la


nd
 D


r


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


St
on


ey
Ri d g


e
Tr


S F
ou


rth
St


¬«138


Skyline Dr


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


80'


Yahara
Rive


r


Lake Kegonsa


Halverson Rd


Starr School Rd


")A


")A


Spri
ng


 R
d


Skaalen Rd


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
6b


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board


*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.


Future Land Use


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


Agriculture/Rural/Vacant


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Northeast
Planned 


Neighborhood


Eastside
Planned


Neighborhood


Southeast
Planned


Neighborhood


Southwest
Planned


Neighborhood


Northwest
Planned


Mixed Use Area


South
Planned


Neighborhood


Northside
Planned 
Neighborhood


** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.
0 0.5 10.25


Miles


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Westside
Planned


Neighborhood


Westside
Planned


Mixed Use Corridor


Eastside
Planned


Mixed Use Corridor


Railroads


Future Land Use
Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries


Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.


Northwest
Planned


Neighborhood


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


Planned Mixed Use


2017 Limited Service Areas


2017 Urban Service Areas


Map 1.1
FUTURE LAND USE


USA Amendment 
Area







Total Site Area: 276.12
Acres


West: 90.75 Acres
East: 185.37 Acres


Within Existing USA:
7.18 Acres


GREENBRIAR DR


RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LINNERUD DR


B


B


51


51


Existing Urban Service
Area
Parcel Boundary
Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Site Boundary Within
Existing Urban Service
Area


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 3.1
Proposed


Amendment Area


0 225 450 Feet


Map 3.1
PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT AREA







 DUPLEXES /     
          TOWNHOMES 


SINGLE-FAMILY


 FLEXIBLE 
 USE  


   - COMMERCIAL, OR 
   - MULTI-FAMILY, OR
   - MIX OF BOTH USES 


COMMERCIAL


PARK / 
OPEN SPACE


STI PROPERTY
NEIGHBORHOOD CONCEPT   
APRIL 21, 2023


 MULTI-FAMILY  
 RESIDENTIAL


  - DUPLEX / TOWNHOMES
  - MULTI-FAMILY


Rutland Dunn Town Line Rd


Kings Lynn Rd


Kriedeman Dr


Road “B”


O
akridge


U
S


U
S


UU
S


U
S


U
S


U
S


U
S


U
HHHHHHHH


IGIGIGIGIGIGIGIGIGGI
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


AYAYAYAYAYAYAYAY
5555555511111111


U
S


U
S


U
S


U
HHH


IGIGIG
H


W
H


W
H


W
H


WW
AYAYYAY


5551111


COCOCOCOCOCOCOOUNUNUNNNUNUNUNUNNTYTYTYYYTYTYTYTY HHHHHHHHIGIGIGIGIGIGIGIGI HWHWHWHWHWHWHWHWHWWWWAYAYAYAYAYAYAYAYAYAYAYAAAYAY BBBBBBBBBBB


Road “A”


Road “C
”


PLANNEDPLANNED
CULVERT CULVERT 
RELOCATIONRELOCATION


Black O
ak


COMMERCIAL
12.98 Acres


COMMERCIAL
11.57 Acres


COM.
1.81 A


FLEXIBLE 
USE
5.41 Acres


FLEXIBLE USE
3.69 Acres


HEADQUARTERS
7.90 ACRES


Dry Basin 
1


Pond
2


Pond
3


Prairie “Dry”
Basin


 3


Prairie “Dry”
Basin


2


Wetland


Wetland


Pond
1


Lake
(Pond 4)


MULTI-
FAMILY


20.5 ACRES


dddddddddddd SINGLE-FAMILY


TWO-FAMILY RES.


MF
1.35 A


OUTLOT 3 (PARK + SWM)


73.69 Acres (33.11 acre park + trail)OUTLOT 4
1.46 Acres


OUTLOT 1
2.00 AcresOUTLOT 2


2.01 Acres


OUTLOT 6
1.69 Acres


OUTLOT 5 
0.61 Acres


OL 7
0.07 Acres


1


2


3


4


5


6
46-53


7


11-45


8 9 10


Drawing 
Not to Scale


960


950


94
0


93
5


92
5


92
0


91
5


91
0


965


945


955


905


91
591


0


90
5


90
0


89
5


89
0


88
5 930


925


915


905


900


910


895


940


935


930


925


920


915


910


900
895


890


885


880


875


930


925


920


955


950
920


915


91
0


90
5


905


900


960


955


91
0


905


930


900


945


950


935


915


905


90
5


910


90
0


960


945


935


930


93
0


930


925


925 92
0


915


91
0


915


910


915


905


910


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


905


90
0


900


905


89
5


895


895


895


875


965


960


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


900


90
0


880


GREENBRIAR DR
RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Existing Urban Service
Area
Parcel Boundary
Intermdiate Contour
Index Contour
Slopes Greater than 20%


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)
Contours: Dane County LiDAR (2017)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.1C
Contours & Steep


Slopes


0 225 450 Feet


Map 3.2a
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
EAST OF USH 51







Drawing 
Not to Scale


960


950


94
0


93
5


92
5


92
0


91
5


91
0


965


945


955


905


91
591


0


90
5


90
0


89
5


89
0


88
5 930


925


915


905


900


910


895


940


935


930


925


920


915


910


900
895


890


885


880


875


930


925


920


955


950
920


915


91
0


90
5


905


900


960


955


91
0


905


930


900


945


950


935


915


905


90
5


910


90
0


960


945


935


930


93
0


930


925


925 92
0


915


91
0


915


910


915


905


910


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


905


90
0


900


905


89
5


895


895


895


875


965


960


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


900


90
0


880


GREENBRIAR DR
RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Existing Urban Service
Area
Parcel Boundary
Intermdiate Contour
Index Contour
Slopes Greater than 20%


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)
Contours: Dane County LiDAR (2017)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.1C
Contours & Steep


Slopes


0 225 450 Feet


Map 3.2b
CONCEPTUAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
WEST OF USH 51


CTH B


RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE ROAD 


U
SH


 5
1







!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!!!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! ! !


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!
! !


! !


! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!
!


! !


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!
!


!


!
!!


!
!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!


!


!!!
!


!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!!


!


!


!
!


!!!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!!!!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!
!


!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


! !


!


! !


!
!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


! !


!!


!


!!


!


! !


! !


!


!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!!!!!


!


!


!!!


!!!


!!


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!!!!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!
!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! !
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


! !


!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!


! ! ! !
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


Ta
ylo


r Ln


W
illia


m
s D


r


C
o


llins R
d


N
 Pa


g
e


 St


Skyline
 D


r


Lin
c


o
ln A


ve


Jackson St


Jo
hn


so
n


 St


E Main St


N
 V


a
n Bu


re
n St


Greig Tr


Kin
g


 St


Kings Lynn
Rd


East St


Shadyside Dr


Aaker Rd


Vete
ra


ns
Rd


S Fo
u


rth St


Lin
ne


ru
d


 D
r


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


N
yg


a
a


rd
 St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Giehler Dr


Hamilton St


C
o


u
ntry C


lu
b


 R
d


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


O
a


kv
ie


w
 D


r


S A
c


a
d


e
m


y St


Ra
c


e
 Tra


c
k R


d


S V
a


n Bure
n St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Be
rry St


Bj
o


in
 D


r


Brooklyn Dr


Haggman Rd


Nottingha
m


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Ple
a


sa
nt V


ie
w


 D
r


C
o


tto
n


w
o


o
d


 D
r


North St


Ind
u


s tri al Cir


Vernon Rd


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


S
Lyn


n
St


Riverside Dr


Duncan Rd


W Jefferson St


Sheryl Ln


C
o


m
m


e
rc


e
 R


d


N
D


iv
isi


on
St


La
rvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


W Taft St A
m


u
nd


so
n Pkw


y


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


S Q
ua


m
 D


r


Aalseth Ln


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St


Stone Crest Rd


Ho
el


 A
ve


C
a


rl A
ve


W Prospect St


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


N
o


ra
 St


Barberry Rd


Business Par k


C
ir


S W
a


te
r St


E Milwaukee St


Rive
rvie


w
 D


r


Pa
ra


dise
 D


r


Silve
ra


d
o


D
r


G
ra


nt St


Meadow Dr


Course View Dr


Robert St


N
 M


o
rris St


Q
u


in
n


 Ln


E South St


Alice Cir


C
ha


le
t D


r


H
ill St


Park St


Garden Ave


C
hu


rc
h


 St


Kvam


m
e


Ln


Giles St


Sa
w


ye
r R


d


Eig
h


th St


N
 M


o
n


ro
e


 St


H
a


ns
on


Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rv


es
t L


n


Deer Point Dr


N
 Pra


irie
 St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew


W
ay


W Broadway St


Garfield St


C
oopers C


sw
y


Patterson St


D
vo


ra
k C


t A
sh


b
e


rry Ln


Brickson St


S Pa
g


e
 St


Kensing
to


n
S q


Clancey Ln


Vernon St


E South St


W Main St


N
 M


a
d


iso
n St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


S 
Br


o
o


kl
yn


 D
r


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


£¤51


")A


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Lin
c


o
ln A


ve


")B
")B


W
illia


m
s D


r


N
 P


a
g


e
 S


t


C
o


llins R
d


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n


 S
t


Su
nd


t L
n


Ki
ng


s
Ly


nn
Rd


Sp
ring


 Rd


")N Lu
n


d
e


 C
ir Skaalen Rd Sp


rin
g


 R
d


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D
e


v o
n


sh
ire


R
d


H
o


e
l


Ave


Valberg Dr


N
o


rd
la


n
d


 D
r


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


St
o


ne


y Ri d g
e


Tr


S
Fo


ur
th


St


¬«138


N
 V


a
n Bu


re
n St


Yahara
Rive


r


Matson
Airport


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
3


Existing Land Use


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources:  Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton.


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


Agriculture/Rural/Vacant
Unsewered Residential
Single Family Residential
Two Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential


Recreation or Public Open Space


Surface Water
Right-of-Way


Stormwater Management


0 0.5 10.25
Miles


Heavy Industrial


Institutional
Landfill/Extraction


General Industrial
Planned Industrial


Central Business


Neighborhood Business
Planned Business
Neighborhood Office
Planned Office


Railroads


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries
2017 Limited Service Areas
2017 Urban Service Areas


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!!!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


! ! !


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!
! !


! !


! ! !


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!


! ! !


!


!
!


! !


!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!
!


!


!
!!


!
!


!!


!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!


!


!!!
!


!


!


!!!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


! !
!


!


!!!


!


!


!
!


!!!


!


!


!


!


!!!


!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!!!!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!!!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!!!!!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!
!


!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


! ! ! ! !


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!
!


!
!


! !


!


! !


!
!


!


! !


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


! !


!!


!


!!


!


! !


! !


!


!


!


!!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!!


!


!


!


!!!!!


!


!


!!!


!!!


!!


!
!


!
!


!!


!


!


!


!!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!
!!!!


!!!!!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!!


!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! ! !


!


!


!


!


!
!!!


!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! !
!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!
!


! !


!


!
!


!
!


!


! ! !


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!!!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


! !


!
!


!


! ! ! !
!


!
!


!


! ! ! ! ! ! !


!
!


!
!


!
!


!


!!!!


!
!


!
!


!


!
!


!


!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


!
!


Ta
ylo


r Ln


W
illia


m
s D


r


C
ollins Rd


N
 Page St


Skyline
 D


r


Linco
ln A


ve


Jackson St


Jo
hnson St


E Main St


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


Greig Tr


King
 St


Kings Lynn
Rd


East St


Shadyside Dr


Aaker Rd


Vete
ra


ns
Rd


S Fo
urth St


Lin
ne


ru
d


 D
r


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St


Moline St


N
yg


a
a


rd
 St


W Wilson St


Kriedeman Dr


West St


Sundt Ln


Giehler Dr


Hamilton St


C
ountry C


lub
 Rd


Hilldale Ln


Buckingham Rd


Hyland Dr


O
a


kv
ie


w
 D


r


S A
ca


d
em


y St


Ra
c


e Tra
c


k Rd


S V
a


n Bure
n St


Chapin Ln


Furseth Rd


Felland St


Be
rry St


Bj
o


in
 D


r
Brooklyn Dr


Haggman Rd


Nottingha
m


Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Ple
a


sa
nt V


ie
w


 D
r


C
ottonw


o
o


d
 D


r


North St


Ind
u


s tri al Cir


Vernon Rd


Lowell St


Virgin Lake Dr


Ridge St


S
Lyn


n
St


Riverside Dr


Duncan Rd


W Jefferson St


Sheryl Ln


C
om


m
e


rce
 Rd


N
D


iv
isi


on
St


La
rvik Ln


Mel lu m Dr


W Taft St A
m


und
so


n Pkw
y


Aspen Rd


E Academy St


Smedal Dr


S Q
ua


m
 D


r


Aalseth Ln


Holtan Rd


Mandt Pkwy


Roosevelt St


Stone Crest Rd


Ho
el


 A
ve


C
arl A


ve


W Prospect St


Westchester Cir


E Jefferson St


Velkommen Way


N
o


ra
 St


Barberry Rd


Business Par k


C
ir


S W
a


te
r St


E Milwaukee St


Riverview
 D


r


Pa
ra


dise
 D


r


Silvera
d


o
D


r


G
ra


nt St


Meadow Dr


Course View Dr


Robert St


N
 M


orris St


Q
uinn Ln


E South St


Alice Cir


C
ha


le
t D


r


H
ill St


Park St


Garden Ave


C
hurch St


Kvam


m
e


Ln


Giles St


Sa
w


ye
r R


d


Eig
hth St


N
 M


onroe
 St


H
a


ns
on


Rd


E Washington St


Ha
rv


es
t L


n


Deer Point Dr


N
 Pra


irie St


Ap


ollo Cir


Matthew


W
ay


W Broadway St


Garfield St


C
oopers C


sw
y


Patterson St


D
vo


ra
k C


t A
shb


e
rry Ln


Brickson St


S Pa
g


e
 St


Kensingto
n


S q


Clancey Ln


Vernon St


E South St


W Main St


N
 M


a
d


iso
n St


Hyland Dr


Isham St


S 
Br


oo
kl


yn
 D


r


W South St


¬«138


")N


£¤51 ¬«138 £¤51


¬«138


£¤51


")A


")N


")A


")A


Roby Rd


Linco
ln A


ve


")B
")B


W
illia


m
s D


r


N
 P


a
g


e
 S


t


C
ollins Rd


W Main St


W Main St


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


Su
nd


t L
n


Ki
ng


s L
yn


n
Rd


Sp
ring


 Rd


")N Lund
e C


ir Skaalen Rd Sp
rin


g
 R


d


Rutland-Dunn Townline Rd


£¤51


£¤51


D
ev


o
n


sh
ire


Rd


H
o


el
Ave


Valberg Dr


N
o


rd
la


nd
 D


r


Markens Gate Rd


Korgen Dr


Harding St


St
on


ey
Ri d g


e
Tr


S F
ou


rth
St


¬«138


N
 V


a
n Bure


n St


Yahara
Rive


r


Matson
Airport


City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan


Map
3


Existing Land Use


Adopted: July 11, 2017


Sources:  Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton.


±Shaping places, shaping change


VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.


Agriculture/Rural/Vacant
Unsewered Residential
Single Family Residential
Two Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential


Recreation or Public Open Space


Surface Water
Right-of-Way


Stormwater Management


0 0.5 10.25
Miles


Heavy Industrial


Institutional
Landfill/Extraction


General Industrial
Planned Industrial


Central Business


Neighborhood Business
Planned Business
Neighborhood Office
Planned Office


Railroads


! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries
2017 Limited Service Areas
2017 Urban Service Areas


AREA NOW 
IN USA


Map 3.3
EXISTING LAND USE


USA Amendment 
Area







Map 4.1A
WETLAND DATA


W-4
(0.73
acres)


W-2
(0.39


acres)


W-3
(0.56
acres)


W-1
(2.13
acres)


W-3
(0.25 acres)


W-1
(0.04


acres)


W-1
(0.47
acres)


W-1
(0.25
acres)


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


BbB Batavia silt loam
,


gravelly substratum
,


2 to 6 percent slopes


DsC2
 Dres


den
 sil


t


loa
m, 6


 to
 12


 pe
rce


nt


slo
pes


, e
rod


ed


DrD2 Dresden loam
,


12 to 20 percent


slopes, eroded


Pn
B 


Pl
an


o 
sil


t l
oa


m
,


til
l s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
, 2


to
 6


 p
er


ce
nt


 s
lo


pe
s


BbB Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


TrB Troxel silt
loam, 0 to 3


percent slopes


Po
B 


Pl
an


o 
sil


t l
oa


m
,


gr
av


el
ly 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Ra
A 


Ra
df


or
d 


sil
t


lo
am


, 0
 to


 3
pe


rc
en


t s
lo


pe
s


Kd
C2


 K
id


de
r l


oa
m


,
6 


to
 1


2 
pe


rc
en


t
slo


pe
s,


 e
ro


de
d


Bb
B 


Ba
ta


vi
a 


sil
t l


oa
m


,
gr


av
el


ly
 s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Eg
A E


lbu
rn 


silt
 lo


am
,


gra
ve


lly
 su


bs
tra


tum
,


0 t
o 3


 pe
rce


nt 
slo


pe
s


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


DnC2 Dodge silt loam,
6 to 12 percent
slopes, eroded


DsB Dresden silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


BbA Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum, 0


to 2 percent slopes


BbB Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


GwC Griswold loam, 6
to 12 percent slopes


BoC2 Boyer sandy


loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


RnB Ringwood
silt loam, 2 to


6 percent slopes


Eg
A 


El
bu


rn
 si


lt 
loa


m
,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


0 
to


 3
 p


er
ce


nt
 sl


op
es


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


TrB Troxel silt
loam, 0 to 3


percent slopes
Bb


B 
Ba


ta
via


 si
lt 


loa
m


,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 sl


op
es


Md
D2


 M
cH


en
ry


 si
lt 


loa
m


,


12
 to


 2
0 


pe
rce


nt


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


PoB Plano silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


Dn
C2


 D
od


ge
 si


lt 
loa


m
,


6 
to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


Bb
B 


Ba
ta


vi
a 


sil
t l


oa
m


,
gr


av
el


ly
 s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Sc
C2


 S
t. 


Ch
ar


les
 si


lt


loa
m


, 6
 to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


BoD2 Boyer sandy
loam, 12 to 20


percent slopes, eroded


Ds
C2


 D
res


de
n s


ilt 
loa


m,


6 t
o 1


2


pe
rce


nt 
slo


pe
s, 


ero
de


d


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


Kd
D2


 K
id


de
r l


oa
m


,
12


 to
 2


0 
pe


rc
en


t
slo


pe
s,


 e
ro


de
d


DnB Dodge
silt loam, 2 to


6 percent slopes


DsB Dresden silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


Ke
A 


Ke
go


ns
a 


sil
t


lo
am


, 0
 to


 2
pe


rc
en


t s
lo


pe
s


Bb
C2


 B
at


av
ia 


sil
t l


oa
m


,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


6 
to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


Gw
D2


 G
ris


wo
ld 


loa
m,


12
 to


 20
 p


er
ce


nt
slo


pe
s, 


er
od


ed


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


PoB Plano silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


GREENBRIAR DR


RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Parcel Boundary


Existing Urban Service Area


NRCS Soil Type


75-ft Wetland Buffer


Existing Wetland Status


Anticipated Disturbance and
Removal by DOT


Permitted Disturbance/Fill


To Remain


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)
Wetlands Delineated by TRC (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


STI Development Property


Map 4.1A
Wetland Data


0 225 450 Feet







Map 4.1B
WOODLANDS


GREENBRIAR DR
RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Existing Urban Service Area


Parcel Boundary


Woodlands (2.6 Acres)


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.1B
Woodlands


0 225 450 Feet







Map 4.1C
CONTOURS AND 
STEEP SLOPES


960


950


94
0


93
5


92
5


92
0


91
5


91
0


965


945


955


905


91
591


0


90
5


90
0


89
5


89
0


88
5 930


925


915


905


900


910


895


940


935


930


925


920


915


910


900
895


890


885


880


875


930


925


920


955


950
920


915


91
0


90
5


905


900


960


955


91
0


905


930


900


945


950


935


915


905


90
5


910


90
0


960


945


935


930


93
0


930


925


925 92
0


915


91
0


915


910


915


905


910


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


905


90
0


900


905


89
5


895


895


895


875


965


960


91
0


910


910


910


90
5


900


90
0


880


GREENBRIAR DR
RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
Existing Urban Service
Area
Parcel Boundary
Intermdiate Contour
Index Contour
Slopes Greater than 20%


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)
Contours: Dane County LiDAR (2017)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.1C
Contours & Steep


Slopes


0 225 450 Feet







Map 4.1D
SOIL TYPES


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


BbB Batavia silt loam
,


gravelly substratum
,


2 to 6 percent slopes


DsC2
 Dres


den
 sil


t


loa
m, 6


 to
 12


 pe
rce


nt


slo
pes


, e
rod


ed


DrD2 Dresden loam
,


12 to 20 percent


slopes, eroded


Pn
B 


Pl
an


o 
sil


t l
oa


m
,


til
l s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
, 2


to
 6


 p
er


ce
nt


 s
lo


pe
s


BbB Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


TrB Troxel silt
loam, 0 to 3


percent slopes


Po
B 


Pl
an


o 
sil


t l
oa


m
,


gr
av


el
ly 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Ra
A 


Ra
df


or
d 


sil
t


lo
am


, 0
 to


 3
pe


rc
en


t s
lo


pe
s


Kd
C2


 K
id


de
r l


oa
m


,
6 


to
 1


2 
pe


rc
en


t
slo


pe
s,


 e
ro


de
d


Bb
B 


Ba
ta


vi
a 


sil
t l


oa
m


,
gr


av
el


ly
 s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Eg
A E


lbu
rn 


silt
 lo


am
,


gra
ve


lly
 su


bs
tra


tum
,


0 t
o 3


 pe
rce


nt 
slo


pe
s


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


DnC2 Dodge silt loam,
6 to 12 percent
slopes, eroded


DsB Dresden silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


BbA Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum, 0


to 2 percent slopes


BbB Batavia silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


GwC Griswold loam, 6
to 12 percent slopes


BoC2 Boyer sandy


loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


RnB Ringwood
silt loam, 2 to


6 percent slopes


Eg
A 


El
bu


rn
 si


lt 
loa


m
,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


0 
to


 3
 p


er
ce


nt
 sl


op
es


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


TrB Troxel silt
loam, 0 to 3


percent slopes
Bb


B 
Ba


ta
via


 si
lt 


loa
m


,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 sl


op
es


Md
D2


 M
cH


en
ry


 si
lt 


loa
m


,


12
 to


 2
0 


pe
rce


nt


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


PoB Plano silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


Dn
C2


 D
od


ge
 si


lt 
loa


m
,


6 
to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


Bb
B 


Ba
ta


vi
a 


sil
t l


oa
m


,
gr


av
el


ly
 s


ub
st


ra
tu


m
,


2 
to


 6
 p


er
ce


nt
 s


lo
pe


s


Sc
C2


 S
t. 


Ch
ar


les
 si


lt


loa
m


, 6
 to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


BoD2 Boyer sandy
loam, 12 to 20


percent slopes, eroded


Ds
C2


 D
res


de
n s


ilt 
loa


m,


6 t
o 1


2


pe
rce


nt 
slo


pe
s, 


ero
de


d


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


Kd
D2


 K
id


de
r l


oa
m


,
12


 to
 2


0 
pe


rc
en


t
slo


pe
s,


 e
ro


de
d


DnB Dodge
silt loam, 2 to


6 percent slopes


DsB Dresden silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


Ke
A 


Ke
go


ns
a 


sil
t


lo
am


, 0
 to


 2
pe


rc
en


t s
lo


pe
s


Bb
C2


 B
at


av
ia 


sil
t l


oa
m


,


gr
av


ell
y 


su
bs


tra
tu


m
,


6 
to


 1
2 


pe
rc


en
t


slo
pe


s, 
er


od
ed


Gw
D2


 G
ris


wo
ld 


loa
m,


12
 to


 20
 p


er
ce


nt
slo


pe
s, 


er
od


ed


KeB Kegonsa silt
loam, 2 to 6


percent slopes


DsC2 Dresden silt
loam, 6 to 12 percent


slopes, eroded


PoB Plano silt loam,
gravelly substratum,
2 to 6 percent slopes


GREENBRIAR DR


RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area
Amendment Boundary
NRCS Soil Type
Municipal Boundary
Parcel Boundary


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)


Aerial: Dane County (2022)
Soils: NRCS (2022)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.1D
Soil Types


0 225 450 Feet







Map 4.3
RESOURCE PROTECTION 
CORRIDORS DANE COUNTY


Proposed USAA Location







Map 4.1D
SOIL TYPES


W-4


W-1


W-3


GREENBRIAR DR


RUTLAND-DUNN TOWN LINE RD


CO
UN


TR
Y 


CL
UB


 R
D


FELLAND ST


LI
NN


ER
UD


DR


B


B


51


51


51


Urban Service Area Amendment
Boundary
Existing Urban Service Area
Parcel Boundary
Development Outlot
Conceptual Stormwater Basin
75-ft Wetland Buffer


Existing Wetland Status
Anticipated Disturbance and
Removal by DOT
Permitted Disturbance/Fill
To Remain


Pr
int


ed
 By


: s
m


or
ris


on
, F


ile
: \


\m
sa


-p
s.c


om
\fs


\P
ro


jec
t\2


1\
21


90
2\


21
90


20
00


\G
IS\


7_
Lin


ne
ru


d 
Pr


op
er


ty_
Sto


ug
ht


on
_U


SA
A_


M
ap


pin
g.a


pr
x


Pr
int


 D
ate


: 5
/4


/2
02


3


Data Sources:
Aerial: Dane County (2020)


Contours: Dane County LiDAR (2017)


City of Stoughton
Dane County, WI


USH 51 and CTH B Developments


Map 4.4
Proposed


Environmental
Corridors


0 225 450 Feet







© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 


<<
<<


<<


<<


<<


<<


<<
<<


<<
<<


<<


<<


RIM = 956.29
I.E. = 941.29(W)


RIM = 940.36
I.E. = 922.80(W)
I.E. = 922.90(E)


RIM = 933.78
I.E. = 918.50(NW)
I.E. = 918.60(E)


RIM = 926.78
I.E. = 914.00(NW)
I.E. = 914.10(SE)


RIM = 923.35
I.E. = 913.00(NW)
I.E. = 913.10(SE)


RIM = 913.09
I.E. = 902.79(E)
I.E. = 902.89(N)


RIM = 912.92
I.E. = 905.54(W)


RIM = 914.35
I.E. = 901.70(S)
I.E. = 901.80(N)


RIM = 914.24
I.E. = 900.94(S)
I.E. = 901.04(N)


RIM = 911.22
I.E. = 904.38(W)
I.E. = 901.09(E)


RIM = 912.95
I.E. = 902.71(NE)
I.E. = 902.61(S)


RIM = 909.14
I.E. = 897.83(S)
I.E. = 879.93(N)
I.E. = 897.93(W)


RIM = 911.34
I.E. = 904.07(W)
I.E. = 904.17(E)


RIM = 909.97
I.E. = 897.04(S)
I.E. = 897.14(N)


RIM = 911.68
I.E. = 903.66(SW)
I.E. = 903.76(E)


RIM = 910.87
I.E. = 896.34(S)
I.E. = 896.44(N)


RIM = 909.22
I.E. = 902.69(W)
I.E. = 899.38(E)


RIM = 908.58
I.E. = 898.55(E)
I.E. = 898.65(W)


RIM = 912.05
I.E. = 888.43(S)
I.E. = 887.19(W)
I.E. = 887.19(E)


RIM = 911.63
I.E. = 893.88(SE)
I.E. = 893.98(NW)


RIM = 911.36
I.E. = 899.65(S)
I.E. = 899.75(N)


RIM = 911.29
I.E. = 893.46(S)


I.E. = 893.56(NW)


RIM = 907.78
I.E. = 900.99(W)
I.E. = 899.29(E)


RIM = 910.50
I.E. = 895.49(SE)
I.E. = 895.49(NW)


RIM = 910.47
I.E. = 893.28(N)


RIM = 912.10
I.E. = 894.64(S)
I.E. = 894.74(N)


RIM = 909.90
I.E. = 894.48(E)


I.E. = 894.58(NW)
I.E. = 894.58(SW)


RIM = 909.15
I.E. = 888.79(E)
I.E. = 888.89(W)RIM = 908.91


I.E. = 893.92(E)
I.E. = 894.02(W)


RIM = 908.70
I.E. = 890.36(NE)
I.E. = 890.26(SW)


RIM = 908.55
I.E. = 895.59(SE)
I.E. = 895.69(N)


RIM = 908.98
I.E. = 892.94(S)
I.E. = 893.04(N)


RIM = 907.96
I.E. = 893.37(E)
I.E. = 893.47(W)


RIM = 907.94
I.E. = 896.25(S)
I.E. = 896.35(N)


RIM = 907.33
I.E. = 897.95(S)
I.E. = 898.05(N)
I.E. = 898.05(W)


RIM = 905.59
I.E. = 898.70(S)


RIM = 904.18
I.E. = 887.09(N) RIM = 948.19


I.E. = 930.00(W)
I.E. = 930.10(E)
I.E. = 930.10(N)


RIM = 949.06
I.E. = 939.00(S)


RIM = 908.63
I.E. = 899.65(E)
I.E. = 899.75(W) <<


RIM = 914.13
I.E. = 901.31(E)


<<


RIM = 910.75
I.E. = 888.20(W)
I.E. = 888.30(NE)


RIM = 908.83
I.E. = 889.81(SW)
I.E. = 890.01(NE)<<


W
W


W W W W W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


WWWWWWWWWW


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


<<


RIM = 907.02
I.E. = 895.79(SE)
I.E. = 895.89(W)


<<


RIM = 912.14
I.E. = 897.31(E)
I.E. = 897.41(N)


W


W


W


W


W


W


<<


<<


W W W W W


W W


W W W W


<


<


< <


<


<


<


W


<


RIM = 907.19
I.E. = 891.63(SW)
I.E. = 891.73(NE)


RIM = 908.15
I.E. = 890.78(SW)
I.E. = 890.88(NE)


RIM = 907.82
I.E. = 892.37(N)


I.E. = 892.27(SW)


<<


RIM = 906.89
I.E. = 880.80(S)
I.E. = 880.90(N)


RIM = 904.90
I.E. = 881.83(S)


RIM = 911.98
I.E. = 904.21(S)


STI TRAILERS SITE PLAN
CITY OF STOUGHTON


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21902000
SHEET


P1


   DRAWN BY:            JN


   DESIGNED BY:       JN


   CHECKED BY:        ST
PROPOSED UTLITIES.


  PLOT DATE: 5/4/2023 12:19 PM, G:\21\21902\21902000\CADD\Construction Documents\UrbanAreaServiceAgreementSheets.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: 2023


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


CTY HWY B


KRIEDEMAN DR


KINGS LYNN RD
OAKRIDGE WAY TIE INTO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER


PROPOSED LIFT STATION


GENERAL NOTES:


ALL SANITARY PIPES ARE AT 0.4% GRADE
UNLESS NOTED


SEWER SIZES TO BE DETERMINED DURING
PRELIMINARY DESIGN


WATERMAIN TO BE CONNECTED AT OAKRIDGE,
KINGS LYNN, KRIEDEMAN, GREENBRIAR DRIVE
AT BYGAARD STREET, AND LINCOLN AVENUE
(VIA COUNTY B)


TIE INTO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
AND REMOVE EXISTING LIFT STATION


WATER MAIN TO EXTEND
TO LINCOLN AVE


Feet
0 150 300


SCALE: 1" = 150'


GREENBRIAR DR


SEWER SIZE, DEPTH, AND LOCATION TO
BE DETERMINED DURING PRELIMINARY
DESIGN TO MAXIMIZE GRAVITY SEWER


SERVICE AREA


SEWER SIZE, DEPTH, AND LOCATION TO
BE DETERMINED DURING PRELIMINARY
DESIGN TO MAXIMIZE GRAVITY SEWER


SERVICE AREA


LEGEND
WETLAND BOUNDARY
PARCEL LINE
STORMWATER BASIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER
WATER MAIN


<


<<


W W


SEWER SIZE, DEPTH, AND LOCATION TO
BE DETERMINED DURING PRELIMINARY
DESIGN TO MAXIMIZE GRAVITY SEWER


SERVICE AREA


MAP 5.1
PROPOSED WATER


MAIN AND SANITARY
SEWER EXTENSIONS


U
S


 H
W


Y
 5


1


Map 5.1
PROPOSED WATER 
AND SANITARY SEWER 
EXTENSIONS





		STI USAA - 5-4-23 - PC Version.pdf

		USH 51 AND CTH B DEVELOPMENTS

		CITY OF STOUGHTON 2020 URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT  USH 51 AND CTH B DEVELOPMENTS

		APPENDICES

		1.0 PLAN CONSISTENCY

		1.1 Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

		1.2 Neighborhood Plan

		1.3 Describe the Need for the Addition to the Urban Service Area

		2.0 INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION

		2.1 Notification of Adjacent Local Governmental Units

		2.2 Adjacent Local Governmental Unit(s) Objections or Support of the Proposal

		3.0 LAND USE

		3.1 Map of the Proposed USAA Boundary and Existing Rights of Way (ROW)

		3.2 Tables of Land Use Acreage and Number of Housing Units

		Table 3.2: Urban Service Amendment Area Data

		3.3 Map of Existing Land Uses

		3.4 Quantity and Type of Housing Units

		4.0 NATURAL RESOURCES

		4.1 Natural Resource Areas

		4.2 Public Outlots for Parks and Stormwater Management Facilities

		4.3 Existing Environmental Corridors

		4.4 Proposed Environmental Corridors

		4.5 Minimum Environmental Corridors Criteria Requirements

		5.0 UTILITIES & STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

		5.1 Proposed Sanitary Sewer Extension for the USAA

		5.2 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Wastewater Flow for the USAA

		Table 5.3 - Average and Peak Wastewater Flow Rates for the Proposed USAA

		5.3 Current Average Daily Flow for the Interceptor Sewer and the Wastewater Plant

		5.4 Wastewater Treatment Plant / Interceptor Sewer Capacity to Serve the USAA

		5.5 Proposed Public Water Supply/Distribution System Extension for the Proposed USAA

		5.6 Estimate of the Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand for the USAA

		Table 5.7 - Average and Peak Water Demand for the Proposed USAA

		5.7 Current Average Daily and Peak Hourly Water Demand

		5.8 Current Capacity of the Water System

		Table 5.9.1 – Well Capacity

		Table 5.9.2 – Water Storage Capacity

		5.9 Proposed Stormwater Management Standards and Best Management Practices

		5.10 Stormwater Facility Management








\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\3065 Sam Miles Land Division ETJ Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of May 23, 2023. 
 
Extra-Territorial Land Division at 3065 Sam Miles Road, Town of Dunkirk. 
This land division is proposed to separate the existing residence from the agricultural lands.  The 
property is just within the City’s 1.5 mile extra-territorial jurisdiction but beyond the Planned Urban 
Development Area of the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map.  The resolution and land 
division information are provided.  A recommendation to the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 3065 Sam 
Miles Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None  


File Number: 
 
R -  - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, this land division is proposed to separate the existing residence from the agricultural land at 
3065 Sam Miles Road in the Town of Dunkirk; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) but is beyond the Planned Urban Development Area of the Future Land Use Map; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 8, 2023 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the land division request and 
recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 
division request for property located at 3065 Sam Miles Road in the Town of Dunkirk, is hereby approved as 
presented contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\3065 Sam Miles Road ETJ Land Division.doc 











Form Version 04.00.00


Dane County Rezone Petition Application Date Petition Number


04/06/2023
DCPREZ-2023-11948Public Hearing Date


06/27/2023
                           OWNER INFORMATION


OWNER NAME


FRANCIS C LONG REVOCABLE 
TRUST


PHONE (with Area 
Code)


(608) 873-9227


BILLING ADDRESS (Number & Street)


1726 SEVERSON DR 


(City, State, Zip)


STOUGHTON, WI 53589


E-MAIL ADDRESS


                           AGENT INFORMATION


AGENT NAME


COMBS & ASSOCIATES INC.
PHONE (with Area 
Code)


(608) 752-0575


ADDRESS (Number & Street)


109 W. MILWAUKEE STREET 


(City, State, Zip)


Janesville, WI 53548


E-MAIL ADDRESS


rmcombs@combssurvey.com


           ADDRESS/LOCATION 1            ADDRESS/LOCATION 3            ADDRESS/LOCATION 2


ADDRESS OR LOCATION OF REZONE ADDRESS OR LOCATION OF REZONE ADDRESS OR LOCATION OF REZONE


3065 Sam Miles Rd   


TOWNSHIP


DUNKIRK
SECTION


19
TOWNSHIP TOWNSHIPSECTION


 
SECTION


 


PARCEL NUMBERS INVOLVED


0511-192-9510-1


PARCEL NUMBERS INVOLVED


0511-192-8230-2


PARCEL NUMBERS INVOLVED


REASON FOR REZONE


SEPARATING EXISTING RESIDENCE FROM FARMLAND


FROM DISTRICT: TO DISTRICT: ACRES


FP-35 Farmland Preservation District RR-2 Rural Residential District 2.5


C.S.M REQUIRED? PLAT REQUIRED? DEED RESTRICTION 
REQUIRED?


INSPECTOR'S 
INITIALS


SIGNATURE:(Owner or Agent)


PRINT NAME:


DATE:


COMMENTS: CSM IS SUBJECT TO CITY OF STOUGHTON 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION FOR LAND DIVISION REVIEWS.


RUH1
Applicant Initials_________


Yes Yes YesNo No No


Applicant Initials_________ Applicant Initials_________



http://sql2008-reports/Reports/Pages/Resource.aspx?ItemPath=%2fDocumentation%2fReport+Index.docx









Parcels


Dane County Map


Dane County Mask


Parcels


February 9, 2023


 
 


0 380 760190 Feet


¯











Map data ©2023 Google 2000 ft 


3065 Sam Miles Rd





		123-069 DANE Rezone-Application-Revised-040220-Final.pdf

		Dane County












\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2023\Plan Com Notice 050823.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, May 8, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 
In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 850 0390 9924 Passcode:  288379 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Roll call and verification of quorum. 


3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law. 


4. Elect Vice-Chair 


5. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of April 10, 2023 and Joint 


Plan Commission and Common Council minutes of April 11, 2023.   


6. Council Representative Report. 


7. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


8. 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), 


Kettle Park West - Planned Development - General Development Plan.  


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


9. 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), 


Kettle Park West – Certified Survey Map. 


 Recommendation to Council 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2023\Plan Com Notice 050823.docx 


 


10. Communication Tower at 516 E. Main Street. 


11. Stoughton Hospital, 900 Ridge Street - Specific Implementation Plan. 


12. Magnolia Springs Final Plat. 


 Recommendation to Council 


13. Magnolia Springs Rezoning. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


14. Magnolia Springs Planned Development – General Development Plan. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


15. Urban Service Area Amendment – US 51 and County Highway B Development. 


 Recommendation to Council 


16. Extra-Territorial Land Division at 3065 Sam Miles Road, Town of Dunkirk. 


 Recommendation to Council 


17. Future agenda items. 


18. Adjournment. 
 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Dorann Bradford 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 
Leadership Team     Council members  Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne   Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum     Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org    Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com  


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com  Sue Strandlie   Konner Kearney 


Ryan Birschbach    Connor Nett   Bob Dvorak 


John Ford     Christopher Tank  Steve Tremlett 


Michelle Dupont    Chris Schmitz   Doug Dolan 


Melissa Olson     Rob Hostrawser  Sheila Swaim 


Teresa Lindfors     


    


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  


 



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  041023.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, April 10, 2023 at 6:00 pm 
Hybrid Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Phil Caravello;  
Dorann Bradford; Tom Majewski; Tom Robinson and Al Farrow 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Director of Planning and Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael 
Stacey 
Guests: Daniele Thompson; Jim and Denise Mattke; Mike Moll; Tuler Denis; Laura Eggers; 
Chris Patterson; Sonja Patterson; Konner Kearney; Steve Tremlett; Rob Hostrawser; Emily Bahr; 
Mark Krizan; Paul Goemans and Rob Mossman. 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm. 


 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum.  Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present. 


 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 


compliance with open meetings law. 
 


4. Plan Commission meeting minutes of March 13, 2023.   
Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 


5. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council had a first reading for O-5-2023 on March 28th. 


 
6. Status of Current Developments.   


Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.  There 
were no questions. 
 


7. Comprehensive Plan Amendment - STI Holdings.  
Steve Tremlett gave an overview of the comp plan amendment including removal of the 
Linnerud detailed neighborhood plan. 
 
Scheel explained the changes proposed for the comp plan. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Chris Patterson spoke with concern about the potential uses behind his home on County 
Highway B and about stormwater management. 
 
Jim Mattke spoke with interest to have single family residential behind his home on County 
Highway B and about stormwater runoff from the farm field.  He likes the big park and trails. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
4/10/23 
Page 2 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  041023.docx 


 


Laura Eggers spoke with concern about the proposed mixed commercial uses proposed near 
her home and is in favor of single family residential behind her home on County Highway B. 
 
Rob Mossman questioned who would maintain the park and if corn would be planted on the 
farmland this year. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Schumacher asked what the planned mixed uses could be.  Scheel stated that planned mixed 
uses can be commercial, residential, institutional and planned office uses.   
 
Scheel stated planned neighborhood uses can be single family, two family, multi-family, 
neighborhood office, institutional and neighborhood business uses.  The parks and open 
space area is mostly publicly dedicated depending on the number of residential units.  
Stormwater management is a major topic for this development and the plan is to seek a 
higher 200 year storm standard. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated the hope is this development will take care of all stormwater 
management issues in that area. 
 
Daniele Thompson stated the field will be planted with corn in May. 
 
Farrow questioned how recent developments have affected the desired percent of single 
family.  Scheel stated the 65% single-family is a goal.  Without reviewing the 
Comprehensive Plan, he suggested it may not be development specific rather City wide.  He 
also noted the market has recently seen pressure to shift to more multi-family. 
 
Scheel stated the next steps are the USAA, platting or CSM and rezoning. 
 
Majewski questioned access from the future development on the west side of Highway 51 to 
the park on the east side of Highway 51.  Scheel stated an underpass is planned for 2026 
along with the WDOT round-about at Rutland-Dunn Townline Road and Highway 51. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated the development is planned to be phased with the STI headquarters 
planned for the first phase. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


8. Certified survey to combine the properties at 1000-1008 Nordland Drive. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Farrow questioned if the setbacks would change for the property.  Scheel stated the 
setbacks will not change. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
4/10/23 
Page 3 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  041023.docx 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution for the 
CSM to combine parcels as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


9. Request for approval to allow a wider driveway width at 325/333 Isham Street. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request for a wider driveway width for 6 duplex lots at the 
Parker Cole Addition. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the wider driveway widths for lots 1-6 in the Parker Cole 
Addition as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 


10. Planned Development Concept Plan for Lots 15 and 27 at Kettle Park West. 
Konner Kearney gave an overview of the updated concept plan. 
 
The Commission expressed concerns about the high density, connectivity to parklands, 
stormwater management, reduced setbacks and access. 
 
Scheel stated we have yet to hear from Police, Fire and EMS. 
 
Scheel stated this is just a discussion item so far and the applicant plans to submit for general 
development plan review. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated staff will seek emergency operation feedback. 
 


11. Discuss home occupation sales.  
Scheel explained staff had found that most communities do not allow sales in 
residential districts. 
 
Farrow observed that many people did not know of an ordinance restricting sales. 
 
Mayor Swadley recommends taking no action.  Robinson agrees. 
 


12. Future agenda items. 
• Magnolia Springs Final Plat and Rezoning. 
• Stoughton Hospital Addition SIP 
• Stoughton Trailers Development USAA 
• Stone Crest USAA 


 
Discussed joint meeting for April 11th. 
 
13. Adjournment. 


Motion by Caravello to adjourn at 7:21 pm, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, Michael Stacey 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Joint Plan Com and Council Minutes  041123.docx 


Joint Plan Commission and Common Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 7:00 pm 
Hybrid Meeting 
 
Plan Commission Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; 
Phil Caravello;  Dorann Bradford; Tom Majewski; Tom Robinson and Al Farrow 
Plan Commission Members Absent: None 
Common Council Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina 
Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, 
Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas. 
Common Council Members Absent: Fred Hundt 
Staff:  City Clerk, Candee Christen; Director of Planning and Development, Rodney Scheel; 
Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 
Guests: Tom Matson; John Matson; Dean Hanson; Martha Asplund; Steven Krieser; Tyler 
Denig; Peter Sveum; Debra Carter; Areal Guenther; Daniel Bach; Rosemary Cannistraro; Amber 
Cederstrom; Dr. Beth Neary; Katie Holt; Claire Kitson; Josh Holt; Adrienne Nienow; Megan 
Prange; Bonnie Kieffer; Marcus Cederstrom; Maggie Hammill; Zach Nienow; Robert Krueger; 
Laura Moyer; Earnest Stacener; James Moyer; Theresa McFarland; Mike Engelberger; Dave and 
Barb Kalland; Carol Clark; Allison Jorgenson; Tom Fendrick; Matt Dregne; Emily Bahr; Jerry 
Judd and Cheryl Krueger  
 
Call to Order – Plan Commission.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm 
 
1. Roll Call – Plan Commission.  Mayor Swadley confirmed 7 members were present. 


 
2. Call to Order – Common Council.  Mayor Swadley called the Common Council to order. 


 
3. Roll Call – Common Council.  Clerk Christen called roll and noted 11 alders were present.  


Alder Fred Hundt was absent and excused. 
 


4. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 
compliance with open meetings law. 


 
5. Communications and presentations. 


Police Chief Dan Jenks and members of the Stoughton Police Department requested a 
moment of silence for former Stoughton Police Officer Emily Breidenbach who recently died 
in the line of duty. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated this week is National Volunteers Week and National 
Telecommunicators Week.  Next week will be Dark Sky Week. 


 
6. Joint discussion and possible action establishing time limits for testimony at public 


hearing.  Mayor Swadley stated the applicant (Kwik Trip) has requested to withdraw their 
applications to place a new Kwik Trip at 1700 E. Main Street. 
 







Joint Plan Commission and Common Council Meeting Minutes 
4/11/23 
Page 2 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Joint Plan Com and Council Minutes  041123.docx 


 


Attorney Matt Dregne stated it is up to the Plan Commission and Common Council if they 
want to hear testimony from those in attendance.  It was agreed that since people are here that 
they should be allowed to speak if they so choose.  It was suggested to keep the comments at 
3-5 minutes. 
 


7. Conduct Joint Public Hearing regarding application by Kwik Trip for conditional use 
approval allowing in vehicle sales and service use including outdoor display incidental 
to indoor sales at 1700 E. Main Street.  
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Areal Guenther spoke about easements. 
Attorney Daniel Bach spoke in opposition for the adjacent owner, Jerry Judd. 
Rosemary Cannistraro spoke about the hazards of gas fumes. 
Amber Cederstrom spoke about the hazards of gas vapors. 
Beth Neary spoke about the hazards of exhaust fumes and gas vapors. 
Katie Holt spoke about setback requirements and ability to evacuate the area. 
Claire Kitson spoke about traffic and pedestrian safety. 
Josh Holt spoke about drive-thru requirements and the hazardous intersection at N and 51. 
Adrienne Nienow spoke about hazardous traffic conditions and appropriate distance of 500 
feet for daycares, schools and assisted living centers from gas stations. 
Megan Prange stated a traffic study should be done by database rather than traffic count. 
Bonnie Kieffer spoke about future traffic issues. 
Marcus Cederstrom spoke about the gas station use in proximity to children, noise and light 
pollution factors. 
Maggie Hammill, owner of Weebleworld Daycare spoke about daycares being of great value 
to a community. 
Zach Nienow spoke about potential locations for a Kwik Trip on the east side of Stoughton. 
Robert Krueger spoke of adverse impacts of a Kwik Trip at the proposed location. 
Laura Moyer registered as opposed. 
James Moyer registered as opposed. 
Cheryl Krueger registered as opposed. 
Earnest Stacener registered as opposed. 
Dean Hanson spoke about a historic stipulation that requires a grocery store to be placed at 
the subject site. 
Martha Asplund spoke in favor of having a grocery store on the east side. 
Steve Krieser spoke in favor of the Kwik Trip. 
Theresa McFarland stated there are children at Evergreen Daycare and Kicks Unlimited, not 
just Weebleworld. 
Mike Engelberger stated it is nice to see the community engagement. 
Dave Kalland spoke about busy traffic. 
Carol Clark spoke about possibly losing the existing Kwik Trip for Vennevoll residents and 
the dangers of biking in the area. 
Allison Jorgenson spoke about the dangers for children and the need for a restaurant on the 
east side. 







Joint Plan Commission and Common Council Meeting Minutes 
4/11/23 
Page 3 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Joint Plan Com and Council Minutes  041123.docx 


 


Attorney Matt Dregne spoke about the changes in the law for reviewing conditional use 
applications and the difficulty to oppose them.  He commended the group for their efforts. 
Tom Fendrick suggested a possibility to exchange some lands and create a park on the 
proposed site. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 


8. Plan Commission consideration and possible action regarding proposed certified survey 
map for 1700 E. Main Street. 
No action taken. 
 


9. R-9-2023PC Plan Commission consideration and possible action regarding proposed 
site plan for 1700 E. Main Street.  
No action taken. 
 


10. Consideration and possible action by plan commission of application by Kwik Trip for 
conditional use approval allowing in vehicle sales and service use including outdoor 
display incidental to indoor sales at 1700 E. Main Street.  The plan commission may 
meet in closed session, pursuant to Section 19.85(1)(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes, to 
deliberate concerning the application.  If the plan commission meets in closed session, it 
may reconvene in open session and take action concerning the application.  Note that if 
the plan commission meets in closed session, the common council meeting will recess 
during such closed session.  No action taken. 
 


11. Adjourn Plan Commission Meeting. 
Motion by Majewski to adjourn at 8:31 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael Stacey 





		ADPD3EB.tmp

		Joint Plan Commission and Common Council Meeting Minutes Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 7:00 pm Hybrid Meeting



		ADPA310.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, April 10, 2023 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting








\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2023\Status of development 050823.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


 


 


 


Date:  April 18, 2023 


 


To:  Plan Commission Members 


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Status of Current Developments  


 


Status of Development: 


 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do. 


 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction. 


 Riverfront Development – SIP approved.  Delayed. 


 Dollar Tree – Landscaping and bike rack still pending. 


 314 W. Main Street - Buildings under construction.   


 Emmi-Roth – Building under construction. 


 1680 Nygaard Street - Building under construction. 


 Magnolia Springs final plat and rezoning on May agenda. 


 Popeye’s Chicken – Site work has started.  Expected to start construction soon. 


 1424 US Highway 51 – 138 – Demolition expected to start soon. 


 Gingerbread Daycare on Williams Drive has been grading the site for construction. 


 Comprehensive Plan Amendment and USAA for STI Holdings Development in process. 


 Cummins Addition – Permits issued. 


 Stone Crest expansion – USAA in process. 


 Stoughton Hospital expansion – SIP on agenda. 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/






\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\2605 Cromwell GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of May 23 and June 13, 2023 
 
2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and a portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15) at Kettle 
Park West - Planned Development - General Development Plan. 
This request is to create a planned development – general development plan for a multi-family 
residential project.  The project is proposed for up to 5 multi-family buildings with a total maximum 
of 117 residential units.  The ordinance and application materials are provided.  A public hearing 
and recommendation to Council are necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, May 8, 
2023, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard to consider a 
proposed rezoning of the property at 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and a portion of 2500 
Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle Park West, City of Stoughton, owned by Kettle Park West 
LLC and KPW Hospitality LLC.  The properties are proposed to be rezoned from MR-10 
– Multi-Family Residential and PB – Planned Business to Planned Development – 
General Development Plan.  The lots are proposed to be combined by certified survey. 
 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via 
Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 850 0390 9924 Passcode:  288379 
 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
at 608-646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
 
Published April 20 and 27, 2023 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  51 West Lot 6 Notice.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Planned Development - General Development Plan for 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and a portion of 


2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle Park West, Stoughton, WI 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0  
Fiscal Impact:        
File Number: O -    - 2023 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


A. Konner Kearney of Forward Development Group (the “Applicant”) has requested the 
property at 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and a portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15 
KPW) be rezoned from MR-10 – Multi-Family Residential and PB – Planned Business to 
PD-GDP - Planned Development - General Development Plan to allow up to five multi-
family buildings be constructed.  The Applicant has submitted a General Development Plan 
(the “GDP”) attached as Exhibit A1. 
 


B. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 
designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the 
City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development 
of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for the land proposed 
to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line zoning requirements 
and identifying needed flexibility is MR-24 – Multi-Family Residential. 
 


C. On May 8, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing regarding 
the Applicant’s proposed Planned Development zoning and the GDP.  The public hearing 
was preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.  
 


D. The Plan Commission found that the proposed Planned Development zoning is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, and recommend 
approval of the proposed rezoning and the GDP, subject to certain conditions.   
 


E. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 
that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed Planned Development zoning and General 
Development Plan are consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 







2 


ORDINANCE 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 
 


2. The properties referenced below are all part of the General Development Plan: 
 


• 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), 
Kettle Park West.  See survey attached as Exhibit B. 


 
3. Subject to the conditions set forth below, the General Development Plan is approved as 


presented. 
 


4. The following flexibilities to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved: 
 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot; 
• Minimum landscape surface ratio of 30% (50% typical); 
• Minimum building rear setback of 25 feet (50 feet typical); 
• Greater than 12 dwelling units per building. 


 
5. The Planned Development area shall be developed and used in full compliance with all 


standards and requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned I - 
Institutional, except as flexibilities are expressly authorized in this ordinance.  Chapter 78 
of the City Code, the General Development Plan, this Ordinance and the approved Specific 
Implementation Plan will constitute the zoning regulations for the property, and may be 
enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance,  
General Development Plan shall be maintained and kept on file by the City of Stoughton 
Planning Office.  
 


6. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\2605 Cromwell GDP Ordinance.docx 







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �������


�


�


�


����������	�
����������������


�������������������������


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


� �


�


�


�


�


�


��������������������	�
����


���� ��!��
��"�!��!�


���������������


�


#��$��%���&������!������������� �


�'�����!���!�'� �����������������	�
���������


�


�


EXHIBIT A1







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �������


�


�


�


�


�


���������


�


�	�
�����		�����


���(�"���������"����!�))))))))))))))))))))))))))**))� �������


���(�"��+�"	���!%�)))))))))))))))))))))))*)))))**� �������


� ��!�������&������!�����!���!%�,������!������!%�+�	�-�������!�)**� �����.�


� ��" ���"����������!)))))*))))))))))))))))))))))****� �����/�


� ����������!)))))))))))*))))))))))))))))))))))***� �����0�


� ��!"����!)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))*)*� ��������


� �


�


���������


� 12 �'�����3���"����!�����


� 12 �'���+�3�������!��2������


� 12 �'�����3��������!��������4�-�5�!�����������"������!��


� 12 �'�����3���!"�������!�


12 �'���1�3�����������	�
����6������!������!�


12 �'���#�3���!%�"�������!�


12 �'�����3����������7$!����$�� �!����8���


12 �'���9�3�#����6�"	������!�


12 �'���:�3����	��!%���%�"����!�


�


�


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �������


�


�


�


�	�
�����������������


���� �$!��!������������� �����(�"������������"���%��!�� ��!��� ��!�������!��������������	�
���������.����


� ��6��'��9����!�9�����;<��
�9����������=>��������.���?�"	��!����������!%�6 �����%�$���������������	�



���������/����� �������!���������$��������*��


6 �����(�"�� �����$��%� ��@������ �$�8���� "�������%� ��&������� ;<���=>� ��� ������� ��!�������"��� ���� � ��


���(�"������ �$!��!�� ��������!��2����������������*�������$��%�'��� ��!�$���"�����%�A*00�8�"������"���


�!%���
�9�����������$��%�'�"��������������*A0B8�"������"��*�����������%���"���� ���������!���������!%�


-�5�!�����������"������!�������������!%������*�


6 ����������"���!������&�"�!������$�� ���!���������!���������� �*�6 ����!���8����������%�$���������������	�



����!��� '�� ��%������"���%����� ��!��� $���������������	���!������&�!���!%�6��9�����'��9����!�9�����


������"���%����� ����� $������!%��!���+�"	������������ ��!��C�!�9��!�� ���������%���?����-������


���� ��!��!%���%�D��������"���%����� ������*��


�


�	�
��������	�����


6 ����������� �����!�������&������!�����!�;<���=>�����������$������ ��%�&������!���������8������� ���!��


$�� �!�����������	�
����������&�%���%%����!����!&�!������!������	���$�� �%���!%��2"��%�!�������*���!"��


� �������!��������&�������� �����"�����!&��&�%��!�� �����������	���"�!%����!�� �&��" �!��%�%������"����*�


�����%�'��� ����!%���"��������" ��!�������������%��!������!��"�!���"���!�"����������!���!������!���!%�


�!�������������"���'�!��A*/.����"�!��������!��� �!� (������!�8��������!�������!�� �!�� �� �� ���� �!"������


��!"�����E*� 6 ������"���"�!���"� ��"����� �&�� ����"��%� ��"��� �"�!�������!%� "�����%��!����8'���!"��


'��$��!��������!%�%���!%*�:!�����%�"������!%�������%��!&�!����� �&����%�����%����"������������������ ����


'���������!����� �����	����������!���!�����������������"�%��!�� ������8������� ���!�����	��*����"���"�


���� ����"��� ���!���!%�������""��%�!������!�:!+��!��������"����������"��'������������� ����%���!������


%�"��!��%��B������"�!��������&������!����&�"�!������8��������������!��!��*�


:!��%%����!�������!���"�!������"����!�� ��"�!������� ���"�!���"��!&���!��!�� �����������"�%������!��!�


� �����������&�%�!�� ���!��������!����������� �����	��*�:!�����%�"�!���"���!�"����� �&��"���%�����8


����������(�"������'��"���������!���5�%����%������!��� ��'������� ����$��%��������!���!����� ����� �� ���


%�!�������$�� � ����������������!����������!����� ��"�����!"������*�6 ��"�!"��������!"�����!��%�!�����!���


�!�������������������!�� ����!�!"����&��'������������(�"���'���������� ���������������&���%����	���%���!%��


$�� �� ������������������"�����!����$�!��������!������������	� ��%�����!&��&�%*�


���������������	�������������


�����������!"�%���� ����5�!�!��������%��"������!���!%��2 �'��������"����%�$�� �� ���������%���!%�%�&����!*�


������������ ��6��9������$��%������!����!!�%�'��!����$ �" � ���"�!�����!��$�� �� ��"����� �!��&��


���!*�����������$��%�'����5�!�%���������!!�%�'��!�����!%��-8���������$�� ��!�!%�����!���-8�A�


5�!�!�*�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����A�


�


�


�


��� �� �� ���������������!%������!�� ��!��� ��!�������!���������.��&������������ ��"����� �!��&�����!��


� ���������������!%�����!������/����"�!�����!�*�6 ����5�!��$��%�"�����������������������������"����!%�


��!%�����'��$��%�!����!���%"����!�$�����������!%�������� ��!��� '�� ��%*��


:!��%%����!��� �����(�"������������"���%�'��$��!���!��������������!������&�!����!%����!!�%�'��!����5�!�!�*�


6 ���&����'���"�!��2������!%������	���� �����(�"�������������'�����"����!�������!�����!��������!�����������


���� ��$����������!!�%�'��!�������� ������*��


�


���� !�"�#�$�%��������&�


6 ���!���������!!�!���!%����/����"���"�:������!�����!����!�������
�9������������!"�%�%��!��&�!��"�!����


�!�� ��!��� �������!���������.����������!������2��!���!����� �� ����*�:!�������������� ��6��'��9����!�


9��������!�%��!%���"�%�����%�����" ����!����%������ ���7C:�8�B���!%���"*���!"��� ��'���!!�!������ ��


��!%���"��� �� ��������������	���!���%����!���"�!��%�"�����%�'��!�����!%������!������&��*�#����2�������


��&�!�������&����'��������;<-�&��-=>������	�����������!"�������"���%��!�� �� ������!%�����$ �" ����


"��"����%�'����������!��� ���&������%���������������'�������""��!"������*�
 �!�� �� �����$��������!�����


���!!�%�����(�"���!���������%�'��%������%����	�����%�����!%�"���%��""��!"����!�����!�� ����%8E�F�


��!��G� � �� ����8��8%���� �""��!"�� ��"��%�%� ���� ����� $��� �!� � �� ��%8A�F� ��!��*� ��� �� ������� ��
�


9����������D��-�&��-�$���"���!����A�F� ��$��� � �!������!��������(�"��%���� � ���!%����������"�����!����


!���'�����!�!"�����'���"���$ �!�"�!��%���!��"�!���"��!����!�$��&�!��"�!���*�


#�� �������� � �� �����!��� ������� ���� � �� �&�!�� "�!���� �!� � ��  ����� ����� $��� ��� ������� $��	�!%�


�""��!"�*�6 �� �!������ ��!�!"������%��� ���� � �� ������!��"�����%�$��	%����'��!���� ���&��� ��� �&�� �� �


�""��!"��$ ����$��	�!%������!������&���$��%� �&����$����""��!"���!%���@�����%%����!����������


������ ���&�!��"�!���*����.F��!"�������!�������""��!"���!�� ��$��	�!%��%������ ��"�!����!"���&�!���


"�!����$�������5�%��!�� ���!��������!�!"������%��*�����!�����$��	%����""��!"��"�!��!������'����$�%��


���� ����"	����'��!�������&����$ ����$��	�!%��""��!"�� ��� ��%�������&��������%���������%������&�!���


 ��%������"���&�!����" ����6 �����������!%�6 ��#���%D��-����&�*���� �� �� ���%%����!����� ����&�!���


���� ������%��������	��� ��������&�%�$��	�!%����������� ��6��'��9����!� ��������� ��������"�����%�%���"��


"���������!� ���� �!�� �%%����!��� ����� �&�!�� ���"�� �!� � �����	��*� ��!"�����!�!��� � �� ����� ��� � �$�!��


����!��$��	�!%��""��!"������ ���%���!������!��� ����!��&�!���"�!����$��%�!���'�!������ �� ����D��


��������!�*��


:!���������� ��@�!�����'���%�"�������!� �������������!"��"����%�$�� �� ����"	����'��!�����!%�$��	�


���&��� �����%���
�9��������������"�!��%����� ���������������������!�!��!��� �������!���������.*���� �� �


� ����8�!�������!������ �� ��!%��!%��'��@�!�������� ������ ��9���������!�� ����!������$�!D�����&��� ��


��!�!"���������������
�9��������������$����%�"������� ��%�'��������"�����!���!%����&�%��������2��!����������


���� �� ����*�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����.�


�


�


�


����'(�)�*����"+���&�


�����/����"���!����5�!�%��-8���;���%$����!��!���������"��>�������!���!�����2����%�!���������.�������


����%�!�����!���*�:!�?���������#����'�����%����A8!��������������"�!"�������!����������/�$�� ���%���2�


���%"�� ���"����%*� ��� �� � %�����!�� �������� $�� � &������ "�!���"����� �!%� "�!���"���!� ���!�� $����


�2�����%�� #��� $��� !�'��� ��� "������ �� ��!�!"������ &��'��� ���!� ��� ��&�� � �� ���(�"�� ���$��%� %�� ���


"�!��!������!"�����!��"�!���"���!�"�����"����%�$�� �����2����%�!���������.�!���*���!"��?�!�������


������ "�!���"���!� "�����  �&�� ��"�����%� �����2�������� �AF�� "�����!�� �� !���'��� ��!�!"���� '������� ���


�&��"���� �!� ����� ���(�"��*� 6 �� ���(�"��� ����"��%� ����� ���!���"�!����  �&�� '��!� ��$��� %�!�����


%�&������!�� ��!"�� � �� "����"��� ����� ��� ��!�����%� ��&�!�� ��� �!����"��!�� ��� ������� � �� �!"�����%�


"�!���"���!�"����*� � :!�"�!&�������!��$�� ������������� �����/����!�� ���!�������"��!������5�%�������������


 �� ���%�!���������%�!��������(�"���!%������!����������!��!��%�%����'���2�����%*�


���������"��'�!��� ��!��� ��!�������!���������.��!%�� ���!���������������/�$��%�"��������A*00�8�"���


%�&�����'���������!%����&�%����!%������� �����������"�!%"�&������������!������%�!�����%�!���������������


����� �����������������(�"���$�� �!�� �������������� ��!*��


�


,���	��-�������������������.��/�-�����&/��������������������


���%���"��%��!���������-��� ���������%����!!�%�%�&������!��;<��=>�� ���������� �����!%��%������-8�A�


H�!�!��������"��$�� ���&������2"�����!�� �� ��� ��%��!�����!�'���$*��


�


��!%�,��I����������%��!%�"�!%����!�����������!�%��!�5�!�!��%�����"���-8�A*�


��!������!%�:!��!�����-�@�����!��I�


0������


-���	����


��2����������


��!�����;���>�%J�"�


��!������!%�"����


����"��������;��->�


��2�����""�������'��%�!��


"�&������


�-8�A� �A� .�F� ��F�


��� �A�


��2�3���/�!����


��F�


��!"�������!�3�A�F�


��F�


�


�


+�	�-�������!�I�


0������


-���	����


��!�����



�%� �;��>�


��!����'�"	�


#��!��;��>�


��!����'�"	�


��%��;��>�


��!����'�"	�


-����;��>�


��!����'�"	��&��������%��


�������J�������;��>�


�-8�A� B�� �.� �.� .�� .J���


��� B�� �.� �.� �.� .J���


�


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����E�


�


�


�


0������


-���	����


��!����������


;�������%>�


��!��$����!��,!���


���������!�;��>�


��2�+��%�!��9��� ��


;��>�


7��8����������	�!��


;�����������'�%����>�


�-8�A� ��0�.�� A�� A�� ��3���%���J��!�8


'�%�����


��3��$�8'�%�����


�*.8�� ���8'�%�����


��� ��0�.� A�� A�� ��3���%���J��!�8


'�%�����


��3��$�8'�%�����


�*.8�� ���8'�%�����


�


�


�


����	&��+�*�"'1�����������2�


�


•� �����������.���3�,�����.����!"��������"�����;�����!"��������"��������"��>��


o� ��� -����!���I� ����$�!�� ��&����� ���!"����� ���"����� ����$�� � �� ���2�'������ ��� �����


���"����������"����!��� ���'��������� ���������� ���!%�� �������� ����������*�


•� �����������.���3���������� �!����%$����!��!��������'��%�!��


o� ���-����!���I� :!"�����%�%�!���������'��%�!������$�� ����"�!���"���!�����"��!"���!%�


"������%"���!*�


•� *�����������������	+��������3���4�3���F�


�


12����!�������!%�H�!�!�� ��-� ����������;��>� ��!������-�


;��>�


6�����


�����/�;�-8��>� .�F� ��0�B��� .A�A.�� 0��A���;�0F>�


�����.���!&�!���!���!����


;���!!�%�+��!���>�


�.F� ����0�.� �.�B.��


�������!� ��F� ����/�.� E��0��� E��0���;��F>�


�


o� ���-����!���I�
 �!�"������!��� ���2����!��5�!�!��$�� �� ���������%�����5�!�!���


� ���������%���-���������� �!�� ��"���!��"��'�!�%���-���������.��!%��/*�6 ���������%�


��-� ���&�%��� � �� ����� ��@���%� ��� ����� ���8������� ���	�!�� ��@�����!��� �!%�


�""����%���� � �� �!��"�����%� '��%�!�� �������!��*� 6 �� "���!�� "�!"���� ���!� ����


12 �'����� ����!���-���������2��������A�F*�6 ����@����%���-������F����&�%��������


'������������$������������%������%���&��$�%��!��� ����������"���"��������!�����!�


���!� ���"���� ;<�:�=>*� 7!����� �����$����� $���� '�� ���&�%�%� ��� �!���� � �� �&������


�����$���������������!���!�����&��������"��%�'��� ���������%���-*���


•� *����������������	�)��.������


o� ��� -����!���I� 6 �� ��%"�%� ����� ���%� ���'�"	� ���&�%��� �%%����!��� ���"�� ���� �����


"��"�����!��!%��""���*�


�


�


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����/�


�


�


�


�	��������	��-������


���%���"��%��!���������-����$! �����������������!����&�!�������!��� ��%�!�������@�����!�������-8�A�


5�!�!������!&����!�%������ �����(�"������*�1�" ��$�8������'��%�!��������!!�%�����!"�%�������2���������A8


!����������	������������8������� ���!�*�6 ��'��%�!��������!%���" ���"�����" ���"���� ��� �!��!%�%����


"�����������!�����!������� �������8�"����"�����"����������$�� �!�����������	�
�����!%�� ����!���8�������


����%�!�����!��� '�� ��%����6 �����%�$�*�


6 ���&������'��%�!��������������������!"�%��������"��&���!%�%��'��������������!%�%������!���!"�%�!��&�!���


��%�!��; ���5�!���>�$�� ��""�!������'���%��!%�'����!���!���;&����"��>��!%�"������������!�*���"�!&�!���!���


���" �%������$�� ���'�����������"�����������"�����!��!�� ����"�%����!%�����J��&����!�*�6 ��"�!"������


�������'���$�%���"��� ����!�������" ���"�����" ���"�����!%������*��


�!���!"����������"�������" ����� ������!�����%���" �%����������$����'��%����!�%�$�� �� �������@������


�!%���" ���"�����" ���"�������� ������%�!�����'��%�!��*��


�


�


����������


:!��%%����!����� ���������%�����8������ �"�!!�"��&�����!%�!��$��	���� �!���!�����%�$��	����!��2�������


"���!�������"�����'��!���������%�����!"�%��������!��������!�����"!�"���'������!���%�����������'����!%��!�


���!���$!����"�����������2�'�����������*�12����������!�������"���������������� �����������5�%�'������%�!���


�!%�� ��"������%�%����!�����!��!%�%�������&�%��������!����������"���!������� ���!�������%�!���&�!����


�!%������&����"������!*�


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����0�


�


�


�


�����-������


�


�����������������	��������


�������!����"�!"�������!������� �����(�"�������%���"��%�������������A��!���*����������"������2������%�"�!"��!�


�'���� ��%�!���������A������%�!�����!�����!%�� ��������"�����"����%�$�� �� �����(�"��%��!���������!����


"�!"���� ��&��$�� ��� � �� ���(�"�� ����*� :!� �����"����� "�!"��!�� $���� �����%� �����%�!�� � �� � ���%� �""����


������!��'��$��!�6�� ������!%�� �������������������!%�� ������!�����"�!���"���'��$��!�� ��%������!��


���������*��


,����5�!��� �����%'�"	�#�����"��&�%��� ��������%"���� ������%�!�����!����������A�8!�����������2����


����$�'���%�!����� � ��� ��� "�!�����%�$�� ��-8�A� 5�!�!�����!%��%�*�6 �� ��%"�%�%�!����� ������ �� �!������


"�!"�������&�%����!�������!������������!����� ���%��""����������!����!%�����5������!�����""�������!��


&��� ����$���� ����� ��� �8��8$��*� +�� ����&�!�� � �� � ���%� �""���� ������!��� �!%� %��&��� � ��  �����


��������!�� �!%� ������"� $���� �����!� � �� ����� ��� � �� "���!�� "�!%����!� �!%� ����&����� � �� ������"� �������


"�!"��!������"����%�$�� �� ���$��%������!�����*�


�


5	���,���	�����


���1!��!����!���������%���6������!������!���%�������" �%������������������%���!�������� ������"��� ��


��5�!������-8�A�$��%� �&���!���"���������"�$ �!�"������%����� ���2����!��5�!�!�*��


���1!��!����!���&�����%�� ���������!������!��!��"�����%������������!%�� ���������%���!�����""����%��&�*�


6 �� <���� �� 6���� ��!����� �!%� �""���=� �������� � %��"��'��� � �� ���(�"��%� ����"�� �!� ��"��� ������"*� ���


1!��!����!����!%��<� �����!�����������"����!����!��"�����%�����������!�������"�"�!������!����!��!���'��


���%$��������!�����"���!��=��!%�� ��<�""����&�������$�������������������������!����������� �����!���!%�


!��������������"�����5�!��� �����"������%$�������""����!���'��"����"�����!%���������������*=��


6 ��"�!"����!�'���$������	�!�%���"���������� ����!%�!��������1!��!����!�D���������!������!���%�*�


•� 6 �� "���!�����������%� ����� �!%� 5�!�!�������2��"��%� �����!������'��$��!���F��!%��.F� �����


������"�� �!�� ���2����!��������!%�5�!�!���������'��%��*�6 ���"��������!�"�!��%���%���%���$ ����


��%��������&�!���""���%����� �����&�������������%�"�!&�!���!�"�!���*��


•� 6 �� "���!���� �������%� ���� �!%� 5�!�!�� $���� ��!������ ����� "�!�����!�� ������"� $�� ��� � ��


&����'����������"����%�$�� ���"�!&�!���!�"�!���*��


•� 6 �� �������%�����8������� %�&������!�� �!� ���� ��$��%� ��!������ �'��� �!�� ����� ������!���


%��!�����	� ���*��""�������� ���%�&������!����������$������������!����!��"�����%�����������!�


������"�"�!������!��!���"������%$������������������� ���%�&������!�*�


�


�


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� �����B�


�


�


�


�����*����+���&�������6����7���������������������-	����


6���������!�����1!��!����!�D����!%�!����� �������$�!���2�������������"��������������������� �������5����


��!�����""�������!����������%�!��*�����"�!%��""�������!��������!!�%����'�����&�%�%������� ��6��9����������


����������!"����*�


��


�


�


�


�


�����������	�����	������2�('�.�����


��.�7���!��������� ��!�


�


%���������������	������2� ''�.�����


./���9�� ��!%�
������%%����!�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� ��������


�


�


�


8�	��������	����&�*��������	������39�*�:4�


6 �����&����%��&��$����'��%����!�%�����""����%����������!%�1�����!�!����%����!%����&�%��"������������!���


���� �����!��!���!"��*���������%��#����6�"	������!��%���!��������� ���'�����������A/D���%%�����"	����


��!�&���� ��� �� �����(�"������*�+���$�������&�����	���%����!������!�������""����%����������!%�1��*���


•� 6 ��"��"�����!��������'���%�;�>��!�12 �'��������&�%���������""�������+��%�!�����!%���"������""����


������������� ���%(�"�!������������	���!������&�!��


•� 12 �'�����!����;�>� �� ��� ���� ��������!%�1����""������!�������� ��6��9�������������� �����(�"��


����*� 6 �� �""���� ��!�� $��%� '�� "�!������%� �!� '�� � �!%�� '�� '������� �����*� #���� �!%� 1���


���������!����$��%� �&��	���%��""�������� ���������!%��""������!�*��


•� :!!�����!�!����%���������	�!����������!%��$����'������!���������8���


•� ���%8�!%���!���"���!���� �&������!�� �������������


•� ��2���� ������!�� ������� �!��.�8����


#�� ���%������%�%����!����������%�&������!����""������!%�"��"�����!�$�����""�������������� ��������:��


���"���*�


������	�����	��������


��%������!� "��"�����!� ��� ���&�%�%� '�� �� !��$��	� ��� ��%�$��	�� �!%� �� "�!����� "������%� ���"�*� ����"��


"�!!�"���!��������$����������!%�� �������������������������&�%�%�����!"������$��	�'����������%(�"�!��


��!%������!%����!�����*�:!��%%����!�������������������%������!���������!�������!�������'�"�"������	�!��


�����������'��!���������%��%(�"�!������ �������������'��%�!��*��


�	�����-���������


������������ �������!���5�!�!������� ��!%�����!�������/����"�������	��!%�%�%�"����!������.�!�����������8


������� ���!�� ��������%��'��!��""�!��%����*�:!��%%����!��� ��������!��"�����%����'������� ������	��!%�


%�%�"����!���@�����!�������������� ��������:�����"���*��


6 ���!��!��������������!����������	��!%�%�%�"����!���@�����!�����������" �����!%�%�%�"�����%%����!���


��!%��$�� �!�� ����!�����"�!��2������ ������������	�
��������������!���������'����%(�"�!������ �����&������


%�%�"���%� ���	��!%� ;6��� K����	� ���	>� ��� �����2�������� ��� �"���� ���!�� 7�	� 7��!�!�� ���&�� ;�:KI�


�.����AA�.��� �!%� �:KI� �.�����0�0E�>*� �����!�� � �� ���(�"�� ����� ��� 5�!�%� "�!�����!�� $�� � �-8�A�


!%�����!��5�!�!�����!%��%������%�!�����������	��!%�%�%�"����!���@�����!�����B��/A0��@�������������*�.�


�"����$��%�'����@���%�;B��!����2�����B��@���������������	��!%�����!��>*�


6 ����!�������������������!�����%�%�"����!�����%���"��%��!���������;*�:������������!�����!����� ���� ��������


� �$!� �!� 12 �'��� :� ���� "���!���� �$!�%� '�� � ��%� ��������� !������%� ��� � �� �����"�!��� �!%� �!�� �����


���	��!%�%�%�"����!��!�� ��������������'(�"������2����!����!%��$!��������&����!%��""�������"@������!����


� ����!%��'��� �������"�!�������� ��� ��%��������*��


:!� � �� �&�!�� � ��� �%%����!��� ���	��!%� %�%�"����!� "�!!��� '�� ���&�%�%�� �� ���� �!� ���� ��� %�%�"����!� ���


�!��"�����%����'����@���%*��


�







�����������	�
�������������������


� ���������������


� ��������


�


�


�


�����������������


�������%����!����%����!�$�����""��%��!��� ��������:�����"���*�+���$�����!�����!�����"�!"������


���!����%����!���%���!��I�


•� ��!��������!����%����!���������������� ��!����!������@�����!���


•� ,����5��%��'���������"��&��������������"�������!��'��%�!����" ���"����


•� ���&�%��"�������� ���!���������!��������! �!"������%�!���!%�&�������$����!%�!��


�


�����������


6 ��������"����!��������%����!����!������&�%�������!���� ���!��������!�������!�� ������%��������%�$��


�������������	�
����"���!�����'�����������������!���'������	���!��%*����� ����!���8�����������%�!�����


 ���!�� ���	��� "�!��!��� ��� �!"�!���� ���&���%� "�!���"���!� "����� �!%� �� " ����!��!�� �!������� �����


�!&���!��!���� ����"���!����&�%�!�������!���� ���!��������!������ ���'�"�����2���������������!�*�


6 ����"������ ������!����������&�%�� ���!��������!���������� �!%�&�%����$ ������!���'����������!�� �!�


$ �" �� ��������'��������" ������ ����'��$��%���	�������&���!�� ������������	�
��������*�6 �������������


!����$��%����&�%���!%�&�%�����!%����������� ��������!���������&���!%�$��	��!�� ������%����������;�*�*�


� ��"�����"����"�!���>��$ �������� �������������������!����������!��'��"	��!���� ����!���8�����������%�!�����


 ���!�������!��"���!����'��!���2��!%�%��%(�"�!������ ��"�����"����"�!���*��


�



�������2"���%����$��	�$�� �� ��������!�� ������(�"���!%����	����$��%������� ���!��� ��&����!�����


� ������������	�
�����������������!�������&������!�����!*��







Exhibit A | Location Maps















Exhibit B | CSM Context Map











Exhibit D | Concept Plan















 
 


 


 
    
TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Connor Nett, PLA 


Forward Development Group, LLC   
 
From:   Kevin C. Wehner, P.E., PTOE 
       KL Engineering, Inc. 
 
Date:    April 10, 2023 
 
Subject: Kettle Park West Trip Generation 


Introduction 
Forward Development Group, LLC is proposing a multi-family housing facility on parcels located near Jackson 
Street and Cromwell Court in Stoughton, Wisconsin. The development proposal includes four apartment 
buildings, that would include up to 117 multi-family housing units. The two development parcels were 
previously platted with the Meadows at Kettle Park West development project. One of the parcels is partially 
built out, the other is vacant. The proposal includes a new Certified Survey Map (CSM) that would reallocate 
the two existing lots to better accommodate the existing hotel and the proposed multi-family development. A 
project location map is provided in Exhibit 1. 


The development parcels are currently known as Lot 15 and Lot 27 of the Meadows at Kettle Park West plat. 
Lot 15 is the site of an existing 88-room hotel. The lot includes additional vacant space that was originally 
planned as the site of an expansion of the hotel with a 12,000 square foot convention center and 114 additional 
parking stalls. However, plans for the convention center have been abandoned, leaving approximately half 
the parcel vacant. Lot 27 is currently vacant. It is zoned MR-10, meaning multi-family residential with a 
maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre.  


The proposed CSM would reduce the size of Lot 15, creating Lot 1 sized for the existing hotel, and reallocate 
that space to expand Lot 27, creating Lot 2. Lot 2 would retain multi-family zoning, but the density limit would 
be increased to 24 dwelling units per acre under the proposal, for up to 117 dwelling units. See Exhibit 2 for 
a map of the proposed CSM changes. 


KL Engineering was contracted by Forward Development Group, LLC to provide a trip generation comparison 
between the existing and proposed lots and zoning. To do this, trips were generated for full buildout of Lot 15 
and Lot 27 under their existing zoning as well as full buildout of Lot 1 and Lot 2 under their proposed zoning. 
Additionally, the number of new trips that would be added to Cromwell Court and Oak Opening Drive by the 
multi-family housing was estimated to evaluate whether the proposed site access is appropriate. 


Trip Generation Comparison 
Existing Lots Land Use and Zoning 
Lot 15 
Lot 15 is occupied by an 88-room hotel. Full buildout was planned to include a convention center addition to 
the hotel that would have included 12,000 square feet of floor space and 114 additional parking stalls. This 
space was expected to host a variety of events with various event starting and ending times, resulting in 
inconsistent traffic demand. 


Trip generation estimates for the hotel and convention center were completed separately. Trips for the hotel 
component were estimated using the ITE Land Use Code 310 from the Institute of Transportation Engineers 
(ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition. Due to the more unique nature of the convention center, there is 
a lack of applicable information available in the ITE manual. Therefore, trip generation for the convention 
center component was based on the additional parking inventory proposed with it. The parking inventory was 
used as a proxy for the additional number of expected visitors to the site. 


5400 King James Way, Suite 200   
Madison, Wisconsin 53719 


608-663-1218  
www.klengineering.com 







Kettle Park West Trip Generation  April 2023 
 


 
2 
 


Convention centers tend to have highly variable traffic generation patterns depending on the nature of the 
event that is being hosted or whether any events at all are being hosted on any given day. To develop a 
reasonable estimate for trips generated for this land use, an all-day event, such as a professional seminar 
was considered. Such an event would generate both AM and PM peak hour traffic. The estimate for 
convention center traffic was then based on the following assumptions for this “model” event: 


· 114 spaces were associated with the convention center to accommodate additional visitors to the site 


· 80% of that parking capacity would be utilized for visitors of the convention center on a given day 


· 70% of all visitors would arrive during the AM peak hour 


· 50% of all visitors would depart during the PM peak hour 


· A handful, or 10 trips, would enter the site during the PM peak hour related to staff or customers 
booking future events  


· Daily trips are anticipated to be highly variable and were not estimated. 


Lot 27 
Specific site plans were not produced for Lot 27 as part of the original Kettle Park West development. It was 
zoned for a density of up to 10 multi-family housing units per acre, or 25 dwelling units. ITE Land Use Code 
220 from the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition was used to estimate trips for a development of this 
magnitude. 


Total 
Trip generation methodologies and estimates for full buildout of both components of Lot 15 as well as Lot 27 
are summarized in Table 1. 


Table 1. Kettle Park West Trip Generation – Existing Lots and Zoning Full Buildout 


In!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Out!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Total!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


In!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Out!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Total!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


88 705 20 15 35 20 15 35


Rooms (7.99) (56%) (44%) (0.42)* (51%) (49%) (0.42)*


12,000 70 0 70 10 45 55


Square!Feet (100%) (0%) -- (20%) (80%) --


25 235 5 25 30 20 10 30


Dwelling!Units (9.42)* (24%) (76%) (1.22)* (63%) (37%) (1.25)*


940 95 40 135 50 70 120


*    Fitted curve equation used. Effective rate shown.


**   Methodology based on assumptions detailed previously.


ITE!Land!Use
ITE!Land!


Use!Code
Size


Weekday!!!!!!!!!!!


Daily!Trips!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


AM!Roadway!Peak PM!Roadway!Peak


Hotel 310


Convention!Center** N/A --


Total!Trips:


Multifamily!Housing!


(Low-Rise)
220


 


The parcels, as previously proposed, are estimated to generate 135 trips (95 in/40 out) and 120 trips (50 in/70 
out) during the AM and PM peak hours, respectively. 


Proposed Lots and Zoning 
The ITE Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition was used to generate trips for the current development proposal. 
Lot 1 would contain only the existing hotel. The estimated trips to and from the hotel would remain the same. 
Proposed Lot 2 would be the site of 117 multi-family housing units. ITE Land Use Code 220 from the ITE Trip 
Generation Manual, 11th Edition was used to estimate trips for these 117 multi-family housing units.  


Trip generation estimates for proposed Lot 1 and Lot 2 are summarized in Table 2. 







Kettle Park West Trip Generation  April 2023 
 


 
3 
 


Table 2. Kettle Park West Trip Generation – Proposed Lots and Zoning Full Buildout 


In!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Out!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Total!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


In!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Out!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(%)


Total!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


88 705 20 15 35 20 15 35


Rooms (7.99) (56%) (44%) (0.42)* (51%) (49%) (0.42)*


117 825 15 45 60 45 25 70


Dwelling!Units (7.05)* (24%) (76%) (0.51)* (63%) (37%) (0.61)*


1,530 35 60 95 65 40 105Total!Trips:


*    Fitted curve equation used. Effective rate shown.


Multifamily!Housing!


(Low-Rise)
220


ITE!Land!Use
ITE!Land!


Use!Code
Size


Weekday!!!!!!!!!!!


Daily!Trips!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


(rate)


AM!Peak PM!Peak


Hotel 310


 


Lot 1 and Lot 2 are estimated to generate 95 trips (35 in/60 out) and 105 trips (65 in/40 out) during the AM 
and PM peak hours, respectively.  


Trip Generation Comparison 
Trip generation estimates were compared between the previously proposed Lot 15 and Lot 27 land uses and 
the currently proposed Lot 1 and Lot 2 land uses. Full buildout of the currently proposed plans for Lot 1 and 
Lot 2 is anticipated to generate approximately 67% and 79% of the AM and PM peak hour traffic than that for 
existing Lot 15 and Lot 27, respectively. 


It should be noted that a convention center trip generation is variable day to day as described previously. 
Therefore, day-to-day trip comparisons would vary between the previous and current land use plans, resulting 
in some days having higher or lower trips depending on the convention center schedule. The proposed plans 
for Lot 1 and Lot 2 will generate a more consistent traffic demand. 


Lot 2 Trip Generation and Access 
Each of the proposed CSM lots would have separate access. Lot 1 would continue to have access from 
Jackson Street while Lot 2 would have access via Cromwell Court. Lot 2 is anticipated to generate 60 trips 
(15 in/45 out) and 70 trips (45 in/25 out) during the AM and PM peak hours, respectively. This is approximately 
one car per minute in either direction. Traffic volumes in and out would be lower outside of these peak hours. 
This amount of traffic is not anticipated to result in traffic congestion along nearby roadways or intersections. 
Access via Cromwell Court is appropriate in terms of the amount and nature of traffic utilizing this local 
roadway to access nearby collector and arterial routes. 


Conclusion 
A CSM is proposed that would reallocate land in Lot 15 and Lot 27 of the Meadows and Kettle Park West plat 
in Stoughton, Wisconsin, into two new lots with modified zoning. A trip generation was completed to estimate 
and compare the trip generation potential of the existing and proposed lots and zoning. Additionally, access 
for a 117-unit multi-family development proposed on Lot 2 of the CSM was considered. In summary, the 
findings of this study are as follows: 


· The currently proposed lots and zoning are expected to generate between 12% and 30% less traffic 
than the existing lots and zoning at full buildout. This comparison considered a day where a daytime 
event occurred at the previously proposed convention center. 


· The currently proposed CSM and zoning will generate more consistent traffic without the variability 
associated with a convention center. 


· The proposed multi-family development on Lot 2 would generate about one trip per minute during 
peak hours. Access to this development off Cromwell Court is not anticipated to result in traffic 
congestion on local roadways as a result of this development. 







Kettle!Park!West!Trip!Generation April!2023


Project!Location!Map


NOT!TO!SCALE


N


Exhibit!1


=!Proposed!Development!Area


LEGEND


Proposed!


Development


Jackson!Street


P


U
S
!5
1


Lot!27


Lot!15







Kettle!Park!West!Trip!Generation April!2023


Proposed!Lot!Map


NOT!TO!SCALE


N


Exhibit!2


Proposed!CSM!Changes







Exhibit F | Landscape Plan















Exhibit G | Property Owners within 3002































 Kettle Park West Multifamily GDP 


 April 21, 2023 


 Page 7 


 


 


 


Architectural Design 


As depicted on Exhibit D, townhome style apartment living meeting the density requirements of MR-24 


zoning is envisioned for the project site. Each two-story building is planned to include approximately 24-


units of market rate multi-family housing. The building type and architectural character is intended to 


create a transition from the large-scale commercial areas within Kettle Park West and the single-family 


residential neighborhood of The Meadows. 


The overall building material palette includes attractive and durable materials and detailing including vinyl 


siding (horizontal) with accents of board and batten panel (vertical) and composite stone. A conventional 


pitched roof with gable features creates articulation in the facades and roof/eave line. The conceptual 


images below depict the general architectural character and style.  


Any ancillary structures, such as the potential detached garages, will be designed with the same quality 


and architectural character as the residential buildings.  


 


 


Amenities 


In addition to the proposed multi-use path connectivity and network of internal sidewalks, an exterior 


community space is being proposed to include grilling stations, picnic tables, an outdoor fire table and an 


open lawn space for a flexibility of use. Exterior amenity spaces are some of the most utilized by residents 


and the courtyard design is intended to provide opportunities for community gathering, resident events, 


and passive recreation. 


 







 
 


 
 


Memorandum 
TO:   Tim Swadley, Mayor 


  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 


FROM:  Joshua Ripp, Fire Chief 


DATE:   May 4, 2023 


SUBJECT:  Proposal for 2605 Cromwell Court  


Deputy Chief Mark Miller and I have reviewed the proposals for Cromwell Court. While we are 
in full support of adding housing to community, we need to ensure we have the appropriate 
tools (access, hydrants, etc) in place for us to facilitate firefighting and potential rescues today, 
and try to look into the future regarding surrounding developments, our equipment, etc.  


Access 


Apartment complexes are difficult, at best, in designing the parking/traffic flow areas. Our 
apparatus are very large, and are not getting smaller. Most times, once we park a truck, no 
other vehicle is getting past, especially other apparatus. We also cannot completely plan exactly 
where we will need to park, as there are too many variables in regards to possible needs during 
a fire. Having flexibility is the best option we can ask for.  


I would strongly encourage allowing the access that has been proposed in the drawing dated 
4/21/2023 , with an appropriately built roadway. This would provide our suppression/rescue 
resources appropriate access if needed. We have mechanisms to allow fast access to opening of 
the gates, when necessary (Emergency access) but sill prevent access from the average driving 
public. The important portion though, is the roadway has to be appropriately built (80,000 lb 
truck) and maintained year round (snow plowing in the winter).  


I would also like to see the islands built with a curb type called a mountable curb. This curb 
allows truck tires to roll up over it, and lessen the chance of damage to apparatus tires. The 
drawing shows it is extremely likely trucks will have tires drive over some of the island edges. If 
we were to damage/blowout a tire on a scene, that vehicle is likely immovable from where it is 
at until repaired.  







 
 
Hydrants 


The next item to address is hydrant placement in these locations. Bluntly, more is better. When 
we put down our supply line (5” diameter hose), moving the line is nearly impossible until we 
shut it down and relieve pressure on it. The option to grab a hydrant further into the parking 
area ensures we limit the restricting of access due to how we connect to hydrants. At minimum, 
one hydrant per “front of” the building will be desirable. There are codes that also influence 
hydrant location vs the sprinkler connections for each building.  


I have placed on Page 3 of the Cromwell Court GDP plan (version April 21, 2023) document, red 
dots to indicate the “ideal” locations for hydrants. There are unknown factors that may change 
things, but this would be my starting proposal.   


Parking Enforcement 


The biggest issue we run into in regards to private parking areas such as this, relates to 
management of parking. Designated/planned parking spots all work out fine. Plans with tight 
turning spaces (such as this) really have headaches for emergency services when there is 
parking in spaces not designated as parking. Imagine trying to navigate through when cars are 
parked along curbs that we know that our apparatus will be getting close to. We end up with a 
choice of possibly damaging the apparatus and vehicle, or we do not get close to our intended 
parking spot. This decision is made on a case-by-case basis, depending on the situation (alarm 
vs visible fire).  


Final Word 


I want to re-iterate, we are not against these types of facilities by any stretch. They are a good 
asset to the city to provide much needed housing. I want to ensure that we are able to have the 
tools in place to accomplish the tasks in the event we have a fire (or other safety issue).   


 


 







jripp

Highlight



jripp

Highlight



jripp

Highlight



jripp

Highlight







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


April 24, 2023 
 
Forward Development Group 
Conner Nett 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI. 53593 
 
 
Dear Mr. Nett; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-GDP - Planned Development – General 
Development Plan for Lot 27 and a portion of Lot 15, in the Kettle Park West Subdivision.  Plans 
dated April 21, 2023.  The current zoning is Planned Business for Lot 15 and MR-10 for Lot 27.  A 
public hearing is scheduled for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission meeting.  The following items 
are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Done by staff 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Provided 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  The 


proposed multi-family use on a portion of lot 15 is not consistent with the 
Future Land Use Map of the City Comprehensive Plan.  Proposed zoning 
amendments are to be consistent with the Future Land Use Map; however, the 
precise location of zoning district boundaries may vary, as judged appropriate 
by the Plan Commission and Common Council.  Departures from the exact 
land use boundaries depicted on the Future Land Use Map may be particularly 
appropriate for a Planned Development and properties located at the edge of 
future land use boundaries.  A determination will need to be made that this 
is an appropriate change. 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 
barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 
public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: N/A 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: See below 
c) Bulk exemptions: See below 
d) Landscaping exceptions: N/A 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A 


 
The following are the list of requested exceptions:  Combined lot 27 and a 
portion of lot 15 (based on the MR-24 district requirements) – allow the 
following: 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot; 
• Minimum landscape surface ratio of 30% (50% typical); 
• Minimum building rear setback of 25 feet (50 feet typical); 
• Greater than 12 dwelling units per building. 


 
D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 


information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  
a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 


location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  
b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; None provided 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and Provided 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. Provided 







[- 3 -] 
 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\2605 cromwell court\lot 15 & 27\updated gdp docs 4.21.23\gdp review 4.24.23.doc 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA



		2605 Cromwell Court GDP Update 4.21.23.pdf

		Exhibit C-CSM revised.pdf

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 1

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 2

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 3

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 4

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 5

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 6



		2023.04.21 KPW MF GDP-full size.pdf

		Exhibit C-CSM revised.pdf

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 1

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 2

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 3

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 4

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 5

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 6







		Cromell Court - Hydrant Locations.pdf

		Exhibit C-CSM revised.pdf

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 1

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 2

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 3

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 4

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 5

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 6



		2023.04.21 KPW MF GDP-full size.pdf

		Exhibit C-CSM revised.pdf

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 1

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 2

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 3

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 4

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 5

		093951-P-CSM (Lot 15, KPW) Sheet 6
















\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Cromwell Court CSM Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of May 23, 2023. 
 
2605 Cromwell Court Certified Survey Map (Lots 15 and 27) at Kettle Park West. 
This CSM is proposed to combine Lot 27 (2605 Cromwell Court) and the rear portion of Lot 15 
(2500 Jackson Street - Tru Hilton site) for a Planned Development multi-family residential project.  
The resolution and survey are provided.  A recommendation to the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 


Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine the properties at 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and 2500 
Jackson Street (rear portion of Lot 15), Kettle Park West 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  –   


Fiscal Impact: 
 
  


File Number: 
 
R -    - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


RECITALS 
1. The CSM is referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City Council. 


 
2. Konner Kearney of Forward Development Group is requesting to combine the properties for a 


proposed multi-family residential project.  
 


3. The Plan Commission reviewed the CSM on May 8, 2023 and determined the CSM is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 


4. The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM by the Common Council as conditioned 
below. The Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to: 
• The CSM shall be recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy provided to the 


City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development; 
 


 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\2605 Cromwell Court Lots 15 and 27 CSM Resolution 2023.doc 








































\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\516 E. Main Tower Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Communication Tower at 516 E. Main Street. 
Since the tower is located very near a historic district, the applicant has been working with the 
Landmarks Commission for several months and have negotiated lowering the tower and using a 
stealth design.  At this point, the Landmarks Commission has gone on record as having no issues 
with the proposed tower at this location.  The City Attorney has indicated that if the applicant can 
identify a need for the tower in a specific location, then the City would have to approve it.    The 
resolution and application information are provided.  Plan Commission approval is all that is 
necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a Communication Tower at 516 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 10 - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 8, 2023 


RECITALS 
 


A. Melissa Olson of Dolan Realty Advisors (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for a 
communication tower to be located at 516 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 
(the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Central Business.   
 


C. Communication Towers are not a listed use within the Central Business district.   
 


D. The City Attorney has advised that State Law requires that Cities allow communication 
structures where a need has been determined. 
 


E. The applicant has proven that a need exists in this area of the community. 
 


F. On April 13, 2023 the Stoughton Landmarks Commission reviewed the request for a 120-foot 
tall Communication Tower with a stealth design at this location and went on record as having no 
issues with the tower located near a historic district. 
 


G. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed site plan for a Communication 
Tower at their regular May 8, 2023 meeting. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the Communication Tower at 516 E. 
Main Street, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 
 
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Plan Commission Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
  
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2023\516 E. Main Street Cell Tower 10-23.doc 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications\Zoning Site Plan Review APP.doc 


 


City of Stoughton Application for Site Plan Review and Approval (Requirements 
per Section 78-908) 


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________ 


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________ 


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________ 


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________ 


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________ 


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________ 


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a 
site plan review and by the City to process said application. Part II is to be used by the Applicant to 
submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City when processing said application. 


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use 


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator  Date: _______________ 


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicants Use 


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall 
submit an initial draft application packet for staff review followed by one revised final application packet based 
upon staff review and comments. The application shall include the following: 


   (a) A written description of the intended use describing in reasonable detail the  
    following: 


 Existing zoning district(s) (and proposed zoning district(s) if different). 


 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation(s). 


 Current land uses present on the subject property. 


 Proposed land uses for the subject property (per Section 78-206). 


 Projected number of residents, employees, and daily customers. 


 Proposed amount of dwelling units, floor area, impervious surface area, and landscape 
surface area, and resulting site density, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio, and 
landscape surface area ratio. 


 Operational considerations relating to hours of operation, projected normal and peak 
water usage, sanitary sewer or septic loadings, and traffic generation. 


 Operational considerations relating to potential nuisance creation pertaining to 
noncompliance with the performance standards addressed in Article VII (Sections 78-
701 through 721) including: street access, traffic visibility, parking, loading, exterior 
storage, exterior lighting, vibration, noise, air pollution, odor, electromagnetic radiation, 
glare and heat, fire and explosion, toxic or noxious materials, waste materials, drainage, 
and hazardous materials. 


 If no nuisances will be created (as indicated by complete and continuous compliance 
with the provisions of Article VII), then include the statement "The proposed 
development shall comply with all requirements of Article VII". 


 Exterior building and fencing materials (Sections 78-716 and 78-718). 







Written Description of the Intended Use 


 


Verizon Wireless is looking to construct a 120’ cell phone tower at 516 E. Main Street. This property is in 


the Central Business District. This property is currently a storage facility. The proposed development 


shall comply with all requirements of Article VII. The proposed tower and lease area will be secured with 


a locked chain link fence with barbed wire on top. The tower is designed to accommodate 4 carriers and 


the lease area is large enough to fit equipment for 4 carriers.  











\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\LANDMARKS\2023\Landmarks Minutes 041323.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday April 13, 2023 – 6:30 pm 
Hybrid 
 
Members Present:  Todd Hubing, Chair; Kimberly Cook, Secretary; Alan Hedstrom; David 
Udstuen; and Greg Pigarelli  
Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Absent: Lisa Reeves and Peggy Veregin 
Guests: Nick Peters; Lisa Mensink; Dave DeYoung; Tyler Denig; Melissa Olson; Doug Dolan; 
Mike Klinzing; Phillip Knutson; Ben Y; and Catherine Squire. 
  
1. Call to order.  Hubing called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.   


 
2. Roll Call and Verification of Quorum. 


Hubing verified a quorum is present. 
 


3. Certification and Compliance with Open Meetings Law. 
Hubing stated the meeting was noticed and is open to the public. 
 


4. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of March 9, 2023.   
Motion by Hedstrom to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Cook.  Motion carried 4 - 0 
 


5. Review of proposed cell tower stealth design at 516 E. Main Street. 
The Commission discussed the new stealth design and agreed it creates a minimal effect to 
the historic district. 
 
Udstuen arrived at 6:33 pm. 
 
The Commission went on record that they have no objection to the new stealth design for the 
proposed cell tower. 
 


6. Mini-Grant Applications. 
The Commission discussed each grant application according to their criteria as follows: 


• Has the property received a grant in the past?  Priority for first time applicants. 
• Is the grant for historic preservation?  Priority for historic preservation projects. 
• Is the property in the Downtown District?  Priority for Downtown buildings. 
• Is the maintenance visible from the Street?  Priority if visible. 
• Is it cosmetic or structural?  Priority if more structural. 


 
The Commission has $15,000 in grant funding available. 
 
The Commission ranked each grant application as Low, Medium or High priority. 
 
 
 
 
 



mstacey

Highlight







E Main St
Brickson St


spect St
S 


D
iv


is
io


n 
St


N
 M


or
ris


 S
t


Forton St


Mai n
-P


ag
e


Ct


North St


Fo
rt


on
Ct


Park StSt


N
Aca dem


y
St


Ridge St


S 
M


or
ris


 S
t


S 
W


at
er


 S
t


S 
Fr


an
kl


in
 S


t


Nelson St


S
H


en
ry


St


G


N
 F


ra
nk


lin
 S


t


E Jefferson St


S 
Fi


fth
 S


tE Washington St


S 
Fo


rr
es


t S
t


N
 L


yn
n 


St


C
hu


rc
h 


St


S 
Si


xt
h 


St


en
th


 S
t


N
Di


vi
sio


n
St


S Lynn St


M
an


ill
a 


St


N
Fo


rre
st


St


E Pros
pe


ct


H
ill


si
de


 A
ve


opersCsw
y


516







DIRECTIONS TO SITE


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


PROJECT INFORMATION,
LOCATION MAPS,


AND DRAWING INDEX


T-1


STOUGHTON DT
LOCATION NO. 20212253306


PROJECT NO. 677723
E MAIN STREET


STOUGHTON, WI 53589
DANE COUNTY


CELL SITE


Site


Site


E M
ain St


110' MONOPINE TOWER
WITH COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


TOWER DEVELOPMENT OWNER CONSTRUCTION SECTION
PROJECT INFORMATION, LOCATION MAPS, AND
DRAWING INDEX


T-1


SITE SURVEY1 OF 3
SITE SURVEY2 OF 3


SITE LOCATION PLAN
DEVELOPED SITE PLAN


C-1
C-2


GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTESGN-1


ELECTRIC AND TELCO UTILITY DETAILSE-2
E-3
E-4


UTILITY SITE PLAN, AND NOTESE-1


ENLARGED SITE PLANC-3
C-4


TOWER ELEVATIONA-1


TYPICAL FENCE DETAILSC-5
SITE CIVIL DETAILS


GROUNDING DETAILS
ENLARGED GROUNDING PLAN


DRAWING INDEX


PROJECT DESCRIPTION


CONSULTANT TEAM


Fi
fth


 S
t


S
 L


yn
n 


S
t


H
ill


si
de


 A
ve


E Washington St


North St


SITE SURVEY3 OF 3























GN-1


GENERAL CONSTRUCTION
NOTES


General Notes


Geotechnical Information


Abbreviations and Symbols


Symbols


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







C-1


SITE LOCATION PLAN


Site Location Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


E Main Street







C-2


DEVELOPED SITE PLAN


Developed Site Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







C-3


ENLARGED SITE PLAN


Enlarged Site Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







C-4


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


SITE CIVIL DETAILS


Aggregate Base1







C-5


TYPICAL FENCE DETAILS


Typical Fence Elevation1


Typical Fence Section2Barbed Wire Detail3


Keynote Legend


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







A-1


TOWER ELEVATION


1 Tower Elevation


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







E-1


UTILITY PLAN AND
GENERAL NOTES


Utility Plan


General Notes


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Utility Color Legend







E-2


ELECTRICAL AND TELCO
UTILITY DETAILS


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


3 Utility H-Frame Unistrut


4 Utility H-Frame - Electrical


Buried Utility2


Utility Riser Diagram1


Utility Color Legend







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


E-3


ENLARGED GROUNDING
PLAN


Grounding Legend


Enlarged Grounding Plan







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


E-4


GROUNDING DETAILS


4


3
Grounding
Inspection Test Well


Fence and
Gate Grounding


2 Tower Ground Bar1 Ground Bar Installation


Type GT


Type TAType HS


Type W


Type XB


Type VN Type VS


Type GY


Type GR


Type NC


5 Exothermic (Cadweld) Details







DIRECTIONS TO SITE


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


PROJECT INFORMATION,
LOCATION MAPS,


AND DRAWING INDEX


VZW T-1


STOUGHTON DT
LOCATION NO. 20212253306


PROJECT NO. 677723
E MAIN STREET


STOUGHTON, WI 53589
DANE COUNTY


CELL SITE


Site


Site


US 12


110' MONOPINE TOWER
WITH COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT


CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


VERIZON WIRELESS CONSTRUCTION SECTION
PROJECT INFORMATION, LOCATION MAPS, AND
DRAWING INDEX


VZW T-1


DEVELOPED SITE PLANC-1
C-2


ENLARGED UTILITY PLAN
ELECTRIC AND TELCO UTILITY DETAILSE-2


E-3
GROUNDING SCHEMATICE-4


E-1


E-5


ENLARGED SITE PLAN
C-3


TOWER ELEVATION AND ANTENNA INFORMATIONA-1
ANTENNA EQUIPMENT INFORMATION
ANTENNA EQUIPMENT INFORMATION
ANTENNA EQUIPMENT INFORMATION


A-2
A-3
A-4


EP-1


ICE BRIDGE, AND FOUNDATION DETAILS


GROUNDING DETAILS


ENLARGED GROUNDING PLAN


SPECIFICATIONSSP-1
SPECIFICATIONSSP-2


8'-0"x10'-0" EQUIPMENT PAD PLAN
EP-2 EQUIPMENT PAD - ELEV VIEW


VZW
VZW
VZW


VZW
VZW


VZW
VZW
VZW
VZW


VZW
VZW
VZW
VZW
VZW


VZW
VZW


DRAWING INDEX


EP-3 GENERATOR DETAILSVZW


PROJECT DESCRIPTION


CONSULTANT TEAM























VZW C-1


DEVELOPED SITE PLAN


Developed Site Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


E Main Street







VZW C-2


ENLARGED SITE PLAN


Enlarged Site Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


VZW C-3


ICE BRIDGE, AND
FOUNDATION DETAILS


Ice Bridge Plan3


2GPS Mount Detail1


Generator Slab Detail5 Concrete Pad Section6


Ice Bridge Section







E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


FOR REFERENCE


ONLY


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


8'-0"x10'-0" EQUIPMENT
PAD PLAN


VZW EP-1


Equipment Pad - Layout Plan1







E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


FOR REFERENCE


ONLY


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


EQUIPMENT PAD -
ELEV VIEW


VZW EP-2


Equipment Pad Elevation1


Equipment Pad Elevation3 Equipment Pad Elevation4


2 Equipment Pad Elevation







E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


FOR REFERENCE


ONLY


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


GENERATOR
DETAILS


VZW EP-3
Generator Foundation -Plan View1 Generator Foundation - Side View2


10
'


C
AS


T 
IN


 P
LA


C
E 


C
O


N
C


R
ET


E 
PA


D


9.
8"


 3
.6


"


7"


11
.8


"
1.


7"


3"


26
"


61
.1


"


1'
6"


RECOMMENDED ELECTRICAL STUB-UPS
(SEE DETAILED VIEW & TOP VIEW)


(LOW VOLTAGE STUB UP)
1. TRANSFER SWITCH/COMMUNICATIONS
CONDUITS. COMMUNICATIONS AND 2-WIRE START
MUST NOT BE RUN IN CONDUIT W/ AC WIRING.


(HIGH VOLTAGE STUB UP)
1. AC LOAD LEAD CONDUIT AREA.
2. 120/240 VAC FROM UTILITY FOR OPTIONAL LOADS
SUCH AS GFCI OUTLET, BLOCK HEATER, BATTERY
CHARGER, AND OTHER 120/240 VAC OPTIONS. (GLAND
PLATE INCLUDED)


94.8"


30.6" TANK
STUB-UP AREA


PROPOSED 30KW DIESEL 2.4L WITH
SOUND ATTENUATED LVL2 ENCLOSURE.
190 GALLON U.L. 142 FUEL TANK BASE.


FILL FUEL BOX


4.7"


PRIMARY CB
CONNECTION
BOX OPENING


PRIMARY HIGH VOLTAGE
STUB UP AREA W/
GLAND PLATE


LOW VOLTAGE
STUB UP AREA
(BASETANK MOUNT)


LOW VOLTAGE
CUSTOMER
CONNECTION BOX


GRADE


106"


OUTLINE OF PROPOSED
GENERATOR 30KW
DIESEL


1'


EXISTING GRAVEL
COMPOUND


MINIMUM 12" BELOW GRADE


CHANNELS TO BE SET ON TOP OF
CONCRETE. E.C. TO SET 1/2" Ø
ANCHOR BOLTS (TYP. OF 10) AS
REQUIRED PER GENERATOR
SPECIFICATIONS


EXISTING SOILS
8" GRANULAR FILL PER
EARTHWORK SPECIFICATIONS
COMPACTED TO 95% MODIFIED
PROCTOR


4.5'
CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE PAD


NOTES:
1. SEE GENERATOR MANUFACTURE'S DRAWINGS FOR PHYSICAL LOCATION


OF FUEL LINES, CONTROL AND POWER INTERCONNECTIONS AND OTHER INTERFACES THAT ARE TO
CAST INTO THE CONCRETE. THE PREFERRED METHOD IS TO BRING THE CONDUIT THROUGH THE PAD TO
THE UNDERSIDE OF THE GENERATOR (MINIMIZES RODENT DAMAGE). FINISH CONNECTIONS WITH
FLEXIBLE CONDUIT PER GENERATOR MANUFACTURES SPECS. RIGID CONDUITS SHALL BE SECURED TO
THE EXISTING SLAB, THEN BURIED BETWEEN SLAB AND SHELTER.


2. -THE GENERATOR SHALL BE LOCATED A MIN 5' AWAY FROM A COMBUSTIBLE WALL.
-THE GENERATOR SHALL BE LOCATED A MIN OF 3' AWAY FROM A NON-COMBUSTIBLE WALL.


WWF 6x6 - W4.0xW4.0
WIRE MESH


15.1"


LIFTING BRACKETS
(4-PLACES)
40X60 SLOT
[1.58" x 2.36"]


OUTLINE OF STUB-UP AREA FOR
(1) 2-1/2" CONDUIT FOR MAIN POWER FEED,
(1) 1" CONDUIT FOR BATTERY CHARGER/ HEATER,
(1) 3/4" CONDUIT FOR CONTROL LEADS, &
(1) 3/4" CONDUIT FOR ALARM.


1" CHAMFER (TYP.)


(2) #5 REBAR CONTINUES
3" COVER ALL SIDES (TYP.)







VZW A-1


TOWER ELEVATION,
ANTENNA INFORMATION,


NOTES AND DETAILS


General Notes


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


RF EMISSIONS REPORT REQUIRED


Antenna Summary


Added


Removed


Retained


700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Centerline Tip Height Azimuth RET 4xRx Inst. Type Quantity Item ID


LTE LTE LTE LTE COMMSCOPE NHH-65C-R2B 120 124
90(01)
210(02)
330(03)


false false PHYSICAL 9 NHH-65C-R2B


5G Ericsson AIR6449 120 121.3
90(0001)
210(0002)
330(0003)


false false PHYSICAL 3


700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Centerline Tip Height Azimuth RET 4xRx Inst. Type Quantity Item ID


No data available.


700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Centerline Tip Height Azimuth RET 4xRx Inst. Type Quantity Item ID


No data available.


Added:12 Removed:0 Retained:0


Service Info
AWS3 LTE


Sector
Azimuth


Cell / ENode B ID
Antenna Model


Antenna Make
Antenna Centerline(Ft)


Mechanical Down-Tilt(Deg.)
Electrical Down-Tilt


Tip Height
Regulatory Power


DLEARFCN


Channel Bandwidth(MHz)
Total ERP (W)


TMA Make
TMA Model
RRU Make


RRU Model
Number of Tx, Rx Lines


Position
Transmitter Id


Source


CAND
01
90


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
66936


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404487
ATOLL_API


02
210


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
66936


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404488
ATOLL_API


03
330


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
66936


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404489
ATOLL_API


700 MHz LTE
Sector


Azimuth
Cell / ENode B ID


Antenna Model


Antenna Make
Antenna Centerline(Ft)


Mechanical Down-Tilt(Deg.)
Electrical Down-Tilt


Tip Height
Regulatory Power


DLEARFCN


Channel Bandwidth(MHz)
Total ERP (W)


TMA Make
TMA Model
RRU Make


RRU Model
Number of Tx, Rx Lines


Position
Transmitter Id


Source


CAND
01
90


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
125.62
5230


10
1130.55


Ericsson
4449
4,4


11404475
ATOLL_API


02
210


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
125.62
5230


10
1130.55


Ericsson
4449
4,4


11404479
ATOLL_API


03
330


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
125.62
5230


10
1130.55


Ericsson
4449
4,4


11404483
ATOLL_API


1900 MHz LTE
Sector


Azimuth
Cell / ENode B ID


Antenna Model


Antenna Make
Antenna Centerline(Ft)


Mechanical Down-Tilt(Deg.)
Electrical Down-Tilt


Tip Height
Regulatory Power


DLEARFCN


Channel Bandwidth(MHz)
Total ERP (W)


TMA Make
TMA Model
RRU Make


RRU Model
Number of Tx, Rx Lines


Position
Transmitter Id


Source


CAND
01
90


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


825


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404476
ATOLL_API


01
90


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


975


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404477
ATOLL_API


02
210


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


825


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404480
ATOLL_API


02
210


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


975


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404481
ATOLL_API


03
330


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


825


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404484
ATOLL_API


03
330


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
774.08


975


5
2123.24


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404485
ATOLL_API


2100 MHz LTE
Sector


Azimuth
Cell / ENode B ID


Antenna Model


Antenna Make
Antenna Centerline(Ft)


Mechanical Down-Tilt(Deg.)
Electrical Down-Tilt


Tip Height
Regulatory Power


DLEARFCN


Channel Bandwidth(MHz)
Total ERP (W)


TMA Make
TMA Model
RRU Make


RRU Model
Number of Tx, Rx Lines


Position
Transmitter Id


Source


CAND
01
90


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
2350


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404478
ATOLL_API


02
210


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
2350


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404482
ATOLL_API


03
330


209711
NHH-65C-R2B


COMMSCOPE
120


0
1


124
448.91
2350


10
2462.64


Ericsson
8843
4,4


11404486
ATOLL_API


nL-Sub6
Sector


Azimuth
Cell / ENode B ID


Antenna Model


Antenna Make
Antenna Centerline(Ft)


Mechanical Down-Tilt(Deg.)
Electrical Down-Tilt


Tip Height
Regulatory Power


DLEARFCN


Channel Bandwidth(MHz)
Total ERP (W)


TMA Make
TMA Model
RRU Make


RRU Model
Number of Tx, Rx Lines


Position
Transmitter Id


Source


CAND
0001


90


AIR6449


Ericsson
120


0
6


121.3
1535.27
648672


60
13335.21


Ericsson
AIR6449


4,4


11404490
ATOLL_API


0002
210


AIR6449


Ericsson
120


0
6


121.3
1535.27
648672


60
13335.21


Ericsson
AIR6449


4,4


11404491
ATOLL_API


0003
330


AIR6449


Ericsson
120


0
6


121.3
1535.27
648672


60
13335.21


Ericsson
AIR6449


4,4


11404492
ATOLL_API


Service Comments


1 Tower Elevation







PLATFORM MOUNT
INFORMATION


NOTES & DETAILS


VZW A-2


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Antenna Azimuth3


Platform Isometric4


Elevation1


Antenna, RRU, TMA,& Surge
Protector Mounting Detail2


WEIGHT:


DESCRIPTION:


PART NUMBER:


Co-Location Platform Kit


2448.72


RMQP-496-HK







ANTENNA EQUIPMENT
INFORMATION


VZW A-3


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Proposed Components3


Proposed RRU2


Proposed OVP1







ANTENNA EQUIPMENT
INFORMATION


VZW A-4


Proposed Configuration1


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Equipment Summary


Added


Removed


Retained


Equipment Type Location 700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Cable Length   Cable Size Install Type    Quantity Item ID


null Tower Commscope HFT1206-24SV2-xxx 1-5/8" PHYSICAL 0


RRU Tower LTE Ericsson 4449 PHYSICAL 3 KRC161749/1


RRU Tower LTE LTE LTE Ericsson 8843 PHYSICAL 6 KRC161707/2


RRU Tower 5G Ericsson AIR6449 PHYSICAL 3


null Tower Raycap RC3DC-3315-PF-48 PHYSICAL 3


Equipment Type Location 700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Cable Length   Cable Size Install Type    Quantity Item ID


No data available.


Equipment Type Location 700 1900 AWS AWS3 L-Sub6   Make Model Cable Length   Cable Size Install Type    Quantity Item ID


No data available.


Legends


RET dc signal capable  port


Coax


Coax Jumper – colorized
according to band


Fiber


Fiber Jumper


Alpha, Beta, Gamma


4449


A B C D


OutAISG i o 8843


A B C D     E F G     H


OutAISG i o


Shelter


Tower (Sector Design)


700 AWS1 PCS AWS3


8843


A B C D     E F G     H


OutAISG i o


HEX


1    2     3    4    5    6
Lo Band Hi Band


HEX


1    2    3    4     5    6
Lo Band Hi Band


HEX


1    2     3    4    5    6
Lo Band Hi Band


VZE01


L0


Notes:


- Antenna view is from the back of the antennas
- Colors of connection are just for clarification
- Follow RET cabling standard for non-Smart Bias-T Ants
- Non-RF path elements like OVP/HTTA Box and Hybrid cables not shown
- Size of objects in drawing doesn’t reflect equipment true dimension


L-Sub6







VZW E-1


ENLARGED UTILITY PLAN


Enlarged Utility Plan


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Utility Color Legend







VZW E-2


ELECTRICAL AND TELCO
UTILITY DETAILS


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


Buried Utility2


Utility Riser Diagram1


Utility Color Legend







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


VZW E-3


ENLARGED GROUNDING
PLAN


Grounding Legend


Enlarged Grounding Plan







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


VZW E-4


GROUNDING SCHEMATIC
AND DETAILS


1
Skid and Tower
Grounding Elevation Schematic







PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


VZW E-5


GROUNDING DETAILS


4


3
Grounding
Inspection Test Well


Fence and
Gate Grounding


2 Tower Ground Bar1 Ground Bar Installation


Type GT


Type TAType HS


Type W


Type XB


Type VN Type VS


Type GY


Type GR


Type NC


5 Exothermic (Cadweld) Details







VZW SP-1


SPECIFICATIONS


DIVISION 3:  CONCRETE


DIVISION 1:  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS


DIVISION 2:  SITE WORK


GENERAL


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804







VZW SP-2


SPECIFICATIONS


PRELIMINARY


NOT FOR


CONSTRUCTION


E MAIN STREET
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


STOUGHTON DT
CELL SITE


6202 Constitution Drive, Suite C
Fort Wayne, IN 46804


DIVISION 5:  METALS


DIVISION 16:  ELECTRICAL







516


    TOWER
LOCATION







RENDERING AT 120-FOOT HEIGHT
      VIEW FROM E. MAIN STREET







RENDERING AT 120-FOOT HEIGHT
      VIEW FROM E. MAIN STREET







VIEW FROM THE EAST AT GILES STREET







VIEW FROM THE WEST AT THE MIDDLE SCHOOL







  PREVIOUS PROPOSAL 
NON-STEALTH DESIGN







 PREVIOUS PROPOSAL 
NON-STEALTH DESIGN







 PREVIOUS PROPOSAL 
NON-STEALTH DESIGN







\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Property Log Folder\516 E Main Street\Tower Request 5.31.22\516 E. Main Street Tower Review 2022.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


April 18, 2023 


Melissa Olson 
343 S. Kirkwood Road #5 
Box 220130 
Kirkwood, MO.  63122 


Dear Ms. Olson: 


I have completed a review of the proposed Cell Tower at 516 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 
53589 – Application received 5/3/22.  This request will be reviewed by the Plan Commission on 
May 8, 2023 of which you will receive notice.  You and/or a representative will need to attend 
the hybrid meeting to answer any questions. 


1. The property at 516 E. Main Street, Stoughton is zoned CB – Central Business.  A
communication tower is not allowed by zoning within the CB district.  However, State law
requires that accommodation be made to allow communication towers in any zoning district
where there is a need for such service.  The need has been demonstrated for this area of
the community.  The Stoughton Landmarks Commission has reviewed this proposed
cell tower with a stealth design and have no issue with the tower being located closely to
a historic district.  The City Attorney has reviewed this request and determined the
request should move forward as presented.


2. The setback requirement for an accessory structure is 4 feet from the side are rear lot lines.
The plan meets this requirement.


3. The setback for fencing is a minimum of 6” from the side and rear lot lines.  The plan
appears to meet this requirement.  There is a 10-foot limit on the height of fencing and
barbed wire is not allowed in the Central Business district.


4. Building and zoning permits are necessary prior to installation of the cell tower and
equipment including fencing.  Expected


5. Any exterior lighting shall meet the zoning lighting standards and will require a building
permit prior to installation.  The lighting element cannot be viewed from any property zoned
residential.  If necessary



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Property Log Folder\516 E Main Street\Tower Request 5.31.22\516 E. Main Street Tower Review 2022.docx 
 


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 


    Michael P. Stacey 


    Michael P. Stacey 
    Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Stoughton Map 02-28-23

		Stoughton Sim 2 02-28-23

		Stoughton Sim 3 02-28-23

		Stoughton Sim 4 02-28-23

		Stoughton DT_(677723)_Survey_1-20-2022.pdf

		13337-Layout1

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1





		13337-Layout1 (2)

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1 (2)





		13337-Layout1 (3)

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1 (3)







		Stoughton DT Photo Sim 6-24-22.pdf

		Stoughton Map 6-24-22

		Stoughton Sim 1 6-24-22

		Stoughton Sim 2 6-24-22

		Stoughton Sim 3 6-24-22

		Stoughton Sim 4 6-24-22



		ADPA652.tmp

		Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes



		Stoughton DT_(677723)_Survey_1-20-2022.pdf

		13337-Layout1

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1





		13337-Layout1 (2)

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1 (2)





		13337-Layout1 (3)

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1 (3)
















\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Sto Hosp SIP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
Planned Development – Specific Implementation Plan for Stoughton Hospital, 900 
Ridge Street. 
This request is for specific implementation plan approval which is essentially a site plan review that 
needs to comply with the approved general development plan.  The general development plan was 
recently approved by the Common Council.  The applicant has worked with area neighbors and City 
officials to come up with a site plan that appears to work for everyone involved.  Additional 
screening was added and access to the west parking area is now only from Church Street.  The plan 
meets the requirements of the general development plan, zoning code and City comprehensive plan.  
The resolution and application documents are provided.  Plan Commission approval is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Approving a Planned Development - Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) for Stoughton Hospital, 900 


Ridge Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 11 - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: May 8, 2023 


RECITALS 
 


A. Ryan Birschbach on behalf of Stoughton Hospital (the “Applicant”) is seeking SIP approval for a 
building addition and parking lot improvements at Stoughton Hospital, 900 Ridge Street, 
Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Development - General Development Plan (GDP) as approved by 
the City Common Council on April 25, 2023.  
 


C. The Property has an underlying zoning of I - Institutional which is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan – Future Land Use Map.   
 


D. This SIP approval is based on plans and application information dated April 24, 2023. 
 


E. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed SIP at their regular May 8, 2023 
meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of the General Development Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the Specific Implementation Plan 
for Stoughton Hospital, 900 Ridge Street, Stoughton, WI, conditioned on: 


• Staff review letter dated May 4, 2023 
 
 
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Plan Commission Chair 
 
 
 
   
  
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2023\900 Ridge Street  SIP 11-23.doc 







7711 N. Port Washington Road 
Milwaukee, WI 53217 


T: 414.751.7200 •  F: 414.354.4117 
 
 
 


1 
 


 
04/24/2023 
City of Stoughton 
Department of Planning and Development 
 
Reference Lots: 
STOUGHTON HOSPITAL CONDOMINIUM BLDG 1 UNIT 1 
LOT 2 CSM 13878 CS92/117&120-12/23/2014 F/K/A O M TURNER'S ADDN LOTS 1 - 7 BLOCK 1 & LOTS 1 - 
6 BLOCK 2 & LOTS 1, 2, 7, 8 BLOCK 5 & ALSO F/K/A LOT 1 CSM 11458 CS69/312&315-7/13/2005 F/K/A 
HALVERSON'S ADDN PRT OF LOTS 3 & 4 BLOCK 1 & ALSO INCL & DESCR AS SEC 4-5-11 PRT 
SW1/4SW1/4 & SEC 5-5-11 PRT SE1/4SE1/4 (0.60 ACRES) 
O M TURNERS ADDN BLOCK 5 LOT 3 
O M TURNER ADDN BLOCK 5 LOT 4 
O M TURNER ADDN LOT 5 BLOCK 5 
O M TURNER ADDN BLOCK 5 LOT 6 
O M TURNER'S ADDN BLOCK 2 LOT 3 
O M TURNER ADD LOT 4 BLOCK 2 
 
General Description of Planned Development: 
The planned development shall encompass the reference lots listed to make up the Stoughton Health 
Hospital Campus. A CSM for the hospital campus will be provided. Land use for the planned 
development will be institutional with the main hospital, clinic space, medical offices, and parking lots. 
The planned development will have minimal changes to the general relationship to nearby properties and 
public streets, aside from driveway cuts and buffer yard screening for the new parking lots. 


• Floor area ratio 
o Existing Building Gross Area = 178,158 SF 
o Proposed Addition Gross Area = 56,684 SF 
o Lot Area = 592,832 SF 


 FAR = 0.40 
• Impervious surface ratio 


o Impervious Area = 288,230 SF 
o Lot Area = 592,832 SF 


 ISR = 0.49 
 
General Relationship to Natural Features, Nearby Properties, and Streets: 
The intent of the overall landscape design of the Stoughton Hospital expansion project is to meet the City 
of Stoughton landscape requirements which include Building Foundation Landscaping, Street Frontages 
Landscaping, Paved Areas Landscaping, Developed Lots Landscaping and Bufferyard Landscaping.  The 
landscape design will attempt to blend into the existing landscape context, preserve existing vegetation 
where possible, provide seasonal interest and color, enhance entry areas, provide shade over paved areas, 
screen unpleasant views and provide native vegetation in storm water management areas.  Plant species 
that are generally considered salt tolerant will be utilized in areas subject to de-icing salts.  It is important 







2 
 


to note though, that even salt tolerant plant species may decline or perish when excessive de-icing salts 
are applied. 
 
It is the objective of the proposed Stoughton Hospital expansion project to preserve as much existing 
vegetation and natural areas as possible in portions of the site not impacted by proposed construction.  
The project will preserve the large existing natural wooded area between the Yahara River and the north 
side of the existing hospital. 
 
The existing bufferyard vegetation along the east side of the proposed south parking lot expansion will be 
preserved where it is not affected by proposed grading activities to maintain the existing screening that is 
provided to residential properties to the east.  The landscape bufferyard will be enhanced with additional 
plantings where existing vegetation is insufficient to meet bufferyard landscaping requirements. 
The existing street frontage landscaping and paved area landscaping around the proposed south parking 
lot expansion along Church Street and Highway 51 will also be preserved where it is not affected by 
proposed grading activities.  Additional plantings will be provided if the existing street frontage and 
paved area plantings do not meet the minimum landscape requirements. 
 
The proposed hospital building addition attached to the south side of the existing hospital building 
extends south to the proposed south parking lot. The hospital building addition footprint and the south 
parking lot footprint will unavoidably impact a grove of existing Oaks, Spruce, Maple and upright 
Junipers located southeast of the Giles Street and Church Street intersection that will need to be removed 
as a part of the project. 
 
The proposed west parking lot site is bordered on the north by Ridge Street, on the west by N. Lynn 
Street and the south by Giles Street.  The site is quite steep, and a significant amount of grading will be 
required to accommodate a functional parking lot and a storm water management area on the far southern 
portion of the site.  There was a desire to attempt to save some of the mature trees on the site, in particular 
the Oak trees.  To save large trees it is important to protect the critical root zone which is the area directly 
under the canopy of the tree extending out to the dripline.  Protecting the critical root zone includes 
maintaining the existing grade, preventing equipment or vehicles from driving over the area, no storage of 
materials or equipment in the protected area and maintaining the same level of storm water entering the 
protected area after construction.  The canopy of many of these mature trees is quite large which would 
require large areas of the property to be protected and as a result unusable as a parking lot.  In addition, 
Oaks are especially sensitive to disturbance and can become infected with Oak Wilt when roots and bark 
are damaged.  Oak Wilt can lead to Oak decline and death which can unfortunately spread to adjacent 
healthy Oak trees through root graphs.  Based on the location of the existing trees within the proposed 
parking lot footprint and the significant grade change required to build the parking lot on the steep site, it 
is not viable to preserve these existing mature trees.  There is an Oak on the south side of the site along 
Giles Street that we can attempt to save though.  Since most of the Oak trees can’t be preserved, new Oak 
trees will be provided as a part of the required Street Frontage and Paved Area landscape treatments to 
replace the Oaks that must be removed. 
 
 
 
 
 







3 
 


General Relationship to the 2017 City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan: 
The proposed hospital addition is located in an institutional (I) zoned area. The 2017 comprehensive plan 
discusses existing institutional areas and lists the Stoughton Hospital as a “key” institutional land use. 
According to the visioning workshop held by the city as part of the 2017 comprehensive plan, the 
Stoughton Hospital is on of the most valuable aspects of the city according to residents. However, there 
were also concerns raised regarding traffic and noise/light pollution from the Hospital. The planned 
development will meet all setback, buffer yard, and landscaping requirements to ensure minimal 
disturbance to residents and maintain the natural charm of downtown. 
 
Institutional District Requirements: 
Land Use Requirements 


- All structures shall be located a minimum of 50 feet from any residentially zoned property. 
 


Density and Intensity Requirements 
- Max number of floors: 4 
- Min landscape surface ratio: 0.25 
- Max floor area ratio: 1.0 


 
Bulk Requirements 


- Min setbacks: 
Building to front or street lot line: 25’ 
Building to Res side lot line: 10’ 
Building to Res rear lot line: 30’ 
Building to NonRes side lot line: 10’ 
Building to NonRes rear lot line: 30’ 
Pavement side or rear/street: 5/10 


- Max building height 40’ 
 


Landscaping Requirements 
- Landscaping points: 


Building Foundation: 40 pts per 100’ of building foundation 
Street Frontages: 40 pts per 100’ of street frontage 
Paved areas: Greater of 60 pts per 20 parking stalls or 10,000 SF of parking area 
Developed Lots: 15 pts per 1000 SF of building footprint 


- Buffer yard opacity adjacent to SR-6 zoning: 0.4 (Solid fence required) 
 


Parking and Loading Requirements 
- Institutional off-street automobile parking: One space per two patient beds, plus one space per 


staff doctor and one space per two employees on the largest work shift. 
- Off-street bicycle parking: 5% of the automobile parking spaces. 
- Loading spaces: Two loading berths for institutional land use with a gross floor area greater than 


30,000 SF 
 
 
 
 







4 
 


Requested Exemptions: 
Land Use Exemptions: 


- N/A 
Density and Intensity Exemptions: 


- N/A 
Bulk Exemptions: 


- Minimum front setback from 25 feet to 7.84 feet along N. Academy Street. 
- Minimum Setback from 25 feet to 0.00 feet along N. Church Street. 


Landscaping Exemptions: 
- N/A 


Parking and Loading Exemptions: 
- N/A 


 
Justification and Rationale for Planned Development Zoning: 
The existing Stoughton Hospital building and subsequent additions were constructed prior to the current 
zoning requirements and violates the 25’ building setback limit to a front or street lot line per Chapter 37 
of the city zoning code. The building is as close as 7.84’ to the lot line along N. Academy St. The current 
section of the subject property where Giles Street was vacated creates a narrow corridor that has street 
frontage.   
 
The property that Stoughton Health aims to improve is bordered by Academy Street to east and Church 
Street to the west.  With 25’ setbacks from both Academy and Church, there is a narrow piece of the 
property left to develop, one that is too narrow for a building of this type to function well.  
 
The surgery center planned for this building needs a sufficiently wide footprint to accommodate operating 
rooms.  The clinical portions of the building also need adequate width to be planned efficiently. 
 
Rather than building a taller, more narrow building to achieve the desired square footage, Stoughton 
Health would like to build a shorter two-story building that is more compatible with the scale of the 
surrounding neighborhood.  With minor variance to the setback requirements, Stoughton Health can 
achieve this goal.  A smaller two-story building will not only blend well with the surrounding 
neighborhood it will function better in this proposed format, allowing Stoughton Health to remain 
competitive and continue providing high quality healthcare for the community.  
 
Stoughton Health is proposing to build in the location of an older clinic building that was demolished 
recently.  That previous clinic location by today’s zoning requirements would have also been over the 
setbacks.  The south end of the proposed new building footprint is in the same approximate location as the 
previous clinic. Stoughton Health would like to continue using that property area for building.  Parking 
for the new building will utilize the existing parking area at Church and Main Street.  The same entry and 
exit will be used off Church Street so the change in traffic will be minimal.   
 
The proposed planned development will be an aesthetically pleasing addition to improve the current 
hospital services for the community while fitting with the existing site to ensure efficient use of space and 
minimal construction and land disturbance as possible. 
 
 







5 
 


SIP Consistency with GDP: 
The proposed SIP development includes the new hospital addition, and new parking lots located 
south of the new addition and west of the existing hospital. A bioretention basin will be 
constructed to manage runoff from each of the new parking areas. The only portions of the GDP 
submittal that are not included in the SIP are the areas that were designated as “future parking” 
in the GDP. The proposed SIP is consistent with the GDP in that the development will meet all 
applicable requirements of the planned development zoning district except for the bulk 
exemptions for the building setbacks from N Church St. and N Academy St. as stated in the 
GDP. 
 
 















E Main St


A
m


un
ds


on
 P


kw
y


N
 M


or
ris


 S
t


North St


Chalet CtPark St


St


N
Aca dem


y
St


Ridge St


M
or


ris
 S


t


Giles St


ha
le


t D
r


H
en


ry
 S


t


N
 F


ra
nk


lin
 S


t


h 
St


N
 H


en
ry


 S
t


E Washington St


t S
t


N
 L


yn
n 


St


C
hu


rc
h 


St


St
N


Fo
rre


st
St


H
ill


si
de


 A
ve


CoopersCsw
y


EXISTING ZONING







PROPOSED
BUILDING
ADDITION


FFE = 901.75


EXISTING BUILDING
LOWER LEVEL
FFE = 905.70±


NEW SOUTH PARKING LOT
100 TOTAL STALLS


NEW WEST PARKING LOT
42 TOTAL STALLS


DIGGERS     HOTLINE
Dial         or (800)242-8511


www.DiggersHotline.comMAIN STREET MAIN STREET


GILES STREETGILES STREET


RIDGE STREETRIDGE STREET


N 
LY


NN
 S


TR
EE


T


CH
UR


CH
 S


TR
EE


T


N.
 A


CA
DE


M
Y 


ST
RE


ET


N.
 F


RA
NK


LI
N 


ST
RE


ET


N 
LY


NN
 S


TR
EE


T



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION (NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS) TO BE RESTORED WITH MINIMUM 4" TOPSOIL, SEED, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH (TYP). USE SALVAGED TOPSOIL OR IMPORT TOPSOIL IF REQUIRED.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ASPHALTIC PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW CONCRETE SLAB 



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOW-SIDE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER 18" BARRIER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

HIGH-SIDE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER 18" BARRIER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE SLAB 



AutoCAD SHX Text

3' TRANSITION FROM 18" BARRIER CURB & GUTTER TO ZERO FACE CURB & GUTTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW 30" BARRIER CURB & GUTTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW TRANSFORMER



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ACCESSIBILITY RAMP WITH TRUNCATED DOME DETECTABLE WARNING FIELDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEPRESSED CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER 18" DEPRESSED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ACCESSIBILITY RAMP 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ACCESSIBILITY RAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEY INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT LIMITS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ASPHALTIC PAVEMENT TO MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW GENERATOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW CONCRETE STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW CONCRETE STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW MONUMENT SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-1 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 907.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 904.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

28



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-2 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 894.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 891.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale:



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale: 1" = 30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB



AutoCAD SHX Text

421578



AutoCAD SHX Text

04/24/23



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE LAYOUT PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO SUMMARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAX. IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARKING SUMMARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOOR AREA RATIO SUMMARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAX. FLOOR AREA RATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED FLOOR AREA RATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING HOSPITAL REQUIRED STALLS 124 BEDS (TREATMENT AREAS)-     62 STALLS 62 STALLS 13 DOCTORS-         13 STALLS 13 STALLS 122 STAFF-         61 STALLS 61 STALLS TOTAL-             136 STALLS     136 STALLS NEW ASC/MOB LOWER LEVEL REQUIRED STALLS 18 BEDS-         9 STALLS 9 STALLS 9 DOCTORS-         9 STALLS 9 STALLS 61 STAFF-        31 STALLS 31 STALLS TOTAL-          45 STALLS 45 STALLS NEW ASC/MOB FIRST FLOOR REQUIRED STALLS 36 BEDS (EXAMS)-       18 STALLS 18 STALLS 9 DOCTORS-         9 STALLS 9 STALLS 44 STAFF-         22 STALLS 22 STALLS TOTAL-          49 STALLS 49 STALLS GRAND TOTAL REQUIRED STALLS-    230 STALLS 230 STALLS MAXIMUM STALLS (120% OF REQUIRED)-     276 STALLS TOTAL PROPOSED STALLS-     276 STALLS276 STALLS







PROPOSED
BUILDING
ADDITION


FFE = 901.75


EXISTING BUILDING
LOWER LEVEL
FFE = 905.70±


DIGGERS     HOTLINE
Dial         or (800)242-8511


www.DiggersHotline.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEY INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVEMENT MARKING ARROWS, LATEX PAVEMENT MARKING PAINT, WHITE  (SEE WDOT PAVEMENT MARKING S.D.D.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVEMENT MARKING STOP LINE,  LATEX PAVEMENT MARKING PAINT, WHITE  (SEE WDOT PAVEMENT MARKING S.D.D.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT LIMITS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ACCESSIBLE SIGNS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW 4" WHITE PAINT 36" O.C. FOR DIAGONALS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEW ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIGN INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

R1-1 30" X 30"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R5-1 30" X 30"



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-1 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 907.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 904.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-2 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 894.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 891.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale:



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale: 1" = 30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB



AutoCAD SHX Text

421578



AutoCAD SHX Text

04/24/23



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE GEOMETRIC AND TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN







PROPOSED
BUILDING
ADDITION


FFE = 901.75


EXISTING BUILDING
LOWER LEVEL
FFE = 905.70±


DIGGERS     HOTLINE
Dial         or (800)242-8511


www.DiggersHotline.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-1 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 907.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 904.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-2 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 894.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 891.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEY INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

901



AutoCAD SHX Text

900



AutoCAD SHX Text

901



AutoCAD SHX Text

900



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING CONTOUR MINOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING CONTOUR MAJOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED CONTOUR MINOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED CONTOUR MAJOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT LIMITS



AutoCAD SHX Text

GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING OWNERSHIP OF AND COORDINATING THE DEMOLITION AND / OR RELOCATION / ELEVATION ADJUSTMENT OF ALL EXISTING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITIES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY TOPOGRAPHICAL CHANGES, UTILITIES, OR OTHER PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION ON THE PROJECT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ELECTRICAL / FIBER OPTIC / TELEPHONE / CABLE / GAS / WATER / SANITARY / STORM. DEMOLITION / RELOCATION OF THIS UTILITY WORK MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL STATE, FEDERAL, LOCAL, AND UTILITY OWNER REGULATIONS. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADING NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale:



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale: 1" = 30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB



AutoCAD SHX Text

421578



AutoCAD SHX Text

04/24/23



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE GRADING PLAN







PROPOSED
BUILDING
ADDITION


FFE = 901.75


EXISTING BUILDING
LOWER LEVEL
FFE = 905.70±


DIGGERS     HOTLINE
Dial         or (800)242-8511


www.DiggersHotline.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM CATCH BASIN WITH CURB BOX FRAME & GRATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

RCP APRON ENDWALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIP RAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER MAIN TEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER MAIN VALVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

SANITARY SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER MAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEY INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT LIMITS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-1 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 907.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 904.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-2 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 894.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 891.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale:



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale: 1" = 30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB



AutoCAD SHX Text

421578



AutoCAD SHX Text

04/24/23



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE UTILITY PLAN







PROPOSED
BUILDING
ADDITION


FFE = 901.75


EXISTING BUILDING
LOWER LEVEL
FFE = 905.70±


DIGGERS     HOTLINE
Dial         or (800)242-8511


www.DiggersHotline.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 900 RIDGE ST., STOUGHTON, WI 53589



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT LOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY OVERHANG



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-1 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 907.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 904.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

BIORETENTION BASIN-2 TOP OF BASIN ELEV. = 894.50 BOTTOM OF BASIN ELEV. = 891.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

STONE TRACKING PAD REQUIRED. LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED BY SELECTED CONTRACTOR'S APPROVED WORK PLAN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

STONE TRACKING PAD REQUIRED. LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED BY SELECTED CONTRACTOR'S APPROVED WORK PLAN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FILTER FABRIC FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DESIGNATES PROPOSED INLETS THAT MUST BE PROTECTED AFTER THEY HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DESIGNATES EXISTING INLETS THAT MUST BE PROTECTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL EROSION MAT ON ALL SLOPES GREATER THAN 4:1 AND ALL DRAINAGE SWALES USE CLASS I, TYPE A FROM WISDOT  PRODUCT APPROVED LIST FOR ALL SIDE SLOPES USE CLASS II, TYPE B FOR ALL DRAINAGE SWALES. INSTALL EROSION MAT ON THE BOTTOM OF AND A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET VERTICALLY UP THE SIDE SLOPES OF ALL DRAINAGE SWALES. CLASS I, TYPE A MAY BE USED FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE SIDE SLOPES IN DRAINAGE SWALES EXCEEDING 2 FEET VERTICALLY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL CLASS III TRM, TYPE B FROM WISDOT PRODUCT APPROVED LIST. CLASS I, TYPE A MUST ALSO BE INSTALLED IN THIS AREA PER WDNR TECHNICAL BULLETIN 1053



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRIANGULAR SILT DIKES



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT LIMITS



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEY INDEX



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSPECT ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES PRIOR TO COMMENCING GRADING, GRUBBING OR OTHER LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES. EROSION CONTROL MEASURES MUST BE INSPECTED WEEKLY AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF EVERY PRECIPITATION EVENT OF 0.50 INCH OR GREATER. IN ADDITION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT DAILY INSPECTIONS AND DOCUMENT CONDITIONS AND REPAIRS MADE ALONG WITH DATE, TIME OF INSPECTION AND WEATHER CONDITIONS IN A DAILY LOG BOOK. THE DAILY LOG BOOK, WEEKLY / 0.50 INCH PRECIPITATION REPORTS, APPROVED PLANS AND WPDES PERMIT SHALL BE KEPT IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION, LIKE A MAILBOX, WITHIN THE STAGING AREA. AT ABSOLUTELY NO TIME MAY CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT, DEBRIS, FILL, ETC. BE PLACED WITHIN WETLANDS, WATERWAYS OR FLOOD PLAINS UNLESS IDENTIFIED IN THE PLANS. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAND OWNER:    TERESA LINDFORS - CHIEF STRATEGY & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT OFFICER  STOUGHTON HEALTH 900 RIDGE STREET STOUGHTON, WI 53589 PHONE: (608) 873-2376 PROJECT ENGINEER:   RYAN BIRSCHBACH, P.E. KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC 7711 NORTH PORT WASHINGTON ROAD MILWAUKEE, WI  53217 PHONE: (262) 758-6035  CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: TBD



AutoCAD SHX Text

EROSION NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

POINTS OF CONTACT



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale:



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale: 1" = 30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB



AutoCAD SHX Text

421578



AutoCAD SHX Text

04/24/23



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE EROSION CONTROL PLAN



















































Calculation Summary


Label Avg Max Min Max/Min


Canopy 10.09 15.04 4.01 3.75


Drive - South 1.90 3.79 0.59 6.42


East Path 1.22 8.24 0.40 20.60


Parking - North 2.68 5.40 0.96 5.63


Parking - South 1.83 4.15 0.40 10.38


Property Line North 0.12 0.45 0.00 N.A.


Property Line South 0.16 0.38 0.00 N.A.


South Path 2.31 4.31 1.21 3.56


4.86 11.50 12.91 13.32 12.26 6.80


7.91


5.46


0.73 1.88 3.08


0.83 2.17


0.93 2.28


1.05 2.40 3.47


1.15 2.55 3.46 3.56


1.19 2.63 3.61 3.79


1.19 2.70


1.18 2.81


1.19 2.74


1.19 2.66 3.74


1.18 2.59 3.51 3.61


1.09 2.46 3.45 3.63


0.97 2.33 3.22 2.81 2.49


0.87 2.23 3.30 2.70 2.39


0.77 2.00 2.92 2.45 2.20


0.71 1.71 2.25 2.04 1.87


1.47 3.02 3.57 3.61 2.71 1.38 0.76 0.90 1.09 1.31 1.53 1.69 1.77 1.70 1.57 1.51 1.49


0.62 0.72 0.86 1.03 1.24 1.44 1.45 1.34 1.23 1.20 1.20


1.40 1.12 0.98 0.96


0.99 0.77 0.78


0.85 0.59 0.59


1.20 0.56 0.56 0.58 0.62 0.67 0.72 0.76 0.81 0.86 0.90 0.93 1.49 1.57 1.55


1.42 0.54 0.54 0.57 0.61 0.65 0.69 0.74 0.78 0.82 0.85 0.86 1.78 1.77 1.70 1.60 1.46


1.11 0.54 1.70 1.49


1.82 1.50


1.51


5.80 4.22 2.91 1.99 1.47


1.36


1.20 0.95 0.77 0.60 0.48 0.42 0.40 0.41 0.43 0.45


1.02 0.82 0.64 0.49


0.85


0.70


0.56


0.61 0.52


0.68 0.55


0.79 0.62


0.91 0.69


1.06 0.75


1.17 0.80


1.19 0.80


1.15 0.80


1.04 0.74


0.90 0.67


0.76 0.60


0.66 0.52


0.59 0.49


0.63 0.50


0.72 0.57


0.85 0.64


0.99 0.71


1.10 0.77


1.17 0.79


1.16 0.79


1.06 0.76


0.95 0.70


1.32 1.35 1.21 1.02 0.81 0.62


0.78 0.96 0.92 0.83 0.69 0.55


0.61 0.48


0.58 0.48


0.66 0.52


0.77 0.60


0.90 0.67


1.04 0.74


1.14 0.79


1.17 0.78


1.13 0.78


1.02 0.73


0.89 0.66


0.76 0.59


0.65 0.51


0.58 0.48


0.62 0.49


0.72 0.56


0.84 0.64


0.98 0.71


1.11 0.78


1.19 0.80


1.21 0.82


1.16 0.82


1.10 0.81


1.07 0.83


1.08 0.84


1.07 0.84


1.07 0.82


1.11 0.81


1.79 1.19


2.59 1.71


6.63 5.06 8.24 5.97 3.96 2.57 1.69


6.69 5.13 6.77 4.94 3.40 2.31 1.58


1.85 2.30 2.72 3.25 4.06 5.00 5.23 4.84 3.82 3.20 2.91


2.48 2.71 2.93 3.23 3.71 4.20 4.24 3.92 3.33 2.96 2.97


3.15 3.17 3.32 3.00


4.07 3.80 2.54 2.29


5.07 4.35 3.54 2.91 2.50 2.24 2.03 1.78 1.66 1.92


5.29 4.36 3.56 2.82 2.29 1.95 1.69 1.46 1.39 1.65


4.94 4.20 3.36 2.66 2.12 1.76 1.49 1.29 1.25 1.46


3.92 3.59 3.02 2.46 1.98 1.64 1.33 1.15 1.16 1.32


3.20 3.06 2.73 2.32 1.94 1.55 1.27 1.06 1.05 1.21


2.91 2.80 2.61 2.29 1.91 1.54 1.23 1.04 0.96 1.08


2.91 2.81 2.61 2.29 1.92 1.54 1.24 1.06 0.98 1.10


3.18 3.06 2.74 2.33 1.95 1.56 1.29 1.10 1.07 1.25


3.92 3.59 3.01 2.46 2.00 1.66 1.37 1.19 1.20 1.35


4.92 4.16 3.34 2.65 2.13 1.79 1.53 1.34 1.30 1.52


5.24 4.33 3.54 2.81 2.30 1.98 1.73 1.53 1.46 1.72


5.05 4.31 3.52 2.91 2.54 2.29 2.09 1.84 1.75 2.01


4.05 3.77 2.65 2.39


3.13 3.16 3.47 3.13


2.47 2.71 2.94 3.26 3.80 4.36 4.40 4.09 3.48 3.08 3.02


1.81 2.25 2.70 3.27 4.09 5.07 5.40 4.93 3.88 3.29 2.99


0.79 0.86 0.69 0.50 0.40 0.42 0.48 0.57 0.67 0.74 0.81 0.82 0.78 0.70


1.02 1.18 1.03 0.67 0.49 0.52 0.61 0.73 0.88 1.01 1.10 1.12 1.06 0.94


0.70 1.33 1.65 1.53 0.89 0.59 0.65 0.79 0.96 1.14 1.33 1.45 1.47 1.39 1.25


0.79 1.65 2.28 2.29 1.25 0.75 0.84 1.01 1.23 1.46 1.74 1.91 1.97 1.87 1.63 1.36 1.10


1.74 1.01 1.07 1.26 1.54 1.87 2.24 2.60 2.45 2.09 1.71 1.36


2.22 1.26 1.27 1.47 1.79 2.17 2.68 3.41 3.03 2.44 1.97 1.55


2.30 1.30 1.34 1.55 1.91 2.33 2.85 3.56 3.19 2.60 2.11 1.65


2.05 1.23 1.32 1.58 1.95 2.40 2.87 3.25 3.10 2.68 2.17 1.69


1.87 1.17 1.35 1.63 1.99 2.43 2.85 3.14 3.21 3.05 2.67 2.23 1.76


1.99 1.26 1.41 1.71 2.07 2.50 2.96 3.26 3.34 3.17 2.78 2.31 1.90


2.32 1.44 1.54 1.81 2.21 2.65 3.18 3.61 3.43 2.97 2.53 2.07


2.67 1.62 1.64 1.91 2.32 2.75 3.37 4.15 3.75 3.16 2.66 2.22


2.65 1.60 1.63 1.90 2.31 2.74 3.36 4.11 3.73 3.17 2.71


2.27 1.41 1.52 1.79 2.19 2.64 3.15 3.55 3.39 3.06 2.66


1.97 1.24 1.40 1.70 2.06 2.49 2.95 3.24 3.32 3.15 2.89 2.54 2.21 1.90 1.69 1.48 1.28 1.20 1.18 1.16 1.08 0.95 0.79 0.64


1.90 1.18 1.35 1.63 1.99 2.43 2.87 3.16 3.24 3.11 2.79 2.45 2.18 1.92 1.77 1.63 1.48 1.48 1.51 1.51 1.41 1.23 1.00 0.78


2.08 1.25 1.33 1.59 1.95 2.41 2.88 3.31 1.94 1.84 1.77 1.75 1.82 1.78 1.52 1.22 0.93


2.33 1.31 1.34 1.55 1.90 2.32 2.84 3.60 1.97 1.92 1.92 1.96 2.16 2.13 1.76 1.39 1.05


1.93 1.92 1.93 2.02 2.38 2.40 1.86 1.47 1.11


1.77 1.77 1.82 1.93 2.21 2.30 1.83 1.45 1.09


1.51 1.55 1.63 1.75 1.94 2.13 2.17 1.98 1.66 1.32 1.00


1.26 1.31 1.40 1.50 1.61 1.69 1.71 1.61 1.39 1.12 0.86


1.02 1.09 1.13 1.21 1.29 1.35 1.35 1.25 1.10


0.85 0.88 0.93 0.95 0.99 1.03 1.01 0.94 0.84


0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.11 0.15 0.21 0.28 0.35 0.40 0.37 0.34 0.35 0.34 0.34 0.35 0.34 0.36 0.40 0.36 0.30


0.01


0.01


0.01


0.01


0.02


0.02


0.03


0.04


0.06


0.07


0.07


0.06


0.06


0.05


0.05


0.05


0.06


0.06


0.07


0.07


0.06


0.05


0.04


0.03


0.02


0.01


0.01


0.01


0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.09 0.10 0.11 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.32 0.45


0.01 0.07 0.22 0.34 0.36 0.29 0.22 0.18 0.19 0.21 0.21 0.22 0.23 0.24 0.24 0.23 0.23 0.22 0.23 0.21 0.16 0.12 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.01 0.00


0.03 0.01


0.04 0.01


0.04 0.01


0.04 0.01


0.05 0.01


0.06 0.01


0.07 0.01


0.09 0.01


0.09 0.01


0.08 0.02


0.08 0.03


0.08 0.09


0.09 0.27 0.25 0.24 0.17


0.10


0.09 0.24


0.08


0.08


0.08 0.33


0.09 0.35


0.09 0.38


0.07 0.38


0.06 0.36


0.34


0.31


0.28


0.26


0.20


0.14


0.22 0.12 0.14 0.17 0.20 0.21 0.19 0.17 0.15 0.14 0.14 0.13 0.13 0.14 0.16 0.14 0.12 0.09


0.19


0.22


0.26


0.19


0.15


0.16


0.21


0.25


0.18


0.15


0.16


0.21


0.25


0.18


0.15


0.16


0.21


0.27


0.23


0.22


0.27


0.30


4.21 2.97 1.79 1.33 1.29 1.26 1.27 1.30 1.39 1.49 1.62 1.75 1.89 2.04 2.21 2.38 2.60 2.87 3.19 3.47


4.31 3.88 2.76 1.69 1.25 1.21 1.21 1.22 1.25 1.33 1.43 1.54 1.67 1.81 1.95 2.11 2.26 2.47 2.72 3.01 3.27


3.79 3.90 3.43


3.33 3.38


2.80 2.92 2.91


2.59


14


1428


7


16


10


12


8


11


18


18


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3 S1S1


S2S2


S2S2


S2S2


S5S5


S5S5


S5S5


S5S5


(TYP. OF 18)


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE (TYP. 
OF ALL EAST SIDE)


MOUNT AT +15'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +15'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


S4S4


S4S4


S4S4


S4S4


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


OVERALL SITE PHOTOMETRICS E052


421578
04/26/2023


N
O R


HT


1" = 80'-0"


  OVERALL SITE PHOTOMETRICS
1


2310 CROSSROADS DR
SUITE 3000
MADISON, WI 53718
P: 608.223.9600  F: 608.223.9601


www.imegcorp.com


IMEG CORP. RESERVES PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS, 
TO THIS DRAWING AND THE DATA SHOWN THEREON.  SAID DRAWING 
AND/OR DATA ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF IMEG CORP. AND 
SHALL NOT BE USED OR REPRODUCED FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT 
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND PARTICIPATION OF 
IMEG CORP.   ©2023 IMEG CORP.


REF. SCALE IN INCHES


0 1 2 3


PROJECT #22007912.00







14
1428


7


16


10


12


8


11


18


18


S3S3


S3S3
S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3


S3S3
S3S3


S3S3


S1S1


S2S2


S2S2


S2S2


S5S5


S5S5


S5S5


S5S5


(TYP. OF 18)


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE (TYP. 
OF ALL EAST SIDE)


MOUNT AT +15'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +15'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


MOUNT AT +9'-0" 
ABOVE GRADE


S4S4


S4S4


S4S4


S4S4


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


OVERALL SITE  11X17 E053


421578
04/26/2023


N
O R


HT


1" = 80'-0"


  ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN 11x17
1


2310 CROSSROADS DR
SUITE 3000
MADISON, WI 53718
P: 608.223.9600  F: 608.223.9601


www.imegcorp.com


IMEG CORP. RESERVES PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS, 
TO THIS DRAWING AND THE DATA SHOWN THEREON.  SAID DRAWING 
AND/OR DATA ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF IMEG CORP. AND 
SHALL NOT BE USED OR REPRODUCED FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT 
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL AND PARTICIPATION OF 
IMEG CORP.   ©2023 IMEG CORP.


REF. SCALE IN INCHES


0 1 2 3


PROJECT #22007912.00


REFER TO SPECIFICATION SECTIONS [LED LIGHTING 26 51 19] [AND EMERGENCY LIGHTING INVERTER 26 52 15] FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS.
INTERIOR CORRELATED COLOR TEMPERATURE [2700, 3000, 3500, 4000/4100]K, COLOR RENDERING INDEX (CRI) AT OR ABOVE [80, 85, 90], UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
EXTERIOR CORRELATED COLOR TEMPERATURE 4000K, COLOR RENDERING INDEX (CRI) AT OR ABOVE 70, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.


CATALOG NUMBER SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED COMPLETE AND MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE ORDERED BY MANUFACTURER AND CATALOG NUMBER ONLY. THE COMPLETE DESCRIPTION AND THE
SPECIFICATION SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE CATALOG NUMBER TO DETERMINE THE EXACT MATERIAL AND ACCESSORIES TO BE ORDERED. THE FIRST MANUFACTURER LISTED IS THE BASIS OF
DESIGN.


VERIFY AND COORDINATE ALL CEILING TYPES WITH LUMINAIRE MOUNTING AND TRIM REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO THE RELEASE OF THE LUMINAIRE ORDER.
CONFIRM ALL COLORS AND FINISHES OF ALL LUMINAIRE COMPONENTS WITH ARCHITECT AND INTERIOR DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE RELEASE OF THE LUMINAIRE ORDER.
UNLESS INDICATED ON LIGHTING PLANS OR BELOW, REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL AND INTERIOR DESIGN ELEVATIONS, SECTIONS AND DETAILS FOR ALL SUSPENDED AND WALL MOUNTED LUMINAIRE
MOUNTING HEIGHTS.


DMX - DIGITAL MULTIPLEX EM - EMERGENCY BATTERY ML - MULTI-LEVEL SWITCHING O - OTHER (SEE DESCRIPTION)


DALI - DIGITAL ADDRESSABLE ELV - ELECTRONIC LOW VOLTAGE LINE - LINE VOLTAGE DIMMING REM - REMOTE


0-10V - 0-10V DIMMING EB - ELECTRONIC HL - HIGH/LOW (100%/50%) STEP DIM MV - MULTI-VOLTAGE ELECTRONIC


(TYPE) DRIVER:


PL - POLE O - OTHER (SEE DESCRIPTION) DLED - DYNAMIC TUNABLE LED WLED - WARM DIM LED


P - PERIMETER WL - WALL OLED - ORGANIC LED RLED - RETROFIT LED


FR - FLANGED RECESSED UC - UNDER CABINET TLED - TUBULAR LED LAMP RGBA - COLOR CHANGING + AMBER


CV - COVE SU - SURFACE LED - LIGHT EMITTING DIODE RGBW - COLOR CHANGING + WHITE


CL - CEILING SURFACE SP - SUSPENDED (TYPE) LED RGB - COLOR CHANGING LED


(MTG) MOUNTING: RE - RECESSED (WATT) PER:  FIX - FIXTURE, FT - FOOT, LAMP


CFSA - COLOR-FINISH SELECTION BY ARCHITECT [DESIGN SPECIFIC BLANKS]


PAF - PAINT AFTER FABRICATION WW - WALL WASH K - KSH12 .125" ACRYLIC O - OTHER (SEE DESCRIPTION)


FINISH: VWD - VERY WIDE G - TEMPERED GLASS SS - SEMI-SPECULAR CLEAR


RS - REGRESSED STEEL V - ANSI/IES TYPE 5 DISTRIBUTION WD - WIDE F - FROSTED ACRYLIC R - HIGH IMPACT DR ACRYLIC


RA - REGRESSED ALUMINUM IV - ANSI/IES TYPE 4 DISTRIBUTION MD - MEDIUM C - CLEAR ALZAK P - POLYCARBONATE


FS - FLAT STEEL III - ANSI/IES TYPE 3 DISTRIBUTION SP - SPOT B - BAFFLE/LOUVER N - NONE


FA - FLAT ALUMINUM II - ANSI/IES TYPE 2 DISTRIBUTION NSP - VERY NARROW SPOT A - .125" ACRYLIC M - MATTE DIFFUSE CLEAR


(DESC) DOOR: DISTRIBUTION: BEAMWIDTH: (L/L) LENS/LOUVER: K19 - KSH19 .156" ACRYLIC


LED LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE


S1 SQUARE DOWNLIGHT, STEEL
CONSTRUCTION, CLEAR ACRYLIC LENS,
BLACK FINISH, IP66


O O 6" 6" 4 1/2" 10 W FIX LED 1 1000 LUMENS 120 V 0-10V ACUITY GOTHAM EVO6SH


S2 SITE LUMINAIRE, ALUMINIUM DIE-CAST
HOUSING, TYPE II DISTRIBUTION, POLES
PROVIDED WITH GREY FINISH. 700mA DRIVER
CURRENT, 5000K COLOR TEMPERATURE
WITH 70CRI GENERATION 2. ARM MOUNTED
@ 25’-0”.


O O 1'-6
205/25


6"


1'-2
115/12


8"


5" 73 W FIX LED 1 9720 LUMENS 120 V 0-10V GARDCO - ECOFORM GEN-2


S3 WALL MOUNT LED MINI SCONCE, DIE-CAST
ALUMINUM HOUSING, GASKETED,
POLYESTER POWDER COAT WITH WHITE
FINISH, TYPE IV WIDE THROW OPTIC. 350mA
DRIVER CURRENT


O O 1'-0
1/8"


7" 5
11/32"


18 W FIX LED 1 2300 LUMENS 120 V 0-10V GARDCO - 111 LED MINI SCONCE


S4 SITE LUMINAIRE, ALUMINIUM DIE-CAST
HOUSING, TYPE IV DISTRIBUTION WITH
HOUSE SIDE SHIELD, POLES PROVIDED WITH
GREY FINISH. 1200mA DRIVER CURRENT,
5000K COLOR TEMPERATURE WITH 70CRI
GENERATION 2. ARM MOUNTED @ 25’-0”.


O O 1'-6
205/25


6"


1'-2
115/12


8"


5" 182 W FIX LED 1 18170 LUMENS 120 V 0-10V GARDCO - ECOFORM GEN-2


S5 SITE LUMINAIRE, ALUMINIUM DIE-CAST
HOUSING, TYPE V DISTRIBUTION, POLES
PROVIDED WITH GREY FINISH. 1050mA
DRIVER CURRENT, 5000K COLOR
TEMPERATURE WITH 70CRI GENERATION 2.
ARM MOUNTED @ 25’-0”.


O O 1'-6
205/25


6"


1'-2
115/12


8"


5" 158 W FIX LED 1 21400 LUMENS 120 V 0-10V GARDCO - ECOFORM GEN-2







MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


T/FOOTING - CLINIC


83'-0"


T/FOOTING - CLINIC


83'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


EXISTNEW ADDITION


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


CURTAINWALL GLAZING ASSEMBLY HOLLOW METAL DOOR & FRAMEBRICK VENEERBRICK VENEER


CURTAINWALL 


GLAZING ASSEMBLY


3
2
'-
2
 5
/1
6
"


SINGLE SKIN METAL PANEL 


MECHANICAL SCREEN WALL


PREFINISHED METAL COPING


CW SUNSHADE OUTRIGGER


ALUMUNIUM FRAMED DOOR


1
0
'-
0
"


MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


T/FOOTING - CLINIC


83'-0"


T/FOOTING - CLINIC


83'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


SINGLE SKIN METAL PANEL 


MECHANICAL SCREENWALL


PREFINISHED METAL COPING


BRICK VENEER


CURTAINWALL GLAZING ASSEMBLY


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


CURTAINWALL 


GLAZING ASSEMBLY


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE 


PANEL


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE COLUMN 


COVERS


CW SUNSHADE OUTRIGGER1
0
'-
0
"


3
2
'-
2
 3
/8
"


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE 


PANEL


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


421578
04/24/2023


3/64" = 1'-0" 1
EAST ELEVATION


3/64" = 1'-0" 2
SOUTH ELEVATION







MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


CURTAINWALL SYSTEM


ALUMINIUM COLUMN COVERS


BRICK VENEER


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


BRICK VENEER


CURTAINWALL GLAZING ASSEMBLY


SINGLE SKIN METAL PANEL


PREFINISHED METAL COPING


BRICK VENEER


BRICK VENEER


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


ALUMINIUM COMPOSITE PANEL


CURTAINWALL  GLAZING ASSEMBLY


CW SUNSHADE OUTRIGGER


ARCHITECTURAL PRECAST AT BASE


ARCHITECTURAL PRECAST AT BASE
CURTAINWALL GLAZING ASSEMBLY


3
2
'-
2
 3
/8
"


1
0
'-
0
"


MOB 1ST FLR


100'-0"


MOB ROOF


113'-0"


MOB LOWER LEVEL


83'-0"


EXISTING BUILDING BEYOND


CURTAINWALL GLAZING ASSEMBLY


ALUMUNIUM COMPOSITE PANELS


BRICK VENEER


PREFINISHED METAL 


COPING


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


421578
04/24/2023


3/64" = 1'-0" 1
WEST ELEVATION


3/64" = 1'-0" 2
WEST ELEVATION - CONNECTOR







2


3


1


2


2


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


SIGNAGE PLAN


421578
04/24/2023


N


SCALE: 1" = 80'


160'80'0' 40'20'







INTERNALLY 


ILLUMINATED 


EXTERIOR SIGNAGE


SIGN AREA - 150 SF
1
0
'


15'


Stoughton Health ASC AND MOB


SIGN ELEVATIONS


421578
04/24/2023


3/8" = 1'-0" 2
SITE SIGN 1


3/16" = 1'-0" 1
BUILDING SIGNAGE







jeremys

Text Box

EXISTING BUILDING PHOTO



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Image







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







jeremys

Text Box

EXTERIOR RENDERINGS



jeremys

Text Box

421578-01



jeremys

Text Box

Stoughton Health- ASC and MOB Expansion



jeremys

Text Box

02/14/23



johnf

Snapshot







Ryan,
 
I know we talked about the median on Church Street before.  Following are the
comments from Fire Chief Josh Ripp:
 


1. The island just north of the Giles Street and Church street intersection (entrance) needs to be
removed. It currently, and in the future, will prevent us from making a left turn in the parking
lot right away.
The island mentioned is intended to be removed and shown as such on the SIP plans.


2. The overhang that extends from the new building, into the South lot ((Page 9, circled in Red),
needs to be 13’ high, to allow our apparatus to fit underneath.
John, can you provide the current height clearance of the canopy?  We are currently at 12’
clearance for the canopy.  We will raise the canopy to provide 13’ clear.


3. Curbs in general, need to be set up (South lot being our major concern) to allow a 236”
wheelbase apparatus to drive through.
We will run AutoTURN movements using the wheelbase provided to generate figures that we
can share with Chief Ripp to confirm access to the site is acceptable.


 
 
Joshua Ripp
Fire Chief
Stoughton Fire Department
MABAS WI Vice President
Desk 608-646-0427
Cell    608-719-7606
JRipp@cityofstoughton.com
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/48571be6/UxV4g1kZ2kGR1tmGML2jhg?u=https://ci.stoughton.wi.us/fire


 
 
Michael P. Stacey
City of Stoughton
Zoning Administrator
207 S. Forrest Street
Stoughton, WI. 53589
p - 608.646.0421
f – 608.873.5519
mstacey@cityofstoughton.com
 
From: Ryan Birschbach, PE <rBirschbach@kapurinc.com> 
Sent: Monday, April 24, 2023 10:02 PM
To: Michael Stacey <MStacey@cityofstoughton.com>
Cc: John Ford <johnf@eua.com>; Christopher Tank <christophert@eua.com>; Nick Tennessen
<ntennessen@kapurinc.com>; Lindfors, Teresa <TLindfors@stoughtonhealth.com>;
Karl@lueschowprojectmanagement.com
Subject: Stoughton Hospital SIP/Site Plan Review



mailto:JRipp@cityofstoughton.com

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flink.edgepilot.com%2fs%2f48571be6%2fUxV4g1kZ2kGR1tmGML2jhg%3fu%3dhttps%3a%2f%2fci.stoughton.wi.us%2ffire&c=E,1,nFe3w7toxfD2MlEzn7xpFz-_fwXaGfi6nHTxwGeTHR0uHyNQ1x46Vrdgyfc2Ta3na12lixQ9bl78pbjG7V4ZkrfIAL10ymFaWozN8KROl3JKnsM5D2uYWf2DS1g,&typo=1

mailto:mstacey@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:rBirschbach@kapurinc.com

mailto:MStacey@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:johnf@eua.com

mailto:christophert@eua.com

mailto:ntennessen@kapurinc.com

mailto:TLindfors@stoughtonhealth.com

mailto:Karl@lueschowprojectmanagement.com





[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


May 4, 2023 
 
Kapur Inc 
Ryan Birschbach 
7711 N. Port Washington Road 
Milwaukee, WI. 53217 
 
 
Mr. Birschbach: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) for a building 
addition and parking lot improvements at Stoughton Hospital, 900 Ridge Street.  (Plans provided 
4/25/23)  A review by the Plan Commission is scheduled for their May 8, 2023 monthly meeting of 
which you will receive notice.  A representative is expected to be present at the Hybrid meeting to 
answer questions.  The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. The property at 900 Ridge Street is zoned Planned Development - General Development Plan 


(PD-GDP) which was approved April 25, 2023.  The appropriate comparable zoning for the use 
is I – Institutional which meets the intent of the City Comprehensive Plan.         
 


2. The PD-SIP requirements per zoning code section 78-914(8) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  N/A  


C. A general description of the specific implementation plan including: 


a. Specific project themes and images; Provided 


b. The specific mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; N/A 


c. Specific densities and intensities as described by dwelling units per acre, floor 
area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; Provided 


d. Specific treatment of natural resources; N/A 


e. Specific relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 


f. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 
barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided. 


g. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed SIP and the locations in which they apply shall 
be identified as compared to the most comparable zoning district.  (In this case, 
the I - Institutional zoning district). Provided 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


D. A specific implementation plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 
information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  


a. A site plan conforming to all requirements of subsection 78-908(3), site plan 
review and approval requirements.  If the proposed development is a large 
development per section 78-205(11), a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual 
plat may be required by the zoning administrator; See site plan review below. 


b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 


c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise area of all 
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and  
N/A 


d. Notations related to the written information provided in C a) through g) above 
to specific areas on the GDP drawing. Provided 


E. A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying location, species, and installed size 
of all trees and shrubs.  The plan shall include a chart which provides cumulative totals 
for each species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area and 
bufferyard) of all trees and shrubs.  A compliant plan has been provided. 


F. A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of the buildings including notes on 
materials and colors proposed.  Provided 


G. A general signage plan for the subject property. Provided.  A zoning permit is 
required prior to placement.  Vision requirements will need to be met at driveway 
access points and street intersections. 


H. A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners 
association, if any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common 
services. If applicable. 


I. A written description, which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with 
the approved GDP. Provided. 


J. All variations between the requirements of the approved GDP zoning district and the 
proposed SIP development. No variations proposed. 


K. Proof of financing capability pertaining to construction and maintenance and operation 
of public works elements of the proposed development. N/A 


L. The area of the SIP may be only a portion of the area included in a previously approved 
GDP. N/A 


M. The SIP submission may include site plan and design information, allowing the plan 
commission to combine the design review and SIP review.  Design review may, at the 
choice of the applicant, be deferred until a later time when specific site and building 
developments will be brought forth.  Site and design review is proposed. 


N. The plan commission or common council may specify other plans, documents, or 
schedules that must be submitted prior to consideration of approval of the SIP. If 
necessary. 


O. The process for review and approval shall be identical to that for site plans per section 
78-908, site plan review and approval and if the land is being divided per Chapter 66, 
Land Division.  Covered below. 


P. All portions of the SIP not fully developed within five years of final council approval 
shall expire.  The common council may extend this five-year period by up to five 







[- 3 -] 
 


additional years via a majority vote following public hearing.  Completed portions of the 
GDP shall retain the GDP status.   
 


3. The following are the exceptions approved as part of the GDP process: 
• Minimum front building setback from 25 feet to 7.84 feet along N. Academy 


Street 
• Minimum front building setback from 25 feet to 0.00 feet along Church Street 
 


4. Indoor Institutional uses are described as follows:  
Indoor institutional land uses include all indoor public and not for profit recreational facilities 
(such as gyms, swimming pools, libraries, museums, and community centers), schools, 
churches, nonprofit clubs, nonprofit fraternal organizations, convention centers, hospitals, 
jails, prisons, and similar land uses.  The use is for a hospital. 
 


5. Regulations applicable to an Indoor Institutional use are as follows: 
• Shall provide off-street passenger loading area if the majority of the users will be 


children (as in the case of a school, church, library, or similar land use).  N/A 
• All structures shall be located a minimum of 50 feet from any residentially zoned 


property.  Building addition meets this requirement. 
 


6. The parking requirement for an Indoor Institutional use is as follows: 
• Hospital: One space per two patient beds, plus one space per staff doctor and one 


space per two employees on the largest work shift.  The parking requirement has 
been met. 


 
7. Public sidewalk is required along all public frontages and shall be delineated on the site plan.  


Sidewalk shall be 5 feet wide and a minimum of 6” through driveways and a minimum of 5” 
thick otherwise.  Expected 


 
8. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather surface 


and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly marked to 
indicate required spaces.  Expected.  
 


9. Accessible parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as 
specified by state and federal regulations.  Expected. 
 


10. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a 
minimum width of 9 feet.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


11. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet.  The plan meets 
this requirement. 


 
12. The building minimum setback and maximum height requirements are as follows:  Front: 25 


feet; Side: 10 feet; Rear: 30 feet; Maximum building height: 40 feet.  The plan meets these 
requirements.  See also exceptions allowed in #3 above.  The lot will need to be staked by a 
surveyor prior to pouring the foundation.  An as-built survey will be required to confirm 
setbacks after construction.   







[- 4 -] 
 


 
13. The minimum lot area is 20,000 square feet and minimum lot width is 100 feet.  The lot meets 


this requirement. 
 


14. There are bufferyard requirements when Institutional zoned land is adjacent to single family 
residential zoned lands.  The requirement is 0.40 opacity, which requires a minimum of 10 feet 
of bufferyard, 6-foot fencing and 53 points of landscaping per 100 feet of lot line.  There are 
additional options to meet this requirement.  Requirements have been met. 


 
15. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%.  The plan meets this requirement. 


 
16. The maximum floor area ratio is one.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all 


buildings by the gross site area.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


17. All access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet.  The plan meets this requirement.  
 


18. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-residential 
uses, as measured at the right-of-way line.  Access drives may be flared between the right-of-
way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be exceeded with 
explicit Plan Commission approval.    The plan appears to meet these requirements. 
 


19. The minimum paved surface setback from a side and rear lot line is 5 feet while the minimum is 
10 feet from a right-of-way line.  The plan meets this requirement.     
 


20. Access near street intersections of arterial and collector streets shall not be closer than 100 feet 
from the intersection of any two street rights-of-way unless the street is the only available 
frontage on the subject property.  The plan meets this requirement.   
 


21. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 5% of the automobile parking 
space requirement.  230 parking stalls requires 12 bike parking stalls.  We will need details 
to confirm this requirement.  We have been informed there are existing bike racks that 
may cover this requirement. 
 


22. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and community 
standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan commission.  
Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on a maximum of 
50 percent of the front side of the building.  This material is not allowed within 50 feet of any 
customer or visitor entrance.   As determined by the Plan Commission. 


 
23. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-


single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction 
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures: 


• Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned property; 
• Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way; 
• Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street…  The following exterior 


construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”: non-decorative 
concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or panels, non-







[- 5 -] 
 


decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed fastener systems 
or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning Commission.  However, such 
materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission as decorative elements.  


• Metal panels with exposed fasteners of the same color may be used in the Planned 
Industrial district on a maximum of 50% of the front of the building (primary entrance 
for customers or visitors).  This material is not allowed within 50 feet of any customer or 
visitor entrance.   The proposed exterior materials appear to meet these 
requirements. 
 


24. A landscaping plan, which meets the requirements of Article VI, is required.  The landscaping 
requirements appear to be met. 
 


25. Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards.  The maximum lighting as measured at the property 
line is 0.5 footcandles.  The maximum fixture height shall be 25 feet from grade.  The lighting 
elements shall not be visible from a residentially zoned property. A compliant photometric has 
been provided. 
 


26. A gated trash enclosure with 6-foot fencing shall be delineated on the plan for the handling of 
waste. The exterior of said enclosure shall be constructed of some or all of the materials used on 
the main building.  It is assumed that trash will continue to be handled the way it has been 
handled. 
 


27. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required.  Dane 
County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform 
inspections.  The plan, application and fees will need to be submitted to the City.  
 


28. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on the 
plan.  A utility plan has been provided.  Contact Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and 
wastewater services.   
 


29. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage.  This is expected. 
 


30. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation.  A plan has 
been provided.  Signage cannot be placed within vision triangle areas at access points and 
at public street intersections.  There are two monument signs that appear to be within the 
10-foot vision triangle at two access points to the parking area.  A zoning permit is 
required prior to placement. 
 


31. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







[- 6 -] 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\900 ridge street\building and parking additions 2023\sip documents\sto hosp sip review 2023.doc 












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\2605 Cromwell GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of May 23, 2023 
 
Magnolia Springs Final Plat. 
This request is for the final platting of the Magnolia Springs Subdivision.  The resolution and final 
plat are provided.  A recommendation to Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 
\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs Final Plat Resolution.doc 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 


Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 
Conditionally Approving the Final Plat of Magnolia Springs 


  
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends approval  -0   


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A  


File Number: 
 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 
A. A final plat titled “Magnolia Springs” submitted on May 4, 2023 (the “Plat”)(Exhibit 


A) was submitted by Stephen Tremlett for Eldon Land Development LLC (the 
“Developer”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) on April 10, 2023 for review and 
action, and the statutory review period will expire on June 10, 2023. 
 


B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the 
City Council. 
 


C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat, and determined that the Plat will only be 
consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, 
and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan if all of the conditions set forth below 
are satisfied.  The Plan Commission recommended approving the Plat subject to the 
conditions set forth below. 
 


D. The Plan Commission and Common Council find that the configurations of 
stormwater management ponds within the Plat are acceptable under Section 66-904(8) 
of the Municipal Code. 
 


E. The Common Council has reviewed the Plat, and agrees with the Plan Commission 
recommendations. 
 







 
\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs Final Plat Resolution.doc 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Final Plat of 
Magnolia Springs (Exhibit A) subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A final plat shall not be approved unless the following conditions are satisfied: 


 
A. Developer and the City must enter into a development agreement that requires 


Developer to construct and install, at Developer’s cost, or in accordance with 
all City standards including:   


 
(1) Sanitary sewer service mains, manholes, laterals and all appurtenances; 


water mains, laterals, hydrants, valves and all appurtenances; storm 
sewer and storm water management facilities; public streets; gas and 
electric utilities; cable television; telephone service; sidewalks; street 
signs; and street lamps.  Developer must further agree to construct 
improvements required to connect the Property to existing public 
improvements, facilities or utilities, including any improvements 
required outside the boundaries of the Property.  Among other public 
improvements, Developer must agree to construct and install the 
following off-site or oversized improvements: 


  
a. Off-site improvements necessary to development of the 


Property, including connections to existing public 
improvements, facilities or utilities, and replacement of the 
existing 6-inch sanitary sewer main located in S. Page Street, 
from Broadway Street to Chicago Street, with a 8-inch sanitary 
sewer main and an 8-inch water main from Orchid Avenue to 
the existing water main in S. Fourth Street; and 


b. Fully improve Page Street between the north plat line to Isham 
Street including curb and gutter, asphalt pavement, sidewalks on 
both sides, underground utilities, etc.  


 
2. The City shall adopt an ordinance changing the zoning classification of the lots within 


the Plat as follows: 
 


A. Lots 33-42, 45-58, 61-65, 72-74, 83-86, and 98-103 shall be zoned SR-
6 Single Family Residential. 


B. Lots 19-31 and 87-93 shall be zoned SR-5 Single Family Residential.  
C. Lots 1–18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 66-71, 75-82, 94-97 and 104 shall be 


zoned PD-Planned Development. 
D. Outlots 1-4 shall be zoned Institutional (Park and Open Space). 







 
\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs Final Plat Resolution.doc 
 


 
3. All unpaid special assessments levied against any lands within the Plat must be paid 


before the City will sign a Final Plat. 
 


4. Before the City will sign a Final Plat, Developer must provide evidence that the Plat 
has been submitted to all necessary objecting and approving authorities, that all 
objections have been addressed, and that all necessary approvals have been given. 
 


5. Before the City will sign a Final Plat, Developer to do the following in pursuit of 
Capital Area Regional Planning Commission recommendations identified as part of 
the Urban Service Area Amendment: 
 
A. Request a formal Endangered Resources review by the WDNR or one of their 


certified reviewers for potential impacts to endangered resources like rare 
plants, animals and natural communities and take necessary habitat protection 
measures if species are found. 


B. Propose methods to encourage the use of native flora favored by the Rusty 
Patched Bumble Bee in landscaping to provide suitable habitat for this 
pollinator, where appropriate. 


 
6. Parkland shall be dedicated on the final plat, or fees in lieu of parkland dedication 


shall be paid before the City will sign the final plat, in such manner as is determined 
by the City in accordance with applicable City ordinances. 
 


7. The final plat shall include a notation informing prospective purchasers of the 
obligation to pay park improvement fees to the City at the time a building permit is 
issued. 
 


8. Before the City will sign a Final Plat, Developer must reimburse the City for all 
expenses incurred by the City in connection with its review and processing of the Plat, 
a Final Plat, and the development of the lands within the Plat.  Such reimbursement 
shall include all fees the City has paid to legal, planning, engineering, financial and 
other consultants. 
 


9. Before the City will sign a Final Plat, Developer must provide either a letter of credit 
or a performance bond in the amount of 120 percent of the estimated total cost to 
complete the required public improvements.  The form and substance of the letter of 
credit must be acceptable to and approved by the city attorney.   
 


10. The following items required by Section 66-303 of the City of Stoughton Code of 
Ordinances shall be provided, addressed or both to the satisfaction of the City 
Planning Director: 







 
\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs Final Plat Resolution.doc 
 


 
A. Subsurface soil, rock and water conditions including depth to bedrock and 


average depth to ground water table shall be established through appropriate 
investigation and reported to the City Planning Director.  Where the 
investigation indicates the potential for groundwater less than 10 feet from a 
proposed street centerline elevation, that information and the lots affected shall 
be noted on the face of the Final Plat. 


 
B. The lowest building elevation must be designated on the Plat to be one foot 


above the seasonal high water table.  The minimum elevation must be shown 
on the Plat for each affected parcel. 


 
11. Plans and specifications for the construction of all public improvements needed to 


serve the Plat shall be approved by the City before the City will sign a Final Plat.  
Among other things, construction plans must show street tree locations, sizes and 
species.   
 


12. Erosion controls and stormwater management plans must be approved by the City 
before the City will sign a Final Plat.  Stormwater management will be evaluated as 
part of the construction plan review. 
 


13. All easements the City or Stoughton Utilities identify as necessary during the course 
of reviewing the Plat or the construction plans and specifications must be dedicated 
on the Final Plat.   
 


14. Proposed street names must be investigated for conflicts within the City of Stoughton 
School and Fire Districts, and are subject to approval by the City Council. 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







C39


C
64N 90°00'00" E


115.98'


C70


S 66°10'23" E


122.12'


34.64'


S 89°59'58" E 790.06'


S 89°59'58" E 525.20'
S 89°59'58" E


172.75'


S 30°21'26" E
407.34'


S 59°16'57" W
247.92'


S 
00


°1
0'


56
" W


47
7.


25
'


S 89°50'45" W 1072.96'


N
 0


0°
33


'2
6"


 W
25


5.
01


'


S 89°50'45" W 255.47'


N
 0


0°
08


'0
5"


 E
89


9.
00


'


S 80°54'48" W
137.97'


L1 L2


C1


S 90°00'00" W
91.92'


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
10


2.
12


'


N 89°56'53" W 233.65'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
89


.7
3'


N 89°52'13" E 487.38'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 W
11


8.
41


'


11
8.


21
'


11
8.


00
'


S 
03


°1
0'


58
" W


12
1.


61
'


S 
08


°4
7'


54
" W


13
5.


34
'


S 
09


°4
3'


04
" W


15
9.


89
'


84.04'66.00'66.00'


52.36' 68.84' 73.73'76.40' 66.00' 66.00' 84.05'


20
7.


06
'


N 59°07'16" E
191.67'


N 68°03'44" E
146.30'


S 89°59'54" E
117.65'


N 90°00'00" E
107.02'


105.86'


80
.0


0'
68


.0
0'


66
.0


0'
10


9.
90


'
10


0.
97


'


C12


C13


65
.9


4'
36


.1
8'


C
14


C
15


C
16


C17


C18


C19


C20
C21 C22


N 90°00'00" E
92.11'


60
.0


0'
39


.3
4'


12
0.


52
'


63
.5


0'


S 89°47'05" E
106.22'


S 74°44'15" E


132.06'


N 85°52'51" W
141.05'


L5


L6


L3


L4


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
12


7.
09


'


S 89°55'58" E 549.73'


N
 0


0°
00


'4
8"


 E
89


.6
1'


94
.9


9'


44.62' 50.00' 50.00' 50.00' 50.00' 55.11'


C9
C8


C5


32.37'50.00'50.00'50.00'50.00'50.00'


10
3.


43
'


10
3.


57
'


10
3.


54
'


10
3.


50
'


10
3.


46
'


C11


C2


C3


C23


31
.5


0'


S 90°00'00" W 237.17'
C82


C83


C84


C81


N
 0


0°
11


'0
2"


 E
63


.0
0'


N 90°00'00" E 236.97'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


17
5.


00
'


N 90°00'00" E
81.45'


11.43'
66.00'66.00'93.74'


66.00' 66.00'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


28
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


72
'


66.00'66.00'93.51'


87
.2


8'
87


.7
2'


C
52


N
 0


4°
51


'1
3"


 W
12


7.
75


'


C55


N 90°00'00" W 299.66' C56


N 74°54'21" W
248.62'


C57


C5
8


N 90°00'00" E
100.00'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


13
2.


00
'


L2
6


L27


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
11


0.
00


'50
.1


8'
L2


5
55


.8
5'


66
.0


0'
49


.6
3'


N
 0


0°
00


'5
6"


 E
13


3.
86


'


100.35'


110.99'


101.01'


66
.0


0'
66


.0
0'


459.20'


C50


S 
04


°5
1'


13
" E


12
7.


75
'


C
51


C47
N 90°00'00" W 608.45'


C48


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
12


6.
76


'
C49 47.06' 50.00' 50.00' 302.13'


66.26' 70.40' 66.00' 66.00' 66.00' 273.79'


N 90°00'00" W
93.28' 50.00'50.00'


66.00'66.00'66.00'43.00'


80.00


41.00'


S 89°55'58" E 549.19'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
35


'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
59


'


10
0.


47
'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
00


'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


83
.0


0'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


C42


N 90°00'00" W 591.19' C43


L2
1


C
44


L2
2


C35


N 90°00'00" E 416.22'C36


L20C40


C
41


S 
00


°1
2'


58
" W


10
2.


46
'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
00


'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


S 
00


°0
4'


01
" W


11
4.


15
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


38
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


68.50'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'69.00'65.66'


82.99'


N 90°00'00" E
79.99'


69.00'


66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'


C
45


C46


66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'52.88'
C37


C38


16.41'


86
.0


5'


C24


C3
2


L14
C33 N 90°00'00" W 416.22' C34


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
17


4.
92


'


C25S 89°56'53" E 233.57'


C26


114.68' 67.83' 68.19' 70.00'


86
.0


1'
88


.9
1'


95.51'70.00'68.06'
C27


C28


C29


C30


C31


109.53'66.00' 70.02' 70.00'


57.50'


70.97'
L1


6


L1
7


L1
8 L1


9
L8L9L1


0


L1
1


L1
3


C67
28.28'


C59


C60


N 74°54'21" W
248.62'


C61N 90°00'00" W 265.11'
L29


214.92'


N
 0


1°
30


'1
9"


 E
14


5.
95


'


118.65'


19.32'


4.15'


43.63'


90.27'


100.57'


S 55°08'46" E
113.62'


N
 1


5°
05


'3
9"


 E
11


1.
37


'


N
 1


4°
22


'4
0"


 E
10


1.
29


'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.4


0'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.2


7'


100.00' 55.83'


100.00'115.78'


85.78' 70.00' 70.00'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
0.


78
'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
0.


59
'


10
0.


68
'


N
 1


4°
22


'4
0"


 E
99


.4
6'


N 
34


°2
4'3


2"
 E


11
2.


99
'


N 57°49'25" E


148.52'


S 89°49'03" E
118.67'


S 89°49'03" E
98.31'


118.64'


68.89' 70.00' 70.00'


C69


C
71


12
6.


79
'


65
.0


0'
70


.0
0'


16
7.


46
'


57
.1


8'


5.82'


C74


C7
5


C76
C77 S 44°24'08" E


163.15'N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


1.
15


'


11
7.


65
'


65.21'102.50'108.00'


108.00' 102.50'102.50'


17.61'


37
.0


9'


109.28'


89.84' 209.82'


N 89°50'45" E 1590.09' N 89°49'05" W
82.63'


N 89°49'05" W 2657.92'


412.77'


31.50'


138.11'


33'R = 819.20'
A = 186.45'


Δ = 13°02'25"
CHB = S23° 50' 14"E


CHL = 186.04'


277.45'


66.00'


L28


171.85'


258.55'1331.54'


47
.7


6'
68


.9
6'


32
.1


0'


C
63


L2
3


66.00'


100.02'


18.23'


29.29'


48
.0


0'


S 89°57'14" E 587.37'


S 84°38'15" E
81.46'


S 69°06'21" E


99.81'


C68


10.00'


10
1.


64
'


99
.1


8'


10.00'


10
1.


72
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


72
'


11.46'


10
1.


28
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


28
'


L30
C


62


L3
1


C65 N 90°00'00" E 237.17'


C66


L3
2


L3
3


C72


C73C78N 90°00'00" W 275.71'


C79
S 


00
°0


0'
00


" E
89


.6
5'


C80


7.82'


S 90°00'00" E
110.65'


50.00'


50.00'


S 
00


°0
4'


02
" W


10
3.


59
'


10
3.


56
'


50.00'


50.00'


50.00'


50.00'


10
3.


52
'


50.00'


50.00'


10
3.


48
'


50.00'


50.00'


10
3.


44
'


55.00'


S 
00


°0
4'


02
" W


10
3.


53
'


C4


10
9.


34
'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
9.


15
'


L1
5


N 89°48'21" E 315.55'


95.52'


99.34'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
00


'


58.03' 57.95'


107.80'
33.25'


S 36°04'40" E


118.03'


C7L7


S 84°58'22" E
110.40'


70
.9


1'


C
10


56.34'49.88'


41.97'50.14'


13.28'
L24


10.04'


50.00'


50.00'


10
0.


53
'


10
0.


41
'


50.00'


50.00'


N 90°00'00" W     241.00'


69
.8


3'
30


.7
6'


60
.0


0'
50


.0
0'


106.75'


21.72'


11
7.


65
'


C53


C54


N 90°00'00" E 484.85'


S 59°35'38" E
42.49'


N 39°17'00" E
2.51'


S 89°55'25" E 225.78'


L1
2


C6


58.03'


Yahara
R.


N


Stoughton
7 8


1718


LINE TABLE


LINE


L1


L2


L3


L4


L5


L6


L7


L8


L9


L10


L11


BEARING


S00°37'54"W


N00°24'48"W


S00°04'02"W


S22°27'42"E


S00°04'02"W


S22°27'42"E


S41°24'18"E


S00°00'00"E


S00°00'00"E


S01°02'09"W


S05°47'21"W


LENGTH


40.00'


20.00'


63.88'


50.58'


58.86'


57.06'


56.15'


102.45'


102.15'


101.85'


93.25'


LINE


L12


L13


L14


L15


L16


L17


L18


L19


L20


L21


L22


BEARING


S26°09'12"W


S41°14'40"W


S64°46'21"W


S03°16'54"E


S00°00'00"E


S01°02'09"W


S00°00'00"E


S00°00'00"E


N64°46'21"E


N20°04'42"E


N00°00'00"E


LENGTH


93.93'


80.31'


29.51'


51.83'


101.08'


100.87'


100.63'


100.38'


30.77'


30.06'


47.82'


LINE


L23


L24


L25


L26


L27


L28


L29


L30


L31


L32


L33


BEARING


S03°21'13"E


S39°42'24"W


N02°29'16"W


N05°13'02"W


N90°00'00"E


S30°21'26"E


S57°16'41"W


S20°04'42"E


S00°00'00"E


S00°11'02"W


S00°00'00"E


LENGTH


20.79'


22.10'


24.99'


66.25'


9.98'


36.09'


35.55'


29.62'


47.82'


63.00'


37.11'


FORWARD


There are no objections to this plat with respect to 
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.


Certified __________________, 20_____


Department of Administration


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


MAGNOLIA SPRINGS
PART OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW1/4 AND THE SW1/4 OF
THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


SECTION CORNER MONUMENTED


FOUND 3/4" IRON REBAR


SET 1 1/4" BY 24" IRON REBAR
WEIGHING 4.30 LBS./FT.


FOUND 1" IRON PIPE


FOUND 1.5" IRON PIPE


SHEET 1 OF 3
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


ALL OTHER   AND OUT  CORNERS
ARE 3/4" X 24" IRON REBAR
WEIGHING 1.50 LBS./FT.


VICINITY MAP


SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY


LOT LINE/RIGHT-OF-WAY


EASEMENT LINE


SECTION / 14 SECTION LINE


CENTERLINE


PREVIOUS SURVEY


ACCESS RESTRICTION


FOUND MAG NAIL


PLAT LOCATION


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 100 200


123


66


67


68
69 70 71


72


73


74


75


76


7778


79
80


81
82


22


21


20


19


18


17


16


15


14


13 10 9 8 7 6 5 4


40


64 63


59 60


6162


58575655545352


51 50 49 48 47 46 45 44


434241


65


39
38


37


36
35 34 33 32


3130292827
26


25


24


23


83 84 85


86


87


88


OUTLOT  1


OUTLOT  2


33.00'


14.95'


10.52'


OUTLOT  3


D
ED


IC
AT


ED
 T


O
 T


H
E 


PU
BL


IC


DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC


DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC
PARKER COLE ADDITION


LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6OUTLOT 1
CSM 8119


LOT 2
CSM 8119


LOT 3
CSM 8118


LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4


66'


66'


66'


66
'


66
'


66'


81
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


48
'


48
'


81
'


KAREN M GERMANN
301 ISHAM ST


(TR-6)


CITY OF
STOUGHTON


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(SR-6)
(TR-6)


(TR-6) (TR-6) (TR-6) (TR-6)
KAREN &


ROBIN
DROGSVOLD
225 ISHAM ST


KAREN
DROGSVOLD
217 ISHAM ST


ROB REAL
ESTATE


201 ISHAM ST


SHERRY
LEICK


125 ISHAM ST


SHERRY
LEICK


101 ISHAM ST


ANITA C
HALVERSON


1308 S
FOURTH ST


MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS


1073 TAYLOR LN


ARLIN O TIEGEN
1069 TAYLOR LN


CSM 15888


LOT 1


(TR-6)


(RR-1)


(RR-4)


(SFR-1)


KENDALL L
GULSETH


2834 AAKER RD


KENT J
KLONGLAND


LIVING TRUST
2840 AAKER RD


CSM 11716


LOT 1
(RR-4)


TIMOTHY & SCOTT
KLONGLAND
889 STH 138


STOUGHTON, WI
53589


CSM 4722


LOT 2
(AT-35)


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


60
'


60
'


60
'


60
'


30
'


30
' WIDTH


VARIES


30
'


30
'


60
'


30'30'
60'


33'33'


33'33'


DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON FOR


STORMWATER PURPOSES


DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON FOR PARK AND


TRAIL PURPOSES


DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON FOR PARK


AND TRAIL AND
STORMWATER PURPOSES


12
'


12
'


12'


12'


12'


12'


12'


12'


SEE DETAIL A
ON PG 2 OF 3


FOR EASEMENT
DETAILS


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'  UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


EXISTING RW LINE


PROPOSED RW
LINE


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'


6'
12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12
'


12' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


60
'


SOUTH LINE
SW1/4 SEC 8


SW CORNER
SEC 8 S1/4 CORNER SEC 8


SE CORNER
SEC 8


2245.15'


89


66'


66
'


33
'


33
'


33.00'


SW-SW


SE-SW


SW-SE


151'


15' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


30
'


30
'


60
'


15'


OUTLOT 4


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT 12


'


90


WIDTH
VARIES


7.5'


7.5'


15
'


7.
5'


12
'


6'


12
'


5'


1112


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'


15' STORM WATER
EASEMENT


6'
12


'


12'


15'
7.5'


12
'


6' 6'


12'


5'
5'


91


92


93949596


97 98 99 100


101
102103104


(NOT TO SCALE)


BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON THE
WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE SYSTEM


(WISCRS), DANE COUNTY 2011 ADJUSTMENT.
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF


SECTION 3 BEARS N89°50'45"E.


NOTES:


1) ALL STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY WITHIN THE PLAT BOUNDARY ARE DEDICATED TO THE
CITY OF STOUGHTON AS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.


2) FOR NOTED LOTS, DESIGN OF LOT IMPROVEMENTS MAY DICTATE WHETHER
GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER CAN SERVE THIS LOT. MINIMUM BASEMENT FLOOR
ELEVATION HAS BEEN PROVIDED TO THE CITY BASED ON THE PRELIMINARY UTILITY
DESIGN. MINIMUM BASEMENT FLOOR ELEVATIONS FOR THESE LOTS ARE LISTED IN
TABLE 1 ON PAGE 2 OF 3. A GRINDER PUMP MAY BE NECESSARY IF THE MINIMUM
BASEMENT FLOOR ELEVATION CANNOT BE ACHIEVED. SANITARY SEWER ELEVATION
NEEDS TO BE VERIFIED AT TIME OF LOT IMPROVEMENTS.


3) LOTS 25-31 AND 93-96 WILL BE DESIGNATED WITH LOW OPENING ELEVATIONS
BASED ON THE FINAL CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR THE PHASE OF THE DEVELOPMENT.


4) ARROWS INDICATED THE DIRECTION OF SURFACE DRAINAGE SWALE AT INDIVIDUAL
PROPERTY LINES. SAID DRAINAGE SWALE SHALL BE GRADED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE MASTER SITE GRADING PLAN FOR THE PLAT WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF EACH
PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE AND MAINTAINED BY THE LOT OWNER UNLESS MODIFIED
WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON. THE FINAL GRADE SHALL NOT BE
ALTERED BY MORE THAN SIX INCHES WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF
THE CITY OF STOUGHTON.


5) NO DIRECT VEHICULAR ACCESS - THESE ACCESS RESTRICTIONS ARE CREATED
AND IMPOSED BY THE CITY OF STOUGHTON AND CAN ONLY BE MODIFIED BY ACTION
OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL:


A. SOUTH SIDE OF LOTS 25-31 AND LOTS 93-36; ALONG AAKER RD.
B. EAST SIDE OF LOT 77; ALONG TAYLOR LN
C. EAST SIDE OF LOTS 31, 32, 43, 44, AND 60
D. WEST SIDE OF LOTS 82, 83, 96, 97, AND 104
E. NORTH SIDE OF LOT 77 FROM TAYLOR LN RIGHT-OF-WAY WEST 150 FEET


6) EACH LOT OWNER SHALL BE OBLIGATED TO PAY IMPACT FEES TO THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON A THE TIME A BUILDING PERMIT IS ISSUED FOR THEIR LOT.


7) OUTLOT 4 IS DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON FOR PARK AND TRAIL
PURPOSES AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT.


8) SEE SHEET 2 OF 3 FOR EASEMENT NOTES.


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)
(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)
(SEE


NOTE 2)(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE
NOTE 2) (SEE NOTE 2) (SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE
NOTE


2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)(SEE NOTE 2)(SEE NOTE 2)(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2) (SEE NOTE 2) (SEE
NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2) (SEE
NOTE 2)


(SEE
NOTE 2)


(SEE
NOTE 2)


12
'


20'


20' STORMWATER EASEMENT
SEE NOTE 6


15' 15' WATERMAIN
EASEMENT


12' UTILITY
EASEMENT


15
'


EXHIBIT  A



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SAM  MILES



AutoCAD SHX Text

 AAKER



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASS  LK     RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

PL



AutoCAD SHX Text

UR



AutoCAD SHX Text

IB



AutoCAD SHX Text

US



AutoCAD SHX Text

UN



AutoCAD SHX Text

UM



AutoCAD SHX Text

SYMBOL LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

AAKER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAYLOR LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

S PAGE ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

S PAGE ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

LILAC LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHID AVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILD ROSE WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHID AVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILD ROSE WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

LILAC LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ISHAM ST







17.42'


S 57°16'41" W
90.41'


C
52


N
 0


4°
51


'1
3"


 W
12


7.
75


'


C55


N 90°00'00" W 299.66'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


13
2.


00
'


L2
6


L27


50
.1


8'
L2


5
55


.8
5'


N
 0


0°
00


'5
6"


 E


100.35'


110.99'


101.01'


56.78'


66
.0


0'


130.94'


12
7.


75
'


C
51


N 90°00'00" W 265.11'


L29


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.4


0'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.2


7'


81.83'


37
.0


9'


78.88'32.12'


31.45'


S 57°16'41" W38.18'


S 57°16'41" W
145.61'


S 32°43'19" E
60.00'


N 57°16'41" E


65.83'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


89
.3


6'
20


.6
4'


100.02'


18.23'


L30


60
.0


0'
50


.0
0'


106.75'


21.72'


C53


C54


S 89°55'25" E 225.78'


Curve Table


CURVE


C2


C3


C4


C5


C6


C7


C8


C9


C10


C11


C12


C13


C14


C15


C16


C17


C18


C19


C20


C21


C22


C23


C24


C25


C26


C27


C28


C29


C30


C31


LENGTH


22.00'


188.28'


5.38'


36.46'


25.09'


29.08'


19.96'


42.47'


29.85'


21.94'


22.04'


637.33'


31.85'


66.91'


58.08'


64.05'


141.62'


96.75'


67.92'


62.66'


47.49'


21.98'


21.96'


22.00'


338.77'


3.80'


74.24'


90.60'


85.51'


84.63'


RADIUS


14.00'


120.06'


134.68'


120.97'


120.06'


120.06'


120.06'


120.46'


120.04'


14.00'


14.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


14.00'


14.00'


14.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


DELTA


90°02'59"


89°51'03"


2°17'15"


17°16'06"


11°58'24"


13°52'31"


9°31'33"


20°12'00"


14°14'54"


89°47'02"


90°12'58"


90°09'52"


4°30'19"


9°27'55"


8°13'02"


9°03'41"


20°02'07"


13°41'15"


9°36'32"


8°51'53"


6°43'08"


89°57'36"


89°52'13"


90°03'07"


56°15'43"


0°37'49"


12°19'46"


15°02'48"


14°12'02"


14°03'17"


CH. BEARING


N45°02'32"E


N45°08'30"E


S88°47'03"W


S78°48'06"W


S64°06'56"W


S51°11'29"W


S39°29'26"W


S24°36'24"W


S7°20'20"W


N45°06'29"E


N44°53'31"W


N44°51'58"W


S2°02'11"E


S9°01'18"E


S17°51'47"E


S26°30'08"E


S41°03'02"E


S57°54'43"E


S69°33'37"E


S78°47'49"E


S86°35'19"E


N44°58'05"W


N44°56'06"E


N45°01'33"E


S61°49'02"E


S89°37'59"E


S83°09'11"E


S69°27'54"E


S54°50'29"E


S40°42'49"E


CH. DIST.


19.81'


169.58'


5.38'


36.32'


25.04'


29.01'


19.94'


42.25'


29.78'


19.76'


19.84'


573.58'


31.84'


66.83'


58.03'


63.98'


140.90'


96.52'


67.84'


62.60'


47.47'


19.79'


19.78'


19.81'


325.33'


3.80'


74.10'


90.34'


85.29'


84.42'


CURVE


C32


C33


C34


C35


C36


C37


C38


C39


C40


C41


C42


C43


C44


C45


C46


C47


C48


C49


C50


C51


C52


C53


C54


C55


C56


C57


C58


C59


C60


C61


LENGTH


24.06'


74.11'


21.99'


21.99'


100.53'


13.13'


67.69'


19.72'


23.66'


112.14'


21.94'


26.90'


93.04'


54.72'


38.32'


21.55'


22.04'


94.18'


21.16'


25.24'


21.03'


10.68'


10.35'


21.38'


74.55'


174.44'


21.84'


20.30'


228.39'


57.17'


RADIUS


14.00'


168.32'


14.00'


14.00'


228.32'


228.32'


228.32'


228.32'


14.00'


345.00'


14.00'


14.00'


265.50'


265.50'


265.50'


14.00'


14.00'


60.06'


14.00'


217.00'


217.00'


217.00'


217.00'


14.00'


283.00'


217.00'


14.00'


14.22'


283.00'


217.00'


DELTA


98°27'31"


25°13'39"


90°00'00"


90°00'00"


25°13'39"


3°17'38"


16°59'06"


4°56'55"


96°49'15"


18°37'23"


89°47'02"


110°04'42"


20°04'42"


11°48'33"


8°16'09"


88°11'23"


90°12'58"


89°50'23"


86°34'46"


6°39'50"


5°33'08"


2°49'13"


2°43'55"


87°30'44"


15°05'39"


46°03'27"


89°23'38"


81°46'21"


46°14'21"


15°05'39"


CH. BEARING


S15°32'35"W


S77°23'10"W


N45°00'00"W


N45°00'00"E


N77°23'10"E


S88°21'11"W


S78°12'49"W


S67°14'48"W


S66°49'02"E


S9°05'43"E


S45°06'29"W


N34°57'39"W


N10°02'21"E


S14°10'25"W


S4°08'04"W


S45°54'18"W


N44°53'31"W


N45°08'10"E


S46°38'36"E


S1°31'18"E


N2°04'39"W


S0°42'42"E


S3°29'16"E


N46°14'38"W


N82°27'11"W


S82°03'55"W


S14°20'23"W


N71°31'12"W


S81°58'28"W


N82°27'11"W


CH. DIST.


21.21'


73.52'


19.80'


19.80'


99.72'


13.12'


67.44'


19.71'


20.94'


111.64'


19.76'


22.95'


92.56'


54.63'


38.28'


19.48'


19.84'


84.82'


19.20'


25.22'


21.02'


10.68'


10.35'


19.36'


74.34'


169.78'


19.69'


18.62'


222.24'


57.00'


CURVE


C62


C63


C64


C65


C66


C67


C68


C69


C70


C71


C72


C73


C74


C75


C76


C77


C78


C79


C80


C81


C82


C83


C84


LENGTH


93.04'


53.82'


39.22'


21.99'


204.62'


28.42'


10.00'


63.73'


60.25'


42.22'


10.89'


179.91'


35.41'


57.48'


62.57'


24.46'


16.89'


21.99'


21.99'


21.99'


21.99'


110.18'


109.73'


RADIUS


265.50'


265.50'


265.50'


14.00'


130.00'


129.70'


126.36'


130.00'


130.00'


130.00'


13.81'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


25.00'


14.00'


14.00'


14.00'


14.00'


70.00'


70.00'


DELTA


20°04'42"


11°36'52"


8°27'49"


90°00'00"


90°11'03"


12°33'15"


4°32'08"


28°05'16"


26°33'21"


18°36'27"


45°10'23"


173°14'35"


34°05'52"


55°20'52"


60°14'50"


23°33'01"


38°43'05"


90°00'00"


90°00'00"


90°00'00"


90°00'00"


90°11'03"


89°48'57"


CH. BEARING


S10°02'21"E


N14°16'16"W


N4°13'55"W


S45°00'00"E


S44°54'29"E


N83°44'16"W


N75°16'16"W


N59°01'23"W


N31°42'05"W


N9°07'11"W


S22°15'45"E


S42°05'47"W


N27°28'34"W


N17°14'48"E


N75°02'39"E


S63°03'26"E


N70°38'28"W


S45°00'00"W


S45°00'00"E


S45°00'00"E


S45°00'00"W


N44°54'29"W


N45°05'31"E


CH. DIST.


92.56'


53.73'


39.18'


19.80'


184.14'


28.36'


10.00'


63.09'


59.72'


42.03'


10.61'


118.79'


34.89'


55.27'


59.72'


24.28'


16.57'


19.80'


19.80'


19.80'


19.80'


99.15'


98.84'


Curve Table


CURVE


C1


LENGTH


168.63'


RADIUS


786.20'


DELTA


12°17'20"


CH. BEARING


S24°12'47"E


CH. DIST.


168.30'


TAN IN


S18°04'07"E


TAN OUT


S30°21'27"E


Area Table


LOT


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


SQ. FT.


6,721


5,179


5,178


5,177


5,176


5,175


5,175


5,174


5,173


5,172


5,171


5,471


8,085


11,484


6,192


7,096


5,463


6,079


8,431


7,209


7,353


10,659


12,905


14,310


12,797


ACRES


0.154


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.119


0.126


0.186


0.264


0.142


0.163


0.125


0.140


0.194


0.165


0.169


0.245


0.296


0.329


0.294


Area Table


LOT


26


27


28


29


30


31


32


33


34


35


36


37


38


39


40


41


42


43


44


45


46


47


48


49


50


SQ. FT.


9,935


8,756


8,157


7,808


7,795


11,467


11,205


7,161


7,236


6,913


6,951


6,650


7,645


8,613


6,756


6,961


7,035


10,932


11,321


6,600


6,600


6,600


6,600


6,602


6,967


ACRES


0.228


0.201


0.187


0.179


0.179


0.263


0.257


0.164


0.166


0.159


0.160


0.153


0.176


0.198


0.155


0.160


0.162


0.251


0.260


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.160


Area Table


LOT


51


52


53


54


55


56


57


58


59


60


61


62


63


64


65


66


67


68


69


70


71


72


73


74


75


SQ. FT.


9,908


7,938


6,900


6,600


6,600


6,600


6,600


6,600


5,803


7,040


6,600


6,600


6,600


6,694


6,611


5,005


6,715


5,028


5,025


5,022


5,019


6,601


6,615


6,650


5,444


ACRES


0.227


0.182


0.158


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.133


0.162


0.152


0.152


0.152


0.154


0.152


0.115


0.154


0.115


0.115


0.115


0.115


0.152


0.152


0.153


0.125


Area Table


LOT


76


77


78


79


80


81


82


83


84


85


86


87


88


89


90


91


92


93


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


SQ. FT.


6,245


26,656


14,101


10,622


10,652


9,933


12,452


8,353


7,051


7,045


6,772


8,326


10,715


10,693


7,713


7,851


12,022


12,609


11,773


12,059


14,269


10,852


6,684


6,684


7,194


ACRES


0.143


0.612


0.324


0.244


0.245


0.228


0.286


0.192


0.162


0.162


0.155


0.191


0.246


0.245


0.177


0.180


0.276


0.289


0.270


0.277


0.328


0.249


0.153


0.153


0.165


Area Table


LOT


101


102


103


104


SQ. FT.


7,237


6,714


6,714


10,912


ACRES


0.166


0.154


0.154


0.250


Area Table


LOT


OUTLOT 1


OUTLOT 2


OUTLOT 3


OUTLOT 4


SQ. FT.


35,433


60,434


240,333


2,007


ACRES


0.813


1.387


5.517


0.046


FORWARD


There are no objections to this plat with respect to 
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.


Certified __________________, 20_____


Department of Administration


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


SHEET 2 OF 3
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


60'


15
'


7.
5'


DETAIL A


OUTLOT  3


15' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


60' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


STORMWATER
EASEMENT


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 50 100


MAGNOLIA SPRINGS
PART OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW1/4 AND THE SW1/4 OF
THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.
5.37'


74.23'


13.12'


35.40'


73


74


75


76


81


82
(SEE NOTE 2)


(SEE NOTE 2)


EASEMENT NOTES:


THE FOLLOWING EASEMENT NOTATIONS ON THE PLAT CONVEY THE FOLLOWING EASEMENT RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS WITH RESPECT
TO THE AREAS SO DESIGNATED ON THE PLAT:


"UTILITY EASEMENT": CONVEYS TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON AND ANY PRUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITY THE PERPETUAL RIGHT TO
EXCAVATE, GRADE, INSTALL, OPERATE, MAINTAIN, REMOVE, AND REPLACE FACILITIES, ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND, FOR THE
PROVISION OF ELECTRICAL, WATER, SANITARY SEWER, GAS OR TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES.


"WATER MAIN EASEMENT": CONVEYS TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON THE PERPETUAL RIGHT TO EXCAVATE, GRADE, INSTALL, OPERATE,
MAINTAIN, REMOVE, AND REPLACE FACILITIES, ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND, FOR THE PROVISION OF A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY.


"PUBLIC EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN, SANITARY SEWER, AND STORM SEWER": CONVEYS TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON THE
PERPETUAL RIGHT TO EXCAVATE, GRADE, INSTALL, OPERATE, MAINTAIN, REMOVE, AND REPLACE FACILITIES, ABOVE OR BELOW
GROUND, FOR THE PROVISION OF A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, AND STORM SEWER SERVICE.


"TRAIL EASEMENT": CONVEYS TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON THE PERPETUAL RIGHT TO EXCAVATE, GRADE, INSTALL, OPERATE,
MAINTAIN, REMOVE, AND REPLACE FACILITIES, ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND, FOR THE PROVISION OF A PUBLIC TRAIL.


"STORMWATER EASEMENT": CONVEYS TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON THE PERPETUAL RIGHT TO EXCAVATE, GRADE, INSTALL, OPERATE,
MAINTAIN, REMOVE, AND REPLACE FACILITIES, ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND, FOR THE PURPOSE OF DRAINING OR CONVEYING SURFACE
WATER.


NO STRUCTURE OR TREE MAY BE CONSTRUCTED, PLANTED, INSTALLED, OR MAINTAINED WITHIN ANY OF THE FOREGOING EASEMENT
AREAS. NEITHER THE CITY OF STOUGHTON NOR ANY PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITY EXERCISING ITS RIGHTS WITHIN THE FOREGOING
EASEMENT AREAS SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE OR LOSS TO ANY STRUCTURE, TREE, OR LANDSCAPING WITHIN THE
EASEMENT AREA, EXCEPTING RESTORING THE GRADE AND RESEEDING AREAS DISTURBED BY THEIR WORK WITHIN THE EASEMENT.


THE FINAL GRADE OVER THE FOREGOING EASEMENTS SHALL NOT BE ALTERED BY MORE THAN SIX INCHES, EXCEPT THE FINAL GRADE
OVER DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AND STORM WATER EASEMENTS SHALL NOT BE ALTERED BY ANY AMOUNT, AND EXCEPT THAT THE GRADE
OF ANY EASEMENT MAY BE ALTERED WITH THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON AND ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE
UTILITY HAVING A RIGHT TO USE THE EASEMENT AREA.


TABLE 1


LOT
MINIMUM


BASEMENT
ELEVATION


31 861.2'
32 861.2'
43 860.1'
44 860.1'
77 861.0'
78 860.8'
79 860.5'
80 859.8'
81 859.5'
82 858.9'
83 860.1'
84 860.3'
85 860.6'
86 860.8'
87 861.1'
88 861.3'


TABLE 1


LOT
MINIMUM


BASEMENT
ELEVATION


89 861.6'
90 861.6'
91 862.9'
92 862.4'
93 862.4'
94 862.1'
95 861.7'
96 861.3'
97 861.3'
98 861.6'
99 861.8'
11 862.1'
101 861.1'
102 860.7'
103 860.4'
104 860.1'



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

PL



AutoCAD SHX Text

UR



AutoCAD SHX Text

IB



AutoCAD SHX Text

US



AutoCAD SHX Text

UN



AutoCAD SHX Text

UM



AutoCAD SHX Text

S PAGE ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHID AVE







FORWARD


There are no objections to this plat with respect to 
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.


Certified __________________, 20_____


Department of Administration


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


SHEET 3 OF 3
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


MAGNOLIA SPRINGS
PART OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW1/4 AND THE SW1/4 OF
THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


OWNERS' CERTIFICATE - ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC


AS OWNER, I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE CAUSED THE LAND DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT TO BE SURVEYED,
DIVIDED, MAPPED, AND DEDICATED AS REPRESENTED HEREON. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS
REQUIRED BY S.238.10 OR S236.12 WISCONSIN STATUES TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATION AND THE CITY OF STOUGHTON PLAN COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OR OBJECTION.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC HAS CAUSED THESE DOCUMENTS TO BE SIGNED BY


THEIR REPRESENTATIVE THIS _____ DAY OF __________________, 2023.


________________________________________                              
ROB HOSTRAWSER, DIRECTER OF OPERATIONS


STATE OF WISCONSIN )  SS
DANE COUNTY   )


PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME ON THIS ____ DAY OF __________________, 2023.


THE ABOVE NAMED ________________________, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE PERSON WHO EXECUTED THE
FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE SAME.


__________ _____________________________ ________________________


NOTARY PUBLIC, _________________________ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
COUNTY, STATE


CITY OF STOUGHTON APPROVAL CERTIFICATE


I, CANDEE CHRISTEN, BEING THE DULY APPOINTED, QUALIFIED, AND
ACTING CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DO HEREBY CERTIFY
THAT THIS PLAT WAS APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF STOUGHTON,  DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND FURTHER CERTIFY
THAT CONDITIONS OF SAID APPROVAL WERE FULFILLED ON


THE ______ DAY OF _________________, 2023.


RESOLUTION NO. _______________________          


__________ ____________________________
CANDEE CHRISTEN, CITY CLERK


APPROVED ___________________          
DATE


CITY OF STOUGHTON TREASURER CERTIFICATE


I, LISA AIDE, BEING THE DULY ELECTED, QUALIFIED, AND ACTING TREASURER
OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE RECORDS IN MY
OFFICE SHOW NO UNPAID TAXES OR UNPAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AS OF


THE ____ DAY OF _____________, 2023   
ON ANY OF THE LAND IN MAGNOLIA SPRINGS.


                                                                                
LISA AIDE, CITY TREASURER


DANE COUNTY TREASURER CERTIFICATE


I, ADAM GALLAGHER, BEING THE DULY ELECTED, QUALIFIED, AND
ACTING TREASURER OF THE COUNTY OF DANE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY
THAT THE RECORDS IN MY OFFICE SHOW NO UNREDEEMED TAX SALES
AND NO UNPAID TAXES OR UNPAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AS OF


THE            DAY OF _____________, 2023
ON ANY OF THE LAND IN MAGNOLIA SPRINGS.


                                                                                          
ADAM GALLAGHER, COUNTY TREASURER


_____________             
DATE


DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS CERTIFICATE


RECEIVED FOR RECORDING THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2023 AT
___O'CLOCK __.M.


AND RECORDED IN VOLUME ______ OF PLATS AT DANE COUNTY ON PAGES
____________ AS DOCUMENT NO. _______________.


________________________________
KRISTI CHLEBOWSKI, REGISTER OF DEEDS
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE


I, BRADLEY TISDALE, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 236 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND
THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN, AND UNDER THE
DIRECTION OF ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC, MAGNOLIA SPRINGS HAS BEEN SURVEYED,
DIVIDED, AND MAPPED UNDER MY RESPONSIBLE DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; THAT SUCH
PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS ALL EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES AND THE SUBDIVISION OF THE
LAND SURVEYED; AND THAT THIS LAND IS PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST
1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE
11 EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8, THENCE N89°50'45”E
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 1590.09 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N00°33'26”W, 255.01 FEET; THENCE S89°50'45”W, 255.47 FEET
TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF CSM 11716, RECORDED IN VOL 71, P 327, AS DOC NO.
4176987; THENCE N00°08'05”E ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID CSM 11716 AND
CONTINUING ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF CSM 4722, RECORDED IN VOL 21 P 23 AS DOC
NO. 1892619, 899.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PLAT OF PARKER COLE
ADDITION, RECORDED AS DOC NO. 5852905; THENCE S89°59'58E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID PARKER COLE ADDITION AND CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 OF CSM
8119, RECORDED IN VOL 43, P 221, AS, DOC NO. 2741455, 790.06 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE S00°37'54”W ALONG THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
SOUTH PAGE STREET AS SHOWN ON SAID CSM 8119, 40.00 FEET TO A SOUTH CORNER OF
SAID CSM 8119; THENCE S89°59'58”E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID CSM 8119 AND
CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF CSM 8118, RECORDED IN VOL 43, P 218, AS DOC NO.
2741454, 525.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID CSM 8118; THENCE N00°24'48”W
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID CSM 8118, 20.00 FEET; THENCE S89°59'58”E, 172.75 FEET TO
THE CENTERLINE OF TAYLOR LANE; THENCE 168.63 FEET ALONG A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE
CONCAVE TO THE EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 786.20 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS
S24°12'47”E, 168.30 FEET; THENCE S30°21'26”E, 407.34 FEET; THENCE S59°16'57”W, 247.92 FEET
TO A NORTH CORNER OF CSM 15888, RECORDED IN VOL 116, P 122, AS DOC NO. 5799972;
THENCE S80°54'48”W ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID CSM 15888, 137.98 FEET, THENCE
S00°10'56”W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID CSM 15888, 477.25 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE N89°49'05”W ALONG THE
SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 82.63 FEET TO THE SOUTH QUARTER
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S89°50'45”W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 1072.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.


SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 1,675,642 SQUARE FEET OR 38.467 ACRES MORE OR LESS TOTAL
AND 1,601,178 SQUARE FEET OR 36.758 ACRES MORE OR LESS MINUS RIGHT-OF-WAY.


__________________________________
DATED THIS          DAY OF _______________, 2023 BRADLEY L. TISDALE


PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 
#S-2824



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

PL



AutoCAD SHX Text

UR



AutoCAD SHX Text

IB



AutoCAD SHX Text

US



AutoCAD SHX Text

UN



AutoCAD SHX Text

UM







60' ROW


151' ROW


Transitional ROW


60' ROW


60' ROW


60' ROW


60' ROW


60' ROW


Transitional ROW


66' ROW


60' ROW


66' ROW


66' ROW


<


<


STA:2+25.00
OFF:0.00'


<


<


<


< <


<<


<


<


<


<


<


<


<
<


<


<


<


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL MAGNOLIA SPRINGS SUBDIVISION


ROB REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE & BUILDERS LLC
STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WI


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


G2


   DRAWN BY:            JN


   DESIGNED BY:       JN


   CHECKED BY:        ST
MASTER GRADING PLAN.


  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 8:43 AM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Site Plan Concepts.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: 2022


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


0 80 160
ISHAM ST.


4TH ST.


CLOVER LANE


ORCHID AVENUE


WILLOW WAY


DAHLIA DRIVE


AAKER RD.


9065 SF PLAYGROUND


19' 0 ROAD WIDTH
19' 0 ROAD WIDTH


GENERAL NOTES:
ALL SANITARY
ARE PROPOSED
TO BE 8 INCHES IN
DIAMETER


ALL ROADS TO BE
STANDARD
WIDTHS WITH
EXCEPTIONS
NOTED ON PLAN


MH-E


MH-3
MH-2MH-1


MH-4


MH-6


MH-7 MH-8


MH-11


MH-13


MH-14 MH-15


MH-18


MH-21 MH-22


MH-23


MH-24


MH-25


MH-26MH-15


MH-16 MH-27


MH-9


MH-10


MH-19
S. PAG


E ST


S. PAG
E ST


DAHLIA DRIVE


WILLOW WAY


ORCHID AVENUE


MH-20


MH-5


MH-17


8" WATER MAIN THROUGH
LOT 7 TO CONNECT TO
EXISTING WATER MAIN


ON ISHAM ST EXTENSION







Map data ©2023 500 ft 


DEVELOPMENT 


            AREA





		Magnolia Springs_Combined SWMP_reduced.pdf

		2-Study_Area_Land_Use

		3-Study_Area_Soil_Map



		Magnolia Springs_Final Pat_2023_04_10.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-1 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-2 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-3 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-SETBACK EXHIBIT





		Magnolia Springs_LandscapePlan.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		L1 OVERALL LANDSCAPE

		L2 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT

		L3 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT

		L4 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT





		Magnolia Springs_Phase 1_30percentPlans_2023_04_10.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		G1 Title Sheet

		G2 MASTER GRADING PLAN

		G3 MASTER GRADING PLAN PHASE 1

		G4 STORM WATER WET POND DETAILS

		G5 INFILTRATION POND DETAILS

		G6 ROAD DETAILS

		E ST 0 N. PAGE ST CONNECTION PLAN

		E R 1 SITE REMOVALS PLAN

		E R 2 SITE REMOVALS PLAN

		EC EROSION CONTROL PLAN 1

		W U 1 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 2 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 3 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 4 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 5 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 6 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 7 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 8 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 9 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 10 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		W U 11 UTILITY PLAN AND PROFILE

		I1 PAGE ST AND TRAIL INTERSECTION

		I2 PAGE ST AND CLOVER INTERSECTION

		I3 ORCHID AND PAGE ST INTERSECTION

		I4 CLOVER AND ORCHID INTERSECTION

		T1 TRAIL PROFILE

		T2 TRAIL PROFILE

		T3 TRAIL PROFILE

		T4 TRAIL PROFILE

		T5 TRAIL PROFILE

		T6 TRAIL PROFILE

		T7 TRAIL PROFILE

		T8 TRAIL PROFILE

		P1 PONDS SHEET





		FINAL PLAT - 5-4-2023 - Exhibit A.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-1 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-2 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-3 OF 3

		21669000_Stoughton_Aaker Rd_Final Plat-SETBACK EXHIBIT














\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\050823\PC Info\Magnolia Springs Rezoning Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 4, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the May 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of May 23 and June 13, 2023. 
 
Magnolia Springs Rezoning. 
This request is to rezone certain properties within the development from Rural Holding to Single 
Family zoning types including 4 institutional outlots.  The twin home lots are part of a separate 
Planned Development proposal.  The ordinance and rezoning documents are provided.  A public 
hearing and recommendation to the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Rezone Magnolia Springs Development.doc 


PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, May 8, 
2023 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a 
proposed rezoning of the property located within the Magnolia Springs development, City 
of Stoughton, Wisconsin, owned by Eldon Land Development LLC.  The property is 
proposed to be rezoned from RH Rural Holding to as follows: 
 


A. Lots 33-42, 45-58, 61-65, 72-74, 83-86 and 98-103 shall be zoned SR-6 Single 
Family Residential. 


B. Lots 19-31 and 87-93 shall be zoned SR-5 Single Family Residential.  
C. Outlots 1-4 shall be zoned Institutional (Park and Open Space). 


 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via 
Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 850 0390 9924 Passcode:  288379 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice, please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
at 608-646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
     
Published April 20 and 27, 2023 Hub 


 
 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85003909924?pwd=SEUrQWp0dmx6Qk15TzR0Q3hmaHJLQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Magnolia Springs Rezoning Ordinance.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Classification of Certain Lands  


within the Magnolia Springs Development 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base and Park Impact Fees 
File Number: O -    - 2023 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Stephen Tremlett (on behalf of Eldon Land Development, LLC) (the “Applicant”) has 


applied to amend the zoning classification of certain lands as follows:  
 


A. Lots 33-42, 45-58, 61-65, 72-74, 83-86 and 98-103 shall be zoned SR-6 
Single Family Residential. 


B. Lots 19-31 and 87-93 shall be zoned SR-5 Single Family Residential.  
C. Outlots 1-4 shall be zoned Institutional (Park and Open Space). 


 
2. The applicant has submitted a rezoning application for the lands within the Magnolia 


Springs Development and the rezoning map is attached as Exhibit A to this Ordinance. 
 
3. On May 8, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing regarding 


the applicant’s proposed zoning map amendments.  The public hearing was preceded by 
the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.  


 
4. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning amendments are consistent with 


the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
zoning amendments, subject to certain conditions.   


 
5. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 


that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed zoning amendments are consistent with 
the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and have the potential for enhancing the use 
of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 







 
 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 


 
2. Subject to any conditions set forth below, the following zoning changes are approved:  
 


A. Lots 33-42, 45-58, 61-65, 72-74, 83-86 and 98-103 shall be zoned SR-6 
Single Family Residential. 


B. Lots 19-31 and 87-93 shall be zoned SR-5 Single Family Residential.  
C. Outlots 1-4 shall be zoned Institutional (Park and Open Space). 


 
3. This ordinance is contingent on approval and recording of the Final Plat and approval of 


a Development Agreement. 
 
4. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   


 
 
 
 
 


Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Magnolia Springs Rezoning Ordinance.docx 


EXHIBIT A 
 
 


 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Amendment of the Official Zoning Map
(Requirements per Section 78-903 attached)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application to
amend the Official Zoning Map and by the City to process said application. Parts II and III are to be
used by the Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - IV are to be used by the City when
processing said application.


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


Application fee of $________ received by Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall
submit an initial draft application and materials for staff review, followed by one revised application packet based
upon staff review and comments.


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: ______________


 (a) A copy of the Current Zoning Map of the subject property and vicinity:
 Showing all lands for which the zoning is proposed to be amended.


 Map and all its parts are clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Electronic map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 ft.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (c) Written justification for the proposed text amendment
 Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed map amendment is in


harmony with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan,
particularly as evidenced by compliance with the standards set out in Section 78-
903(4)(c)1.-3.


III Justification of the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Applicant Use


1. How does the proposed Official Zoning Map amendment further the purposes of the Zoning
Ordinance as outlined in Section 78-005 (and, for floodplains or wetlands, the applicable rules and
regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA))?


See attached General Written Statement - specifically under Comprehensive Plan and Design 


Improvements (Natural Features and Stormwater Management Subsections).


see General Written Statement, specifically Existing Conditions section







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


2. Which of the following has arisen that are not properly addressed in the current Official Zoning Map?
(Please provide explanation in space below if necessary)


a) The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity with the
Comprehensive Plan.


b) A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map. (That is, an area is developing in a
manner and purpose different from that for which it is mapped.) NOTE: If this reason is cited,
it must be demonstrated that the discussed inconsistency between actual land use and designated
zoning is not intended, as the City may intend to stop an undesirable land use pattern from
spreading.


c) Factors have changed, (such as the availability of new data, the presence of new roads or other
infrastructure, additional development, annexation, or other zoning changes), making the subject
property more appropriate for a different zoning district.


d) Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an Amendment to the
Official Zoning Map.


3. How does the proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintain the desired consistency of
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the surroundings of the subject
property?


The Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as a Planned Neighborhood. The properties are currently being 
annexed by the City of Stoughton based on a 2022 urban service area amendment. The Zoning Map 
amendments will allow this neighborhood residential project to meet the growing needs of this area. 


See attached General Written Statement for Magnolia Springs - specifically under Comprehensive 
Plan section 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


IV. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


Receipt of (8.5” by 11” text and 11” by 17” graphic electronic Date: ______________
copies of final application packet by Zoning Administrator


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on __________ and __________ Date: ______________







Magnolia Springs – General Description 
Eldon Homes, LLC 
May 1, 2023 1 


May 1, 2023 
 
GENERAL WRITTEN STATEMENT  
MAGNOLIA SPRINGS NEIGHBORHOOD 
 
A low-density residential neighborhood located in the south-central limit of the City of 
Stoughton, comprising 37.25 acres of land just north of Aaker Road. 
 
Project Overview – ELDON HOMES, LLC is proud to submit this concept for a 37.25-acre low-density 
residential neighborhood with 104 lots (plus, three outlots) in the south-central limits of the City of Stoughton – 
just north of Aaker Road and west of 4th Street (Taylor Lane).  There are 62 single-family lots (averaging 6,600 
square feet on interior lots and 8,500 square feet along edges of the development), 28 twin-home lots (roughly 
5,000 square feet) and 14 duplex lots (ranging from 10,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet).   
 
The intent is to provide affordably priced homes in a well-designed neighborhood with good vehicular and 
pedestrian connections through and within the development.  Some of the key design choices that minimized the 
overall construction costs, which will help to keep the cost of lots/homes affordable, include the following: 
 


 A range of smaller single-family lot sizes that do not require rear-loaded home design (and an 
alleyway). 


 Duplex lots that fit into the single-family neighborhood.  
 Plans for some home sites built without basements.  
 Filling the site to allow for gravity sanitary service, mitigating the need for a lift station that would have a 


substantial upfront cost to construct, as well as future maintenance needs.   
 Central boulevard on Page Street has been redesigned to manage an open swale to allow a substantial 


stormwater watershed from the south to convey through the site (to the wetland and ultimately to the 
river).  The original plan would require a $1.5+ million box culvert between lots to convey the 
stormwater to the wetland.  This redesign will save roughly $1 million in infrastructure costs (and 
potential future costs to repair/maintain). 


 
Existing Conditions - The project area includes two city parcels (051108396602 and 051108494002). 
Currently, both parcels are being farmed with a pocket of woodlands around the wetland in the northeast section 
of the development area.  
 
Relationship to Nearby Properties –The surrounding uses are as follows: 
 


 North: single-family neighborhood and planned duplex lots along Isham Street extension.   
 East: rural residential and wetland/floodplain/river. 
 South: rural residential and farmland. 
 West: farmland and rural residential. 


Urban Service Area Amendment – The proposed subdivision has been brought into the Urban Service 
Area through an amendment approved in 2022. 
 
Comprehensive Plan – The proposed subdivision is located in an area designated as the South Planned 
Neighborhood Area, which is intended for a carefully planned mixture of predominantly single-family residential 
development, combined with one or more of the following land use categories:  
 


 Two Family Residential, Multi-Family Residential, Neighborhood Office, Neighborhood Business, 
Institutional, and Recreation or Public Open Space. This category is intended to accommodate both 







Magnolia Springs – General Description 
Eldon Homes, LLC 
May 1, 2023 2


conventional and Traditional Neighborhood Design (TND) forms of “full-service” neighborhood 
development. To implement a key City objective, development within these neighborhoods should 
contain a minimum of 65 percent single family dwelling units, a maximum of 15 percent two family 
and/or townhomes, and a maximum of 20 percent multi-family dwellings.  


ELDON HOMES, LLC has proposed a mix of single-family, twin-home and duplex lots. The duplex/twin-home lots 
are located along the primary routes into the neighborhood (i.e., Page Street, Orchid Avenue and backing up to 
Aaker Road), as well as a pocket area directly south of planned twin-home lots along Isham Street extension. 
Forty-two of the single-family lots are located west side of Page Street with the remaining twenty on the east side 
of Page Street.   


Design Improvements  – 


• DEVELOPMENT & ZONING: Zoning for the lots includes SR-5 for single-family lots along some of the 
edges of the development, SR-6 -family for interior single-family lots and Planned Development for 
duplex lots.


• PARK/OPEN SPACE: Parks and Recreation Committee approved the park locations with interest in 
seeing the development meet the parkland dedication requirement and space for up to a 9,000 square 
foot playground. The development meets the parkland dedication requirement (i.e., 3.98 acres required 
based on 118 units with 4.12 acres provided, excludes wetland and stormwater management areas in 
the park). The design of the park preserves the existing wetland and trees adjacent to the wetland 
outside of grading for roads and stormwater management areas.


• TRAIL/SIDEWALK NETWORK: All streets will have pedestrian accommodations (sidewalk or path) 
along both sides of the street with 6-foot grass terrace.  One exception is along Dahlia Drive crossing of 
the median where sidewalk will be installed only on the north side of the street.  Paved multi-use paths 
are proposed on 4th Street (Taylor Lane) from Isham Street to Orchid Avenue, through the park and 
within a 40-ft trail corridor* (in Outlot 1) to the northwestern corner of the development. Per previous 
discussions, a trail connection has been added from Outlot 1 to Lilac Lane to improve access to the 
neighborhood, as well as an additional trail spur in the park.


* The trail corridor utilizes a 12-foot utility easement north of the development to meet the desired 50 
feet of wildlife corridor width.  The lot depths are near minimums to allow for homes without an alley, 
providing for affordable lots. Any further reduction of depth (to increase the trail corridor) would make it 
unfeasible to provide the number of affordable lots as shown.


ROADWAYS and ACCESS: The neighborhood provides connections to the existing roadways at 
Page/Isham, Page/Aaker and Orchid / 4th (Taylor). Orchid Avenue is extended to the western edge of 
the development, providing for a future fourth access to the neighborhood.  
Wild Rose Way does not cross the swale median due to complications in slope and other factors with 
close proximity to other breaks in the central swale median; however, pedestrian and vehicular access 
remains strong with a block width of only 200 feet and via midblock sidewalk to Orchid Avenue.  


The eyebrow street in the southeast corner of the development includes a median, which provides 
access to three single-family lots.  MSA will coordinate with City staff during the entitlement process to 
finalize the design of this median, including keeping it low maintenance.  Per discussions with City staff, 
the median will not have a sidewalk (only along lot frontages) and will have a few shrubs and 
gravel/wood mulch.  







Magnolia Springs – General Description 
Eldon Homes, LLC 
May 1, 2023 3 


There are three right-of-way (ROW) widths provided in the neighborhood based on the corresponding 
land uses and function of the roadway, as follows: 
 


o 66-foot ROW: Orchid Avenue (east of Page Street) and Page Street (north of Orchid Avenue) 
 


o 60-foot ROW: Orchid Avenue (west of Page Street), Lilac Lane, Wild Rose Way, and Dahlia Drive 
(west of Page Street) 


 
o 152-foot ROW: Page Street (south of Orchid Avenue), inclusive central swale median 


 
 


 UTILITIES: MSA is coordinating the water and sewer service with the City of Stoughton.  The design 
required filling the center of the site to allow for gravity flow to the north, connecting to the existing 
sewer along Page Street near Isham Street.  A stubbed connection is shown to Aaker Road, 
understanding any future development south will require a lift station and force main up to Dahlia Drive 
along Page Street.  Water is looped in several sections within the development, including a stub to 
Aaker Road and through Outlot 1 to Isham Street. The developer will also upgrade approximate 650-
foot segment of 6-inch sewer interceptor in S. Page Street (W. Chicago Street to W. Broadway St.) to 
an 8-inch to accommodate the proposed Magnolia Springs Development. 


 


 NATURAL FEATURES: The proposed outlots preserve open space in the park space around an 
existing wetland and wooded section, and in the proposed trail corridor (in Outlot 1). There are three 
delineated wetlands on the property with one to be preserved, one likely altered, and one to be filled.  
More details are provided below, and available in wetland delineation report (see USAA appendix). 


 


o Wetland #1 (0.6 acres) is being preserved as open space within a City Park.  
o Wetland #2 (0.4 acres) is considered a fresh meadow but functions as a ditch adjacent to Taylor 


Lane.  The City is interested in improving 4th Street (Taylor Lane) to make it safer in an urban 
section to include curb and gutter, parking and a multi-use path.  This will require filling of the 
wetland, and Wisconsin DNR approval. 


o Wetland 3 (0.2 acres) is a farmed wetland that has been determined to be non-federal by the Army 
Corp of Engineers (ACOE).  On April 28, 2022, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
(WDNR) granted the non-federal exemption, allowing for filling the wetland. 
 


 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: As shown, there are two wet ponds for pre-treatment, one 
infiltration basin, and a swale median that will serve this development and manage off-site runoff (from 
the south through the swale to Outlot 3).  The stormwater management system is intended to control 
peak runoff rates and volumes for events ranging from the 1-year through the 200-year event.   
 
A large off-site sub-watershed will convey through the site through a central median swale on Page 
Street at a depth of 10 feet with a 6-foot flat shelf behind the curb and 4:1 slopes to “V” bottom that will 
carry off-site water.  There are also ditches planned on the north side of Aaker Road on both sides of 
intersection with Page Street to carry overflow stormwater to the central swale median. We will work 
with the City staff during the entitlement process to identify the preferred landscaping treatment that 
allows for minimal maintenance on annual basis.   
 
 







Magnolia Springs – General Description 
Eldon Homes, LLC 
August 26, 2022 4 


with the City staff during the entitlement process to identify the preferred landscaping treatment that 
allows for minimal maintenance on annual basis.  The images below show an example of a similar 
swale boulevard on the east side of Madison. 
 
 


 
 


 
 
Broad Creek Boulevard (City of Madison, WI) 







Aaker Rd


Isham  St


81’ ROW


60’ ROW


77


60’ ROW


2 1


78
79


808182


35 468 79111012


70 71696867
66


13
14


15
16


1718 62 616364


57 5856


65


605953 5452 55


46 4547 4450 4951 48


19


20
21


22


23
24


25 26 27 28 29 30 31


40 4139 434238
37


36 35 34 3233


101


97 98 10099


102
103104


83 84 85 86
87


88
89
90


91


92
93949596


76
75
74


72
73


SWM


SWM


SUBDIVISION REZONE EXHIBIT


wetland


Aaker Rd


S  4th  StS 
 P


ag
e 


St


Isham  St


Lilac Ln


Orchid Avenue


Wild Rose Way


Dahli Dr


60’ ROW


15
6’


 R
O


W


81’ ROW


(providing additional 15’ to ROW)


10’ Trail


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


OUTLOT 1*


104 Lots (118 Units)
28 Twinhome Lots (28 U)
14 Duplex Lots (28 U)
62 Single-Family Lots
4.12 Acres Parkland Dedication (no SWM / wetland)


OUTLOT 2*


OUTLOT 3*


OUTLOT 4*


SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6


SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6


PDPD


SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5
SR-5


SR-5 SR-5 SR-5 SR-5 SR-5


SR-6 SR-6 SR-6


SR-6


SR-6 SR-6 SR-6 SR-6
SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-5


SR-6


SR-6


SR-6


SR-6 SR-6
SR-6 SR-6


SR-6


SR-6


SR-6SR-6
SR-6


SR-6


*All Outlots: 


Institutional 
(Parks + Open Space)


SR-6SR-6


PDPDPDPD
PD


PD


PD


PD


PD PD


PD


PD


PD


PD


PD


PD


PD PD PD
PD


PD
PD


PD


PD PD PD


last updated: 05/02/2023 







Aaker Rd


Isham St


EXISTING ZONING MAP


RH







 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


May 2, 2023 
MSA Professional Services 
Stephen Tremlett 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI. 53593 
 
 
Dear Mr. Tremlett; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed rezoning.  Lots 33-42, 45-58, 61-65, 72-74, 83-86 and 
98-103 are proposed to be SR-6 Single Family Residential; Lots 19-31 and 87-93 are proposed to be 
SR-5 Single Family Residential and Outlot’s 1-4 are proposed to be zoned Institutional (Parks and 
Open Space), in the Magnolia Springs Subdivision.  A public hearing is scheduled for May 8, 2023.  
The following items have been identified for your review.   
 
1. Official Zoning Map Amendment requirements per zoning code section 78-903 are as follows: 


A. A copy of the current zoning map of the subject property and vicinity.  Provided by 
staff 


B. A map showing the proposed zoning for the development.  Provided 
C. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 


subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Provided by staff 


D. A map showing the generalized location of the subject property.  Provided 
E. Written justification for the proposed map amendment based on the recommendations of 


the City Comprehensive Plan.  Provided 
F. The zoning map is proposed to be brought into conformity with the City Comprehensive 


Plan Future Land Use Map. 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\magnolia springs\general development plan\updated gdp-sip 5.1.23\gdp-sip review 5.2.23.doc 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning



		Applicant Name: Stephen Tremlett, MSA Professional Services

		Applicant Address: 1702 Pankratz St., Madison, WI 53703

		Applicant Phone and Email: (608) 242-6621, stremlett@msa-ps.com

		Property Owner Name if different than applicant: Eldon Land Development, LLC

		Property Owner Phone: (608) 480-9432

		Subject Property Address: 

		Date: 08/30/2022

		Application fee of: 440

		Date_2: 08/30/2022

		Date_3: 8/30/2022

		Management Agency FEMA 1: 

		1: 

		Official Zoning Map 1: 

		property 1: 

		Class 2 legal notice published on: 4/20/2023

		and: 4/27/2023

		Date_4: 

		Date_5: 4/18/2023

		Date_6: 5/3/2023

		Date_7: 4/11/2023

		Date_8: 





